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Major Events in 2024
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Announced the 2023 annual results
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Shengsi 5#6# Offshore Wind Power Project in Zhejiang Province won *% ‘[EE#
two outstanding achievements in the s —
“Excellent Achievements in Quality Management” awards organized by
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Convened the 2024 Annual General Meeting and
Special General Meeting

BF2024FRRBFRERRRFTHINAE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2024



A g

I “a- Lt

L e R S tiT L] LrAT LR AARSRA

francasa. BA ‘AN STRARRS AT IA hLAmAL BE TENFSESIAS AN

e raa kA -t P —
(T A

WA T S [ET T T e PPPT
Y
Fare pamim
s pA RE. RAF, SAE, aT,
B ass me. wam

. s
4 . i
ks e

MAY 55

Angiu Taipingshan Phase | Wind Power Project in
Shandong Province won three third-class honors

in the “Power Industry Quality Management Group” by
the Shandong Province Electricity Association
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Major Events in 2024
20245 KHE &

MAY 55

Beiba Wind Power Project in Gansu Province and Jiuquan Micro-
grid Photovoltaic Project in Gansu Province were awarded two
advancement-level honors and one advancement-level honor for
“China Quality Innovation and Quality Improvement
Achievements” by the China Quality ((FREIE & )) magazine
press respectively
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JUL 75

200 MW/400 MWh Rudong Storage Station Project in Jiangsu Province
connected to the grid in full capacity
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JUL 75

Received a total of nine titles at the 10th Investor Relations Awards from
the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association (HKIRA):

“Overall Best IR Company (Hong Kong Small Cap)”, “Best IR Company”,
“Best ESG”(Environmental and Social 2 awards), “Best Annual Report”;
“Best IR by Chairman/CEQ”,

“Best IR by CFO”,

“Best IRO” and “Best IR Team”
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Major Events in 2024
2024F KE:C
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Awarded the “Listed Companies with the

Most Growth Potential” by
“China Financial Market” magazine
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Datong Majialiang Wind Power Project in Shanxi Province and the Haorun Wind
Power Project in Qinghai Province won the “Advanced Achievement in Fault-Free Wind
Farm Management” and “100-Day Fault-Free Wind Farm Management Achievement”
respectively by the China Electricity Power Technology Market Association
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Announced the 2024 interim results
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China Electricity Council announced the results:

Longnan Yangcun Wind Power Project in Jiangxi Province was awarded the honor
of “5A-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical
Indicators for National Wind Farms in China”, and each of the Zhangbei Xinsheng
Wind Farm in Hebei Province, Leling Zhuji Wind Farm in Shandong Province

and Baoying Xianfeng Wind Farm in Jiangsu Province was awarded the honor

of “4A-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical
Indicators for National Wind Farms in China”
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Major Events in 2024
2024F KE:C
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Ren County Wind Farm in Hebei Province was awarded the Certificate of .
Honor for “Advanced Enterprise in Environmental Protection” by the BHEAFFENRARATMAD:
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=iy Cenxi Dalong Wind Power Project in the Guangxi Zhuang

Autonomous Region was awarded the “Small and Medium Quality
China Power Project” by the China Electric Power Construction
Association and a category Il achievement in “Guangxi Quality
Management Team Activity” by the Guangxi Quality Association
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] ] Our self-developed safety and health monitoring platform for lithium-ion
BRI S Eﬁﬁiﬂ_‘!ﬁl*ﬁ battery energy storage stations was awarded:

“First Group of Outstanding Pilots in Safety Monitoring Information Platform

5 for Electrochemical Energy Storage Stations in China by the China Electricity
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Chairman’s Statement

FERE

P LAREKREEEXRMEIEEME BH
22— HEF— EXRFHINEFEFE
B BETREABINIEER REARE
BEE¥R

The Company has upheld high-quality
development in the first place as
always, adhered to the golden rule of
“Safety First, Quality Foremost and
Pursuing Excellence”, and exploited the
“Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and
Pragmatism” style of work, securing the
Company’s high quality development

i AT

Zhang Zhiwu
ok &

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman and Executive Director

BLZEX EFERWITES

Dear Honourable Shareholders, EWMNEURE

The year 2024 is crucial to the full implementation of the spirit of the 20th 2024F 22 EEMEBEEN _+ABHNRERZF 1
National Congress of the Communist Party of China, but also a tough year for RFABM+UAIFREWKR 2 F > ABEBEBIBEM
the in-depth implementation of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The Company has B4 E> BHATEREBZRER BRE=ETE FH
been active in cultivating new quality productivity, striving to contribute to the HEko

“Development of Clean Energy and Building of a Beautiful China”.

10 CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. § Annual Report 2024



Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The Company has upheld high-quality development in the first place as always,
developed strengths as a complement to its weaknesses, strived for innovation
and breakthrough, adhered to the golden rule of “Safety First, Quality
Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, exploited the “Stringency, Prudence,
Meticulosity and Pragmatism” style of work and fostered the Company’s
leading position in the industry.

In 2024, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
US$248.0 million, a decrease of 7.3% over the previous year. Basic earnings
per share of the Company was 5.78 US cents (equivalent to 45.09 HK cents
per share). As of 31 December 2024, the attributable installed capacity of
the Company’s power plants was 10,452.4 MW, representing a year-on-year
increase of 8.6%, with the addition of the first 200 MW/400 MWh energy
storage project during the year. The Company has also strengthened its
equipment management with improved power generation efficiency. In 2024,
the Company’s power generation reached 19,149.7 GWh, which is basically
the same level as last year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

As an important support for the promotion of green and low-carbon transition
and ensuring secured energy supply, renewable energy is an important
direction for the development of emerging and future industries, and an
important carrier for the cultivation of new quality productivity, with immense
prospects for development. In the context of “dual-carbon”, the Company
will provide full support in achieving the goal of “carbon peak and carbon
neutrality” and contribute to high-quality development.

Zhang Zhiwu
Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and Executive Director

25 March 2025

FEHE
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R ERAREET10,452.4JK R BILLHEN8.6% W
i EEREAE200IK /400K R IE R c AT N8 R
BRI R EMAE 2024 NE B EEE19,149.7
ERF BEAEREAFFF

RERK

ABEERFAEDGOERERE  RIFEERZEMHIE
NEZXE BUNEENRREXERNERSMR>
hWEMELEENBENERHE ERAISERF -EME
BOESRT RE2EMANHREE RPN BRER
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President’s Statement
AE SR

D ExPHIBREST > 2IKERFRME
MAERERA IR BN E R BEARE -2
AREABUERMERER STE€HIBRE
RIEBEBENXSFH

Driven by the call for “carbon neutrality”,
there is an accelerated shift in global
energy transition, and unprecedented
opportunities and challenges ahead in
the new energy sector. The Company will
unswervingly develop the new energy
sector, and provide strong support in
achieving the “dual-carbon” goal

\ \ \ \ It
A\ \\\ ‘\‘\‘*\"\
\ ¥

President and Executive Director

MERNTES

Dear Honourable Shareholders, EWNEURE
In 2024, under the precision leadership of the Board of Directors of the 2024F EABEEENIERBET 2BETHER

Company, our employees strived and were able to achieve the Company’'s > UBImBIEFBEE BORE -HEZH > 2HFH
annual business objectives with their strength, spirit, energy and focus. ERAREELESHIE

12 CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. § Annual Report 2024



President’s Statement

INDUSTRY SITUATIONS

Under the country’s call for “dual-carbon”, the power industry has committed
substantial investment in the development of new energy. In 2024, there was
an additional 426.6 GW of power generation capacity nationwide, of which the
combined installed capacity of grid-connected wind power and solar power
was 357.4 GW. By the end of 2024, the installed power generation capacity of
the country was 3,348.6 GW, an increase of 14.6% year-on-year. In particular,
the share of non-fossil energy in the total installed capacity rose to 58.2%.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION
MANAGEMENT

The Company stayed focused on the annual business development goals with
great faith by strictly mitigating risks and intensively promoting value creation,
reform and innovation, thereby driving high-quality development for the
Company. At the same time, the Company maintained its strategic focus and
extensively promoted the timely commencement of projects. During the vyear,
the newly commissioned attributable installed capacity of solar power was
786.0 MW; the 200 MW/400 MWh Rudong Storage Station Project in Jiangsu
Province was newly commissioned; and the Hanneng’s Phase Il attributable
installed capacity of a unit of 45 MW natural gas distributed project in Hubei
Province was successfully put into operation.

In 2024, the Company has gained numerous awards, including a number of
capital markets, safety, quality and environment as well as operations awards.
As the Company continued to improve its management of environmental,
social and governance as well as disclosure issues, in 2024, the Company
received a total of nine titles at the 10th Investor Relations Awards from the
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association (HKIRA), including the “Overall Best
IR Company (Hong Kong Small Cap)”, which is among the highest honors in
this year award ceremony. In 2024, the Company’s Shengsi 5#6# Offshore
Wind Power Project in Zhejiang Province won two outstanding achievements in
the “Excellent Achievements in Quality Management” awards organized by the
Zhejiang Provincial Energy Association.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Driven by the call for “carbon neutrality”, there is an accelerated shift in global
energy transition, and unprecedented opportunities and challenges ahead in
the new energy sector. The Company will implement the “Stringency, Prudence,
Meticulosity and Pragmatism” style of work, uphold the golden rule of “Safety
First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, unswervingly develop the
new energy sector, and provide strong support in achieving the “dual-carbon”
goal.

Li Guangming
President and Executive Director

25 March 2025
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Distribution of Projects

I8 B 7 ffn [E]

—{y_ Wind -2 Solar
Dree ~7° xms

Gas-fired ACogen
7 BEHE e

=& QOil-fired Hydro
= & KE

Biomass Energy Storage
SEmE

fHRE

Guizhou, China
hE S M

A
she

.

Guangxi, China

PEIREE

S

Jiangxi, China

FELTHE

S

Inner Mongolia, China
FERARSG

Total Installed Capacity
matRs

170 mwks

Total Installed Capacity
EEES 2

195.9 mwikr
80 MwikE

18 Mwskw

Total Installed Capacity
EEEE 2

177.8 mwikE

Total Installed Capacity
mEstgRE

10 MR

193 mwikE

Henan, China Total Installed Capacity
HhE AR BEREE
{
™ 663.6 MR
8% 5.7 i
\§
Gansu, China Total Installed Capacity
REH# BEAE
/
e 1,043 mwikr
;:.::g 121 MwsE
o
Qinghé}i, China Total Installed Capacity
PEE S msE
/
™ 200 mwkrR
b( X 190 MwikE
z
Sichuan, China Total Installed Capacity
sRE ) AR
& 51 mwskr
<
Hungn, China Total Installed Capacity
shENH PEE3ES
{
™ 245.2 MwxkE
E:O::E 9.8 MmwiE

Shaanxi, China

P KPS

o'y
PLIS

]

Total Installed Capacity
mRRE

0.7 MwikR

14

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. § Ann

Heilongjiang, China
hEERET
/

T

Total Installed Capacity
A

100 mwsks




Distribution of Projects
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Financial and Operating Highlights

A 55 e E 5 4 22

EBITDA
AL A N4 EE B EH

(US$ million)

GEE=D 896

Decreased by 0.9% as compared with 2023
EE 20235 75700.9%

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

A B IR R EF

(US$ million)

GEESD! 248

Decreased by 7.3% as compared with 2023
£t 20235/ 7.3%

9,623

2023

ATTRIBUTABLE

INSTALLED
CAPACITY
R A S
MW JKEL

2024
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REVENUE
HZA

(US$ million)

10,452

(EE%T) 1’ 951

Decreased by 11.0% as compared with 2023
EE 2023/ 11.0%

EPS
SiEF)

US cents per share

s

5.78

Decreased by 7.3% as compared with 2023
tE 20235 R/ 0 7.3%

POWER
GENERATION

GWh R

2024



Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

China’s power market:

According to the data published by the NEA, the installed capacity of
the PRC amounted to 3,348.6 GW in 2024, representing a year-on-year
increase of 14.6%, while electricity consumption amounted to 9,852.1
TWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.8%. The accumulated
grid-connected wind power capacity for 2024 reached 520.7 GW,
with a year-on-year increase of 18.0%, while the accumulated grid-
connected solar power capacity recorded 886.7 GW, with a year-on-
year increase of 45.2%.

In 2024, the new energy industry maintained a stable growth
trajectory. Combined with the country’s need in developing new
quality productivity, building a novel power system, and continuously
promoting energy transformation, the new energy sector is currently
experiencing a shift from “rapid development” to “high-quality
development”.

Firstly, ensure the provision of necessary elements for the development
of new energy to guide the sustainable and healthy development of the
industry.

In January 2024, the NDRC, the National Bureau of Statistics and
the NEA jointly issued the “Notice on Strengthening the Connection
between Green Power Certificates and Energy Conservation and
Carbon Reduction Policies to Vigorously Promote Non-fossil Energy
Consumption” (BAFSIN5R 4R 8 E /755 = B H BE PR AR BUER T3 K TR
EIEERBERHEREA)) . Such notice clarified that green power
certificates would be used as the basic vouchers for renewable energy
power consumption to strengthen the effective connection between
green power certificates and energy consumption control policies, and
the corresponding electricity of green power certificate trading will be
included into the assessment and calculation of provincial people’s
governments’ energy-saving targets and responsibilities for the “14th
Five-Year Plan” period.

In February 2024, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Notice on
Establishing and Improving the Price Mechanism of Power Ancillary
Services” (BAMNBIBE2ENWERE M HERBEIER)).
Such notice pointed out that the cap of peak-shaving service prices
should be reasonably determined, and the cap of peak-shaving service
prices should not exceed the on-grid tariff of local parity new energy
projects in principle.

BEESwmEADH

1TELE
HEEATE

RIEEKEER B EIRFER > 2024F P HEEFE
WA EEER3,348.65 > AL R14.6% AE
£9,852.1KRF [FIEIBK6.8%°20245F » @
BRI EBEES20.75R > FLIEK18.0%;
AGREEBERHHPAREE886.75 > BLL1Y
£45.2%°

2024F HIERTERBREBRNERE
B EAERERMELEEN BRMEBNZR
MREESEREANER MERERTS
BERIN SHERR Y-

—EMEHERERERRE > SIETEFE
EER-

2024F 15 BIRENEZ - BERMAHF BEKEE
REBMAEMENMRGEEEHEEEEE
B RTERDREFCAEREIENSE
1) o ZBAEERE  RAEFRAUBLRERE
HEERRE  Mai S REREEBRAN
B RBEERXZHEBEEMA TR ERK
ARBFSHEEREETEERIERZE -

2024528 BIHENZ - BERERD M (F
REIRZ2BHEORBTHEREFNE
M) ZBHMIEL SEEETHERBFES L
R AERBESLREN ELASNEMTE
MEREEN LREEE-

2024 FERE | FEREENERERERAE

17



18

In February 2024, the NDRC and the NEA released the “Guiding
Opinions on Strengthening the Construction of Grid Peak-Shaving
Energy Storage and Intelligent Dispatching Capacity” (B8 I152E
BREREENSELCRHEEENREZWIEEERER)), which indicated
to strengthen peak-shaving capacity construction, focus on improving
the peak-shaving capacity of supporting power, coordinate the
improvement of renewable energy peak-shaving capacity, vigorously
enhance the grid’s ability to optimize the allocation of renewable
energy, and tap the peak-shaving potential of demand-side resources.
Also, it indicated to promote the construction of energy storage
capacity, make good plan and construction of pumped storage power
stations, promote the construction of new energy storage at the power
supply side, grid side and user side, and promote the coordinated
development of multiple types of new energy storage technologies
such as electricity storage, heat storage, cold storage and hydrogen
storage.

In March 2024, the NDRC and the NEA released the “Guiding Opinion
on High-quality Development of Distribution Network Under the
New Situation” (BRFAZTREEESHELEEBNIEEER)),
which indicated to: (1) overcome the shortcomings of the grid and
strengthen the foundation of supply security, appropriately advance the
planning of transformer and distribution sites, optimize the layout of
grid facilities, and strengthen the construction of emergency security
capabilities; (2) improve carrying capacity and support transformation
developments. To meet the needs of large-scale distributed renewable
energy grid connection, specifically strengthen the construction of
distribution networks based on the development goals of distributed
renewable energy; scientifically arrange the development scale of
new energy storage, scientifically deploy new energy storage at key
grid nodes and grid ends; promote the construction of microgrids,
and the large grid should create convenient conditions for distributed
smart grids and microgrids to access the public grid, and simplify grid
connection procedures.

In June 2024, the NEA released the “Notice on Doing a Good Job in
New Energy Consumption to Guarantee the High-Quality Development
of New Energy” (KRAR T M AETREM TIERIENE RS EE2EREN
#E450)), which indicated to: (1) strengthen planning and management.
For supporting grid projects of 500 kV and above, the NEA
organizes the annual adjustment of projects in the national electricity
development plan. For supporting grid projects below 500 kV, the
provincial energy authorities should optimize the management process
and do a good job of project planning and management; combined
with distributed new energy development programs, project layout, etc.,
to enhance the carrying capacity of distributed new energy; (2) orderly
arrange new energy project construction. Strengthen the coordination
between new energy and supporting grid construction; (3) practically
enhance the performance of new energy grid integration. Explore
the application of new technologies such as long time scale power
prediction, grid-forming new energy, various new energy storage, etc.,
to improve the accuracy of new energy power prediction and proactive
support capability; (4) scientifically determine the target utilization rate
of new energy in various regions. Some regions with better resource
conditions can appropriately relax the target of new energy utilization
rate, which in principle should not be lower than 90%, and carry out
annual dynamic assessment according to the situation of consumption.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In June 2024, 5 authorities including the NDRC issued the first
batch of energy conservation and carbon reduction special action
plan documents for the four industries including steel, refining,
synthetic ammonia and cement, proposing the main objectives for
energy conservation and carbon reduction in these industries. The
documents deployed key tasks, optimized the energy consumption
structure of the industries, encouraged relevant industry enterprises to
implement clean and low-carbon energy substitutions, accelerated the
development and application of wind energy, solar energy, biomass
energy, hydrogen energy and multi-storage solutions, and orderly
promoted the electrification transformation of energy consumption;
for newly-constructed projects, in principle, it will no longer add
self-contained coal-fired power units and will support existing
self-contained coal-fired power units to implement clean energy
substitutions.

In July 2024, 5 authorities including the NDRC issued the “Specific
Action Plan on Energy Saving and Carbon Reduction for the
Electrolytic Aluminum Industry” ((EBARIRTT XS AERIREIEITH
5t8])). The document clarified the active support to electrolytic
aluminum enterprises in expanding application of wind power,
photovoltaic, hydropower, biomass and other non-fossil energy,
cessation of new self-owned coal-fired units in principle, and the
support to replace existing self-owned coal-fired units with clean
energy equipment. Electrolytic aluminum enterprises are encouraged
to participate in the construction of microgrids consuming renewable
energy, explore the application of virtual energy storage and flexible
regulation technology for aluminum electrolysis, and improve the
power load adjusting and matching capability of projects. Electrolytic
aluminum enterprises are also encouraged to consume more
renewable energy through green certification and green electricity
trading, and construction of renewable power generation projects.

In August 2024, the NDRC, the NEA and the National Data
Administration jointly issued the “Action Plan for Accelerating the
Construction of a Novel Power System (2024-2027)” ({INIR#EEFH
BB RMITEN 5 32(2024-20274F))), specifying nine key specific
actions to be taken in the next three years in pursuit of the construction
of a novel power system and phased breakthrough. Details include:
(1) security of a stable power system; (2) achievement in the large-
scale and high-proportion of new energy output; (3) high-quality
development of distribution network; (4) construction of an intelligent
dispatching system; (5) increased friendliness in the performance of
novel energy system; (6) upgrade in the new generation of coal power;
(7) optimization of power system regulating capacity; (8) expansion of
the charging station network for electric vehicles; (9) improvement in
coordinating capability in view of demand.
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In August 2024, the NEA issued the “Implementation Plan on the
Development of a High-quality Distribution Network (2024-2027)”
(EEERsSE2EREITHEN S E(2024-20274F))), suggesting
specific measures including: (1) accelerated promotion of distribution
network upgrading and revamping in energy supply-vulnerable areas;
focus on improving the security level of power supply to communities
having no direct access to on-grid power supply, and the simultaneous
implementation of distribution network upgrading with municipal
renovation work; (2) targeted implementation of a number of projects
to improve disaster prevention and resilience; detailed investigation
of power facilities in disaster-prone and frequent areas and key areas
such as micro-topography and micro-meteorology, and differentiated
improvement in local planning and design and disaster prevention
standards; (3) construction of a number of projects to connect with the
new type of main entities; targeted strengthening the construction of
distribution network by taking into account the resources conditions,
development layout and production timing of distributed new energy,
improving the acceptance, allocation and regulating capability of
distribution network for distributed new energy; (4) innovating and
exploring a number of distributed smart grid projects; exploring the
construction of a number of distributed smart grid projects oriented to
large power grid, new energy rich villages, power supply parks with a
high proportion of new energy.

In October 2024, the NEA issued the “Notice on Improving the Grid-
related Safety Capabilities of New Energy and New Grid-connected
Entities to Serve the High-quality Development of Novel Power Systems”
CRARRAFNSE RN M EHA IR SAZT2ENIRBEMEAEHER
SHEBREMNEH)), suggesting: (1) strengthening grid-related safety
management of new energy and new grid-connected entities, and their
safe and stable operation as the basis and premise for the high-quality
development of novel power systems; (2) scientifically defining the
scope of network-related security management. Scientifically defining
the scope of grid-related safety management of new energy and new
grid-connected entities within the jurisdiction, and implementation
of necessary management, considering the actual needs for system
security, cost-effectiveness of technologies, and the load for grid-
connected entities, and based on the types, scale of capacity, voltage
levels for access, and characteristics of system operation of new
energy and new grid-connected entities; formulation of transition plans
and steady progress in such plans designed for existing new energy
and new grid-connected entities that have been included in the scope
of network safety management but do not meet the requirements
for the time being; (3) promoting grid connection of grid-connected
entities in an inclusive manner. Owners (units) of new energy and
new grid-connected entities shall organize and carry out project
construction according to the relevant national standards and industry
standards and other requirements, ensuring that the configuration of
secondary systems such as relay protection, safety and stability control
devices, and communication equipment meet the requirements, and
avoiding “bringing issues to the network”. In particular, the centralized
new energy of the remote collection (large bases, etc.) shall be
equipped with supporting capability of rapid voltage regulation,
suppression of broadband oscillation, and other devices such as
cameras if necessary to prevent service interruption in large scale; (4)
strengthening security risk assessment of access to the power grid.
Power grid enterprises shall study and analyze in-depth the security
risks of distributed new energy access, cooperate with and prepare for
the assessment of the capacity of distributed new energy access grid.
Local power management departments shall take into full account the
impact of distributed new energy access on the safe operation of the
grid when carrying out the assessment of the grid access capacity of
distributed new energy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In November 2024, the 12th session of the Standing Committee of the
14th National People’s Congress voted to pass the “Energy Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ((FEE AR EFMEFEIRE)), effective on
1 January 2025. The Energy Law will be the basic and dominant law in
the energy field, providing principally for the provisions on basic major
issues in the energy field from the perspective of law, representing
a key milestone in the improvement of the energy rule of law system
and also the overall coordinating measure for the relationship between
energy varieties. Highlights include: firstly, the establishment of the
legal status of energy planning, resulting in a more prominent role
of such planning in leading, guiding and regulating the industry.
Secondly, the support in prioritizing the development and utilization
of renewable energy, nevertheless, safety and reliability are pre-
requisite in the replacement of fossil energy with non-fossil energy
alternatives. Thirdly, the implementation of institutional arrangements in
all aspects of power generation, grid, load and storage for accelerated
construction of a novel power system. Fourthly, in terms of energy
consumption, giving full play to the leading role of the market and
promoting the consumption and efficient use of new energy. Fifthly, in
terms of the energy market system, it is emphasized that competitive
links in the energy field shall adhere to the direction of market-oriented
reform, and market-oriented electricity trading shall continue to
advance. Sixthly, in terms of scientific and technological innovation in
the realm of energy, encouraging the leading role of strategic, scientific
and technological forces in the nation, relying on major energy
projects and national scientific and technological innovation platforms
as the focus on scientific and technological research and integrated
application demonstrations, and accelerating the industrialization of
scientific and technological achievements in the realm of energy.

Secondly, fully leverage the role of the power market mechanism and
take multiple measures to improve new energy consumption.

In March 2024, the NDRC and the NEA revised and issued the
“Operating Rules for Power Supply” ((ftEB =288 )). The changes
mainly proposed to: (1) adapt to the reform changes and adjust the
relationship between the power supply and utilization, strengthen the
requirements for supervision of power supply enterprises, highlight the
equal relationship of the power suppliers and power users, and clarify
the scope of responsibility for power supply services; (2) adhere to
the principle of benefiting enterprises and bringing convenience to
the people, and improve the rules for business expansion reporting,
electricity bill collection and electric energy measurements by refining
processes and increasing access capacity limits; (3) strengthen the
management of the power supply and utilization order, standardize
the investigation and handling of power theft, the suspension of
power supply, and the management of the safety of power supply and
utilization, to maintain the stability of the power supply and utilization
order.

In April 2024, the NDRC issued the “Power Market Regulatory
Measures” BN HIHEEWE)), which was implemented since 1
June 2024. Such regulatory measures proposed that power regulators
should supervise over power market participants’ fulfillment of power
system safety obligations, entry and exit from the power market,
execution of power market operation rules, conduct of transactions
and power fee settlements, as well as unfair competition, collusion
in bidding, and other irregularities in the wholesale power market
transactions involving electricity sales enterprises and power users.

BEESwmEADH

2024F 1B +HEZEARRKRAEEHRZ
BEFE+_NERRABBR(FEARENRA
BETRSE) » B2025F 1 B1HEHTT - (BETRIE )
EARERBIENERE - HEE LR TEMEE
FRESERMEEAMEELIEEEEL RN
HE BRE2ERIABANEZERN 2%
FALERREZHABENEEBEE SRS
BiE —BRIUEFRRENERRA ERFR
HSIE B EMREIERREMELE - B
BARETNBOUBEER BHERIE(CAAE
BRERICABEREUZEZASFARR =%
FRRAFRSESHELHEEZEE MRERN
BEHR#F -NBREREE AT TOEIEHIS
FEER RENERNENNSHRFH AZ
EERMBEASE RBEREIAFEZ MR
ERFHBLELRELBE EAOTHBERZERF
BIRAEE AN BERBRAM AT BEEE
BEXREERIENE5IEIER KREEKRERT
BRGNS TFEETHER KM
ERERRE MRESERRERREEL-

TRRDEEENHHESIER S HULEM
YF #BEROM A o

202437 BIRENZE  EHERFBEFT LA
T (HBEEERI) - ARFEETERE ((1)E
fEeR S EREHBEME MR HBERE
BENER RUEAELS FEORIE AR
HERBOEETHE ; Q)BRFMNEERRA
BEBHMNE REEATERR TEXER
A WmMEBEMEBASTERR; @)MBRERE
HKEFEEE RETHEDR TIHEHENHEHAE
ZR2MNER HEERBUFNETE -

2024F 4R BERERZEM(BNTHEEM
E) 0 B2024F6A1HEENMTT - ZBEEMIER
Ho BHHEEREBHENTEHENETE
AMLE2EH EANMBREBNITH RITE
THETRIETRZNEEEESERE
MEE THEBECE - BHARE2HMEE
NBEBERSTRAPHNTEERT BEREMN
HiERRZTRHEBREE -

2024 FERE | FEREENERERERAE

21



22

In April 2024, the NDRC issued the “Basic Rules for the Operation
of Power Market” ({(BHHIZFETEAIRE)), which clarified that
the capacity trading target was the output capacity that can reliably
support the maximum load provided by power generation units, energy
storage, etc., in a certain period of time in the future. According to
the need of new power system construction, the establishment of
a market-based mechanism for recovering capacity costs will be
gradually promoted, exploring ways such as capacity compensation
and capacity markets to guide rational investment by business entities
and ensure adequate long-term capacity in the power system.

In June 2024, 6 authorities including the NDRC and the Ministry of
Natural Resources jointly issued the “Notice on Carrying Out Pilot
Work for Wind Power and Photovoltaic Power Resource Survey” (B
REABRBMXAEEEREEH I TIEMNBED), which stated that
it would: (1) choose 6 provinces (regions, cities) such as Hebei, Inner
Mongolia, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Tibet and Qinghai as pilot areas to carry
out pilot work for wind power and photovoltaic power resource surveys;
(2) evaluate the endowment of wind and solar energy resources in
each pilot area, assess the power generation capacity of each area,
as well as the fluctuation characteristics and distribution patterns at
different time scales, and analyze the spatial and temporal distribution
and complementary characteristics; and (3) clarify the environmental
factors, environmentally sensitive areas, and regulatory requirements
of the wind and photovoltaic resource distributions in each area,
and under the premise of strictly adhering to relevant regulatory
requirements, propose utilizable areas for wind power and photovoltaic
power generation.

In August 2024, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Basic Rules for
Medium and Long-term Electricity Transactions — Special Chapter on
Green Electricity Transactions” (B IHEHERZE AR B EE
T EHHEE)) to promote the integration of green electricity transactions
into medium and long-term electricity transactions, and promote the
standardization and unification of green electricity transactions in
terms of transaction structuring, price mechanism, and information
disclosure. According to the Special Chapter, green electricity trading
includes intra-provincial and inter-provincial green electricity trading,
and the structuring methods principally include bilateral negotiations
and listing transactions. The price of green electricity trading includes
the price of electricity energy and the price of green certificate, and
the price of the transaction shall not be limited or specified unless
otherwise specified by the government. All localities are encouraged
to implement cross-provincial and cross-regional priority power
generation scale plans through green electricity trading, and regions
that meet the conditions shall carry out green electricity trading in
different time periods or with power curves.

In September 2024, the NEA issued the “Basic Rules for the
Registration of the Electricity Market” (B HEMEARRAD), with
a total of 8 chapters and 51 articles, focusing on the basic conditions
for registration, registration applications, information changes, market
cancellation, opposition processing, supervision and management.
Highlights include: promoting the national unified regulation of market
registration business, promoting “information sharing with a single
registration”, serving the rapid development and market entry needs
of new business entities, clarifying the standards of the whole process
of market registration business, and clarifying the supervision and
management responsibilities of market registration business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Thirdly, it is necessary to focus on the construction of the consumption
and absorption of local projects to achieve rapid and orderly
development.

In January 2024, the NEA issued the “Key Points on Energy Regulation
Work for 2024" ({2024FfEREEE TIEFER)), anchoring its
regulatory work on the two objectives of ensuring energy security
and promoting green and low-carbon transformation. The key
points of regulation include overseeing the implementation of the
principal goals, key tasks and major projects of the national “14th
Five-Year Plan” in terms of energy planning by provinces (regions,
cities), continuously tracking the progress of cross-provincial and
cross-regional power transmission channels, large-scale wind and
photovoltaic bases, distributed photovoltaic projects, etc. It also
indicates to orderly promote the participation of new energy in the
market transactions, gradually expand the trading scale of green
power, expedite the construction of green power and green certificate
markets, and cultivate the green power consumption market.

In February 2024, 7 authorities including the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology and the NDRC jointly issued the “Guiding
Opinions on Accelerating the Green Development of Manufacturing
Industries” ((BARMIREB N EXSEBEERNIEERR)), which
clarified to: (1) encourage qualified enterprises and parks to build
industrial green microgrids, and utilize renewable energy nearby in
large scale and high proportion; (2) increase the proportion of green
power consumption by promoting the substitution of raw materials
such as green hydrogen and enhancing the supply capacity of
natural gas, ethane, propane, and other raw materials, and increase
the proportion of green and low-carbon raw materials; (3) make
proactive arrangements for the future industries in the green and
low-carbon fields, build a technical equipment system of the whole
industrial chain of production, storage, transportation and utilization of
hydrogen energy centering on the hydrogen demand in the fields of
petrochemical engineering, steel, transportation, energy storage and
power generation. Also, it stated to build a matrix of energy storage
technology products that are necessary for the new power system to
achieve large-scale application of multi-time scale energy storage.

In April 2024, the NDRC released the “Notice on Certain Policies and
Measures Concerning of Supporting the Green, Low-carbon and High-
quality Development of Inner Mongolia” (BN XHFAF H&EEE
e E2%ES THERIEMEA)). Such notice pointed out the
necessity to develop new energy more aggressively, also focusing
on Kubugqi, Ulan Buh, Tengger and Badain Jaran Deserts, to build a
large-scale wind power and photovoltaic base and actively develop
solar thermal power generation, to support Inner Mongolia to explore
differentiated policies conducive to the high-level development and
utilization of new energy based on local conditions, to innovate the
model of high-proportion consumption and utilization of renewable
energy, and to orderly promote the substitution of green electricity for
high energy-consuming enterprises. It also supports Inner Mongolia to
carry out pilot projects for green power trading.
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In May 2024, the State Council issued the “Action Plan for Energy
Conservation and Carbon Reduction in 2024-2025" ({ 2024-
2025 FHIREPRIRITEN S EE ), which clarified to: (1) intensify the
development of non-fossil energy, accelerate the construction of
large-scale wind power and photovoltaic bases focusing on deserts,
gobi and barren lands, develop offshore wind power in a reasonable
and orderly manner, promote the development and utilization of
distributed new energy, orderly construct large-scale hydro power
bases, develop nuclear power in an active, safe and orderly manner,
develop biomass energy based on local conditions, and promote
the coordinated development of hydrogen energy; (2) enhance the
consumption capacity of renewable energy, accelerate the construction
of transmission channels for large-scale wind power and photovoltaic
bases, accelerate the transformation of distribution networks,
actively develop pumped hydro storage and new energy storage,
and vigorously develop new technologies and new models such
as microgrids, virtual power plants and vehicle-grid interaction; (3)
vigorously promote non-fossil energy consumption. Under the premise
of ensuring economic efficiency, the utilization rate of new energy in
areas with good resource conditions can be reduced to 90%.

In July 2024, four authorities including the NDRC and the NEA
jointly issued the “Special Action Plan for Green and Low-carbon
Development of Data Centers” ((BiEH O & EREREZIETE
1)), suggesting to increase the utilization level of renewable energy.
Taking the goals and plans of renewable energy utilization of new and
renovated data centers as an important part of energy conservation
review, the utilization rate of renewable energy in new data center
projects will be improved year by year. On the basis of stable support
of power supply and flexible adjusting capabilities, the collaborative
layout of new data centers and renewable energy power generation will
be guided in a way to improve the power load adjusting and matching
capabilities. Data centers are encouraged to improve the utilization
of renewable energy by participating in green electricity and green
certificate trading. Relevant regions are encouraged to explore the
development of direct green power supply for data centers. By the end
of 2025, the bi-directional cooperation mechanism of computing power
and electricity will initially take shape, and green electricity will account
for more than 80% of the newly built data centers at national hubs and
nodes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In October 2024, six authorities including the NDRC jointly issued
the “Guidelines on Further Implementation of Renewable Energy
Alternative Actions” (BAR K NEMAIBEERERITENIEE
= 8 )), proposing that by 2030, the national renewable energy
consumption shall reach 1.5 billion tons of standard coal consumption
or more, with accelerated application of alternative renewable energy
in key areas such as industry, transportation, construction, agriculture
and new infrastructure. At the same time, the document clarified
the following key tasks: (1) promoting the green and low-carbon
transition of industrial energy in a collaborative manner; scientifically
guiding the orderly relocation of industries to areas rich in renewable
energy resources and capable of supporting resources and the
environment, and strengthening the integrated development of steel,
non-ferrous metals, petrochemicals, building materials, textiles, paper
and other industries with renewable energy. In the fields of ammonia
synthesis, methanol synthesis, petrochemical, steel and other fields,
replacement of low hydrocarbon with high hydrocarbon in large scale,
and exploration in the construction of wind hydro ammonium-alcohol
integration bases are encouraged; (2) full support in the modernized
use of clean energy for agricultural purposes in rural areas, and active
development of decentralized wind power and distributed photovoltaic
power generation in potential rural areas; (3) coordination of the
development and utilization of new infrastructure and renewable
energy; promoting the integration of 5G base stations, data centers,
and supercomputing centers with photovoltaics, heat pumps, and
energy storage; promoting the deep integration of artificial intelligence,
the Internet of Things, and blockchain with renewable energy;
supporting the development of new infrastructure projects for direct
supply of green electricity and the integration of power generation,
grid, load and storage, carrying out green certification and green
electricity trading and the construction of “green electricity parks”,
and increasing the proportion of new energy consumption in strategic
projects such as “Eastern Data, Western Computing” GREIFAE); (4)
promoting integrated and innovative business models; promoting the
deep-level and three-dimensional development of photovoltaic sand
control, photovoltaic corridors and marine ranches; (5) accelerating
pilot applications; carrying out pilot applications such as far-reaching
floating offshore wind power, and promoting deep joint operation of
solar thermal and wind power photovoltaic; carrying out pilot projects
for direct green power supply in factories and industrial parks, and
promoting pilot projects for the comprehensive utilization of renewable
energy in the form of grid construction, isolated grid operation and
self-sufficiency.
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In December 2024, the NEA issued the “Guiding Opinions on
Supporting the Innovative Development of New Business Entities in the
Power Sector” (BN ZFHENEEMAULES FRBANEENIEER
B )). The document proposed: (1) new business entities be divided
into single-technology new business entities and resource-aggregation
new business entities. In particular, single-technology new business
entities primarily include distributed photovoltaic, decentralized wind
power, energy storage and other distributed power sources and
adjustable loads; new resource-aggregation business entities primarily
include virtual power plants (load aggregators) and smart microgrids;
(2) support be given to the innovative development of new business
entities; supporting qualified industrial enterprises and industrial parks
in carrying out the construction of smart microgrids, and exploring
the establishment of a mechanism to increase the supply of green
electricity to enterprises through direct connection of new energy; (3)
improving the scheduling and operation management of new business
entities; accelerating the promotion of new business entities to achieve
observable, measurable, adjustable and controllable deliverables in all
localities; encouraging the provision of electrical energy and auxiliary
services by new business entities with a regulating capacity of 5 MW
or more and meeting the requirements of the corresponding technical
indicators; (4) encouraging new business entities to participate equally
in the power market.

Offshore wind power:

In 2024, with the continued introduction of supportive policies, the
emergence of new models such as the integrated development
of offshore wind power together with the continued decline in
development cost for offshore wind power were presenting ample
space for development for the sector.

Firstly, offshore wind power in the deep sea and remote marine areas
will be an important development trend in the future. In March 2024,
the NEA issued the “Guidance on Energy Work in 2024” ({20244 fE
JETEIEEE R )), calling for coordinating and optimizing the layout
of offshore wind power, promoting the construction of offshore wind
power bases, and promoting the development of offshore wind power
to the deep water and remote marine areas in a steady and orderly
manner.

Secondly, new technologies continue to emerge. On the one hand, the
trend of upsized offshore wind turbines is obvious. The output of the
largest offshore wind turbine manufactured in China has experienced
a rapid growth from 10 MW in 2019 to 18 MW in 2023. On the other
hand, floating offshore wind turbines have entered the early stage of
industrialization. With the implementation of the offshore wind power
“single 30” (i.e. projects should be located 30 kilometers offshore or
a minimum depth of 30 meters underwater) policy, a floating offshore
wind turbine that adapts to the deep sea and remote marine areas
will become an important type of project in the future. Currently, there
have been several pilot demonstration projects in China, and it is
expected that the “15th Five-Year Plan” period will usher in large-scale
development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Offshore Photovoltaic:

In 2024, with the introduction of the national offshore photovoltaic
policy, China’s offshore photovoltaic has entered a stage of rapid
development. However, affected by factors such as project construction
costs and the overall environment of the photovoltaic industry, the
overall promotion of offshore photovoltaic projects is slow at present.
Considering the rapid economic development of China’s coastal areas
and favourable regional consumption conditions, offshore photovoltaic
projects have higher green value of energy saving and carbon
reduction, and therefore still have ample development potential.

In January 2024, the Ministry of Natural Resources issued the “Notice
on Statistical Management of Offshore Photovoltaic Projects” ({BA %%
e X RIBE AEBEEIERIER)), clarifying that from the date
of issuance of the document, acceptance of applications for offshore
photovoltaic projects or the approval of market-oriented transfer

schemes for offshore photovoltaic projects would be suspended.

In December 2024, the Ministry of Natural Resources, the NDRC,
and the National Forestry and Grassland Administration issued
the “Guidance Catalog for High-Quality Development of Natural
Resource Element-Supporting Industries (the 2024 version)” ({(B
RERBEZIZBEXSEESLERBIEEHR (20245F4))), which
clarified that offshore photovoltaic power projects shall not be located
outside the provincial management of the sea area, and, within the
provincial management of sea area, only four types of developed and
constructed sea areas are allowed, including the encirclement of sea
culture area, offshore wind farm area, warm drainage area of power
plants (with authentic right), long-term idle or abandoned salt pan.
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Energy Storage:

Since the introduction of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, new energy plus
energy storage has become the norm, and with the increasingly
prominent issue of new energy consumption, relevant policies are
still stringent. In 2024, energy storage policies have demonstrated
a more refined trend according to the situations of different regions.
Firstly, the requirement on proportion of storage was not reduced, and
the construction method was more flexible. Storage can be acquired
by leasing or building independent energy storage, and it was not
mandatory to build separately. For example, Zhejiang Province clarified
that new energy equipped with energy storage shall be based on
co-construction and leasing, supplemented with self-construction.
Guangdong, Hebei, Sichuan, Jiangsu and other provinces can allocate
storage across cities. Secondly, some provinces with difficulty in
consumption will link the energy storage with the rate of new energy
rationing. For example, Qinghai Province clarified that new energy
projects that fail to allocate storage on schedule and in full will set
a penalty factor of 3 times for the allocation of auxiliary service
costs from the date of grid-connection, and priority will be given to
the impact of power generation limitation when there is a situation
of abandoning wind and photovoltaic power. Ningxia proposed that
if no energy storage is allocated or the lease of energy storage is
not renewed after the expiration of the lease, priority will be given to
abandon power to 10% of the installed capacity when the new energy
consumption is difficult. At the same time, although the requirements
for new energy equipped with energy storage are not reduced, in
response to problems such as low energy storage utilization and poor
returns, Shandong, Henan and other provinces have successively
introduced policies to convert new energy equipped with energy
storage to independent energy storage. After the new energy equipped
with energy storage is turned into independent energy storage, it
can participate in the power market as an independent market entity,
and the power grid can be more fully leveraged and can contribute
greater values, and it is expected that more provinces will introduce
similar policies. Thirdly, the policy will encourage the development and
application of long-term energy storage and grid energy storage. For
example, the latest policy of Ningxia proposed that the configuration
of long-term energy storage (more than 4 hours) can be converted
into energy storage capacity at a ratio of 1.2 times of the power. Tibet
requires new energy equipped with energy storage to be grid type
energy storage.

Korean power market:

As the Korea’s power market is undergoing a transformation of energy
structure, it is expected that there would be an increase in renewable
energy and natural gas power plants in the future. As the operation of
new power plants would intensify the competition in the power market,
the profitability of Korean gas-fired power generation companies might
be hindered. However, gas-fired power plants can respond quickly to
the intermittency of power generation of renewable energy. Therefore,
as renewable energy develops, the importance of gas-fired power
plants also increases. Also, the hydrogen power generation bidding
market has been opened in Korea, and gas-fired power plants can
participate in this market through the conversion of co-firing with
hydrogen to increase the revenue sources as well.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s portfolio of assets comprises wind, solar, gas-fired, coal-
fired, oil-fired, hydro, cogen, fuel cell and biomass power generation
projects and an energy storage project, which are in the PRC and
Korea power markets. The Group’s business in the PRC covers
19 provinces, two autonomous regions and one municipality with a
wide geographical coverage and diversified business scope. As of 31
December 2024, the operations in the PRC and Korea accounted for
approximately 79.3% and 20.7% of the Group’s attributable installed
capacity of 10,452.4 MW, respectively. Clean and renewable energy
projects (namely, wind, solar, gas-fired, hydro, fuel cell and biomass
projects) accounted for 85.1% of the Group’s attributable installed
capacity; and conventional energy projects (namely, coal-fired, oil-fired
and cogen projects) accounted for 14.9% of our attributable installed
capacity.

The following table sets out items selected by us from the results of
the Group (by fuel type):

PRC
Coal-fired,
Cogen and
Korea Gas-fired
Projects Projects
HE R -
HEMER
US$ million BEET HEEE MRER
For the year ended HF20245F12831A0
31 December 2024 LEE
Revenue WA 909.8 121.3
Operating expenses RERY (800.1) (105.7)
Operating profit/(loss)  &&#EF,/ (E18) 109.7 15.6
Profit/(loss) for the year FRiEF]/ (§518) 75.0 16.1
Profit/(loss) attributable AT EHRE
to equity shareholders  FE{LEF] / (E518)
of the Company 75.0 15.5
For the year ended HE20235F12831H
31 December 2023
Revenue 1,151.0 133.4
Operating expenses (1,039.8) (120.0)
Operating profit/(loss) weEhEm/ (518) 11.2 13.4
Profit/(loss) for the year — ERHF],/ (518) 715 16.4
Profit/(loss) attributable to AT R E
equity shareholders FEIEER/ (518)
of the Company 715 15.2

PRC
Hydro
Projects

HEKE
EHH

9.0
(6.1)

1.4

1.1

7.0
(6.1)
0.9
(4.2)

(4.6)
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TREBVERMEAEENEEPRENES
(kD 48)

PRC PRC

Wind Solar
Projects Projects  Corporate Total

TERE PEKREE
IER 1EH ¥ st
687.0 142.9 81.3 1,951.3
(342.3) (86.2) (82.6) (1,423.0)
344.7 56.7 (1.3) 528.3
236.5 24.6 (95.3) 258.3
228.4 23.3 (95.3) 248.0
702.4 1341 65.1 2,193.0
(329.9) (75.3) (69.4) (1,640.5)
3725 58.8 (4.3) 552.5
269.0 29.0 (102.1) 279.6
259.5 28.2 (102.1) 267.7
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Korea Projects

The fuel margin as well as the operating profit of Korea projects
remained stable in 2024. In addition, as the compensation income
from fuel cell project was offset by the impairment loss recognized in
respect of the property, plant and equipment of fuel cell project, the
profit of Korea Projects in 2024 remained stable.

PRC Coal-fired, Cogen and Gas-fired
Projects

The profit for the year remained stable compared with last year, which
was mainly attributable to the offsetting impact of the increase in profit
of the coal-fired and cogen projects due to the decrease in market
coal price and the decrease in profit of the gas-fired project due to the
increase in operating expenses.

PRC Wind Projects

The decrease in revenue for the year was mainly attributable to the
decrease in power generation from wind projects. Due to a year-on-
year increase in grid curtailment in 2024, the average utilization hours
of the wind projects decreased compared with last year. Overall, the
operating profit for the year decreased to US$344.7 million.

PRC Solar Projects

The increase in revenue for the year was mainly attributable to the
increase in installed capacity from solar projects. Due to a year-on-
year increase in grid curtailment in 2024, the average utilization hours
of the solar projects decreased compared with last year. The operating
expenses increased comparatively as more new solar projects came
into operation in 2024. Therefore, the operating profit for the year
decreased to US$56.7 million.
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. =1
Installed Capacity HHAE
The attributable installed capacity of the Group’s power assets as at AEBEFRBEEEEN2024F %2023F128
31 December 2024 and 2023 by fuel type are set out as follows: SITHMEREKAERME AR EIHIW
T
As at 31 December
#12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
(mMw) (MW)
(CER) CkE)
Clean and renewable energy portfolio BAZKRAUBERERAS
Wind & &= 4,436.4 4,437.8
Solar PNCES 2,545.4 1,759.4
Gas-fired R 1,745.0 1,700.0
Hydro IKE 56.3 56.3
Biomass EYE 109.5 109.5
Subtotal NEE 8,892.6 8,063.0
Conventional energy portfolio B RES
Coal-fired R IR 989.8 989.8
Qil-fired IS 507.0 507.0
Cogen B E 63.0 63.0
Subtotal NS 1,559.8 1,559.8
Total attributable installed capacity HREDERAE 10,452.4 9,622.8

4,436.4 44378 o
(42.4%) (46.1%)

109.5
(1.1%)

109.5
(1.1%)

s 2024 o 2023

\ ’\'H 63.0
—* 63.0 (0.6%)
1,745.0 0.6%) 1.700.0 L 5070
5o \ L 5070 (17.7%) (5.3%)
(16.7%)
(4.8%) L 989.8
56.3 J \—. 989.8 56.3 J (10.3%)
(0.5%) N (9.5%) (0.6%) N
Total 425t : 10,452.4 wus Total 425t : 9,622.8 wws
Clean and renewable energy portfolio Conventional energy portfolio
BERUBERFES SiRaERES
/. Wind Solar Coal-fired Oil-fired ==
Tr mm e iz [ —
8,892.6 mwikE (85.1%) 2024 1,559.8 mwikE (14.9%)
Gas-fired 0 Hydro Cogen m
MR == KB mEmE O
8,063.0 MwykE (83.8%) 2023 1,5659.8 MWIKE (16.2%)
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As of 31 December 2024, the attributable installed capacity of the
Group reached 10,452.4 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of
829.6 MW or 8.6%, in particular, the newly added attributable installed
capacity of solar power amounted to 786.0 MW and the newly added
attributable installed capacity of gas-fired power amounted to 45.0
MW.

In addition, in 2024, the Group added the Jiangsu Rudong Storage
Station Project with a storage capacity of 200 MW/400 MWh.

The attributable installed capacity of wind power amounted to 4,436.4
MW, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.4 MW, whereas the
attributable installed capacity of solar power amounted to 2,545.4 MW,
representing a year-on-year increase of 786.0 MW or 44.7%. The wind
power and solar power accounted for 66.8% of the Group’s attributable
installed capacity. As of 31 December 2024, the consolidated installed
capacity of the power plants reached 9,771.0 MW.

In 2024, the Group’s newly added attributable installed capacity of
wind power of 6.6 MW was mainly distributed by region as follows:
(1) 6.6 MW in Jiangxi Province. In the first half of 2024, the Group’s
attributable installed capacity of wind power reduced by 8.0 MW,
which was because 2.86% of the equity interest of Shengsi 5#6#
Offshore Wind Power Project in Zhejiang Province was transferred to
Shengsi Scenery and Tourism Investment Co., Ltd (I E S RIFEE
BIRARD.

In 2024, the Group further strengthened the development of its solar
business, and the newly added attributable installed capacity of 786.0
MW was mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 350.0 MW from
Zhaoyuan Offshore Photovoltaic Project in Shandong Province; (2)
230.0 MW from Jianhu Fishery and Photovoltaic Complementary
Phase | Photovoltaic Project in Jiangsu Province; (3) 145.0 MW in
Hebei Province; (4) 30.0 MW in Qinghai Province; (5) 27.6 MW in
Zhejiang Province; and (6) 3.4 MW in Guangdong Province.

In January 2024, the Group achieved grid connection of a generator
set of 75.0 MW (60% held) Hanneng Phase Il natural gas distributed
project in Hubei Province.

The Group has been adhering to the principle of high-quality
development and expedited project construction comprehensively. It is
expected that the growth of new operating capacity in 2025 will remain
steady.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Safety Management

During the development process, the Company deeply implemented
General Secretary Xi Jinping’s important statement and important
directions on safety production and always insisted on the people
first and life first, upholding the policy of safety first as the key to
prevention and comprehensive management of safe production,
adhering to “three musts for three managements” (i.e. safety must be
guaranteed in management of industry, management of operation and
management of production) and the basic principles of “Safety First,
Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”. In 2024, the Company
continued to promote the construction of a quality management
system, incorporated the construction of dual prevention mechanisms
and safety, quality and environmental protection standardization as
part of our normal operation, enhanced accountability in safety, quality
and environmental protection across all levels with a multi-pronged
approach, laid a solid foundation for the Company’s safety, quality and
environmental protection management, and further improved our safety,
quality and environmental protection management level, securing a
highly stable safe production environment for the Company.

Project Construction

The year 2024 marks the 75th anniversary of the founding of the new
China, a pivotal year for the realization of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and
also a tough year where the Company strived for its breakthroughs.
Over the past year, in the face of continuous tightening of policies,
intensifying competition from peers, and a more stringent security
control environment, the Company forged ahead as one, upholding
our goals to meet the annual project construction target. We have
also implemented thoroughly a number of the Company’s decisions
and deployments, with the deep practise of the “Stringency, Prudence,
Meticulosity and Pragmatism” style of work and courage to overcome
difficulties in pursuit of solid work performance. We have achieved all
the targets and tasks for the year 2024.

Development of Preliminary Projects

The Company closely follows the country’s basic strategies, such as
achieving the “dual-carbon” goal, developing new productive forces,
and building new power systems. We focus on key areas, continue to
increase our efforts to develop new energy projects, and plan ahead
for new development paths during the “15th Five-Year Plan” period. We
will fully integrate resources, promote external cooperation, innovate
development models, break through development bottlenecks, and
formulate a complete, scientific, accurate, and forward-looking high-
quality development strategy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmADH

Power Generation

The power generation (GWh) of the projects of the Group is set out as

follows:

PRC Wind Projects hEEEER

PRC Solar Projects FEXGEEE
PRC Cogen and Gas-Fired Projects BV M E AR T
PRC Hydro Projects FEKEEE
Korea Projects EEHIEE

Total st

In 2024, faced with adverse factors such as fierce industry
competition, intensified energy rationing, and a year-on-year decrease
in wind and solar utilization hours, the Company always focused
on the assurance of production safety, strengthened production
safety management, and comprehensively eliminated equipment
operation risks; strengthened quality improvement in equipment
health management, preventive maintenance of equipment, and the
building of a strong network information safety prevention system and
information security safeguards, securing the stable supply of energy.
As of 31 December 2024, the electricity generated by the Group’s
consolidated power generation projects amounted to 19,149.7 GWh,
remaining basically constant compared to last year.

The power generation from the PRC wind projects reached 10,095.8
GWh, representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.6%.

The power generation from the PRC solar projects reached 2,121.8
GWh, representing an increase of 22.4% from last year, which was
mainly due to a year-on-year increase in the installed capacity of solar
energy projects, leading to a year-on-year increase in power generation
in 2024.

The electricity generated by the PRC cogen and gas-fired projects
amounted to 410.7 GWh, representing a year-on-year increase of
6.1%. It was mainly because the power generation of a cogen project
in Jiangsu Province increased as a result of the increase in the local
electricity demands.

The power generation from the PRC hydro projects reached 282.8
GWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.6%, mainly due to the
increase in water inflow in 2024 over last year, resulting in an increase
in power generation from PRC hydro projects in 2024.
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For the year ended 31 December

HE128318LLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
10,095.8 10,367.7
2,121.8 1,733.5
410.7 387.1
282.8 227.0
6,238.6 6,361.3
19,149.7 19,076.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The power generation from the Korea projects reached 6,238.6 GWh,
mainly from gas-fired and biomass projects, remaining basically
constant compared to last year.

The total steam sold by the Group amounted to 2,964,000 tonnes,
representing a decrease of 0.2% as compared with 2023.

The following table sets out the average utilization hour applicable to
our projects for the Group:

Average utilization hour by fuel type!”

PRC Wind Projects’®) FEEEEE®
PRC Solar Projects® FEXGEEE®
PRC Coal-fired Projects® FREMIEIER®
PRC Cogen Projects® FEAEKREBEE®
PRC Hydro Projects® FEIKEBE®
Korea Gas-fired Projects” BEMRERD
Notes:

(1)

)

(5)

(6)

Average utilization hour is the gross electricity generated in a specified period
divided by the average installed capacity in the same period.

Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2024 for the PRC
wind projects in major regions such as Gansu Province, Henan Province
and Jiangsu Province were 1,701 hours, 2,376 hours and 2,739 hours,
respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC wind projects decreased
mainly due to a year-on-year increase in grid curtailment and a year-on-year
decrease in wind resources in 2024.

Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2024 for the PRC
solar projects in major regions such as Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
Anhui Province and Jiangsu Province were 1,607 hours, 1,228 hours and
1,245 hours, respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC solar projects
decreased mainly due to a year-on-year increase in grid curtailment and a year-
on-year decrease in solar resources in 2024.

Average utilization hours for the PRC coal-fired projects decreased in 2024
due to the decrease in power generation because of the decrease in local
demand.

Average utilization hours for the PRC cogen projects increased in 2024 due to
the increase in local demand, which led to an increase in total volume of power
generation.

Average tilization hours for the PRC hydro projects increased in 2024 due
to the increase in water inflows in Sichuan Province and Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region.

The Korea gas-fired projects had lower average utilization hours in 2024 mainly
due to the lower power generation of Yulchon | Power Project as a result of a
decrease in the load of power grid dispatch in 2024.

BEESwmEADH

BHIEHEEE 56,238 650 TEEKE
MEKREYMEBE BEAFEAFT

AEBHENRKSEE%2,964,0000F > 82023
FEi0.2%e
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For the year ended 31 December

HE128318LLEE
2024 2023

20245 2023%F
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1,171 1,407
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3,470 3,514
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EEEmADH

The table below sets out the weighted average tariffs (inclusive of
value-added tax (“VAT”)) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Weighted average tariff - Electricity (inclusive of VAT)"

Unit

B
PRC Wind Projects®® RMB per kWh
FEREEE® BTEBARE
PRC Solar Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIXPEREIER® BTEBARE
PRC Coal-fired Projects RMB per kWh
AR IE B BFTEBARE
PRC Cogen Projects® RMB per kWh
EIAEHEEEY BTEBARE
PRC Hydro Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIKEBIEE® BTEBARE
Korea Gas-fired Projects® KRW per kWh
BEMRIER® STRF®T

Weighted average tariff - steam (inclusive of VAT)

INREFIGERE —ZS (FEER)

PRC Cogen Projects!” RMB per ton
RSB EEED BWARE

Notes:

(1)

2

The weighted average tariffs are affected not only by the change in the tariff for
each project but also the change in net power generation for each project.

The weighted average tariff of our PRC wind projects remained stable in 2024.
The weighted average tariff of our PRC solar projects decreased in 2024
mainly due to keen competition in electricity bid trading and lower tariffs of the
newly commissioned solar projects.

The weighted average tariff of our PRC cogen projects excludes steam tariff.
The weighted average tariff of our PRC hydro projects remained stable in
2024.

The decrease in weighted average tariff of our Korea gas-fired projects was in
line with the decrease in gas price in Korea.

The decrease in weighted average tariff of steam in 2024 was in line with the
decrease in PRC coal price.
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For the year ended 31 December

HE12B318LLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
0.57 0.56
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets out the weighted average standard coal and
gas prices (exclusive of VAT) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Unit

B
PRC weighted average RMB per ton

standard coal price"®

FRE N4 TR 2E IR E AR @ FPARE
Korea weighted average gas price"® KRW per Nm?®
BEMNEFHRAREER® FRRET T KETT
Notes:

M

The weighted average standard coal and the weighted average gas prices
are determined based on the consumption of gas or coal in each applicable
period.

The PRC weighted average standard coal price in 2024 decreased compared
to 2023 due to a decrease in market coal price.

The Korea weighted average gas price in 2024 decreased compared to 2023
due to the decrease in the prices known as the Japanese Crude Cocktail,
which are calculated with reference to the average prices of crude oil imported
into Japan and are an important determinant of natural gas prices in Korean
markets. Yulchon | Power Project’s power purchase agreement allows us to
pass on the fuel cost fluctuations of the tariff to our customers in accordance
with the laws.

Revenue and segment information

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

(1)
(2)

(3)

Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of electricity;

Power plants in Korea — Generation and supply of electricity;
and

Management companies - Provision of management services
to power plants operated by CGN and its subsidiaries.

BEESwmEADH

TRBIET XA ABERN AEEETE
REENEENMETIRERERRARER
FEHEER)

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
1,071.30 1,187.58
883.83 1,107.58
HE
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segments:

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmADH

UTHZAIE2RDBEDNAER WA KRESR
AR/

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE2024F128318 1L FE
Power plants Power plants Management
in the PRC in Korea companies Total
[ sER i
B K B BIEAT et
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue — 7 EBUL A — ISR
external 1,009,907 909,788 31,644 1,951,339
Segment results DEEE 289,510 92,811 1,507 383,828
Unallocated other income 7% fig EL U A 37
Unallocated operating RPERKLERT
expenses (11,490)
Unallocated finance costs k3 Ec 84 7 & A (39,374)
Share of results of BBE AR ERA
associates 4,251
Profit before taxation FRHR AT R A 337,252
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F128310 L FE
Power plants Power plants Management
in the PRC in Korea companies Total
FREIH BEDN
B B [=ENC| #ast
us$'000 Us$’000 Us$’000 USs$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue — 7 EBUL A — N ER
external 1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
Segment results DEEE 303,791 91,246 1,393 396,430
Unallocated other income &% fig E U A 37
Unallocated operating RAPERKERS
expenses (3,532)
Unallocated finance costs k%) fic B4 #5 & F3 (43,429)
Share of results of BGBE AR ER
associates 3,022
Profit before taxation 18 Al & A 352,528

Segment revenue of power plants in the PRC decreased by 0.3%,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in weighted average
tariffs of PRC cogen projects and decrease in power generation of
PRC wind projects.

Segment results of power plants in the PRC decreased by 4.7%, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in impairment losses and
disposal loss recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment.

Segment revenue of power plants in Korea decreased by 21.0%, which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in both weighted average tariff
and power generation.

Segment results of power plants in Korea increased by 1.7%, which
was mainly attributable to the compensation income from fuel cell
project.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

Segment assets

Power plants in the PRC
Power plants in Korea
Management companies

Total segment assets
Interests in associates
Unallocated
- Right-of-use assets
- Others

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities
Power plants in the PRC
Power plants in Korea
Management companies

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated
- Bank borrowings

- Loans from fellow subsidiaries

- Lease liabilities
- Others

Consolidated liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, both segment assets and liabilities of power
plants in the PRC increased mainly due to increase in purchase of

DT
At 31 December
®12H831H

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET

FEEE
B B9 E R 7,279,722 6,894,919
B8 (5 19 2 AR 1,327,720 1,335,257
BIEAT 1,327 954
DWEELE 8,608,769 8,231,130
R E A BN R 78,777 75,929

FOER

—FRAEEE 1,586 1,136
—HAth 28,576 41,947
REBE 8,717,708 8,350,142

SEEE
FE Y E 5,465,778 5,201,487
52 B0 09 B K 684,068 647,951
BERQT 659 573
DEEEEEE 6,150,505 5,850,011

Eai
—iR{TEE 348,132 100,000
—RERZKBABNER 450,000 700,000
—AEaE 1,633 1,151
—HAth 7,901 10,421
REB8E 6,958,171 6,661,583
HE2024F 128318 FEERDBNEE K

property, plant and equipment and increase in bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2024, segment assets of power plants in Korea
remained at a similar level while segment liabilities of power plants in

Korea increased mainly due to increase in bank borrowings.

UTHEZAIERDBEADNAEREEKRER

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Scientific and Technological Innovation

The Company continues to play a leading role in technological
innovation in new energy across the industrial chain, strengthen energy
technology innovation capabilities, promote industrial integration
and business integration through technological integration, adhere
to the “value creation” orientation based on demonstration project,
promote the innovation of green development mode led by new energy,
strengthen the construction of digital systems operated and maintained
by green power, seize the initiative in innovative development of
offshore wind and solar power, and actively leverage the role of energy
storage in new power systems. The Company aims to accelerate the
transformation of achievements to serve the market and continues to
shape new development momentum and new advantages, so as to
boost high-quality development of the Company.

In the field of green power digital operation and maintenance: the
Company develops intelligent operation and maintenance equipment
to create highly efficient and reliable power station operation
capabilities, achieving unmanned operation of power stations. The
Company applies intelligent analysis and forecasting tools to maximize
the benefits of power market tradings, also focuses on promoting
demonstration projects such as onshore wind farms, digital twins of
offshore wind turbine equipment, and unmanned photovoltaic power
stations.

The advanced technology integration project for offshore wind power: it
aims to steadily advance the research and engineering demonstration
of key issues in offshore grid parity, floating wind and photovoltaic
power, and new power systems, with the goal of building a maritime
power, serving energy security, and creating a major strategic
pillar for the offshore wind development. The Company actively
promotes the offshore fixed photovoltaic technology demonstration
project in Zhaoyuan, Shandong Province, the first large-scale pile-
supported fixed deep water offshore photovoltaic project in China, and
establishes a complete set of process systems for the construction
of large-scale pile-supported fixed deep water offshore photovoltaic
projects, accumulating rich experience in offshore photovoltaic
construction and supporting the development of large-scale projects of
the Company.

In the field of energy storage: with the purpose of leveraging the
role of energy storage in the new power system, the Company
focuses on safety, efficiency and economy, carries out research on
key liquid energy storage and heat storage technologies and their
application demonstrations centered on leading technologies for new
energy storage including electrochemical energy storage, molten salt
energy storage, compressed air, etc., and promotes the high-quality
development of the Company’s energy storage business. In September
2024, the Company, with its self-developed safety and health
monitoring platform for lithium-ion battery storage stations, was named
among the “First Group of Outstanding Pilots in Safety Monitoring
Information Platform for Electrochemical Energy Storage Stations in
China” by the China Electricity Council (FTEI BT (EE D).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Through research and development of wind power equipment health
status prediction technology, the Company has established the
country’s first professional platform in mainland China for predicting
and warning wind power equipment’s safe operation. This platform
realizes real-time data monitoring, analysis and processing, fault pre-
warning and diagnosis, operation and maintenance management,
and maintenance support for wind power equipment, marking a shift
from traditional maintenance to lean maintenance for new energy
power stations, further improving automation levels. This technological
achievement has been awarded the first-class prize by China
Renewable Energy Society (TEIFI BEERE D).

The Company attaches great importance to the development of
future industries. In April 2024, at the Parallel Forum for Innovative
Development of Future Industries jointly organized by the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, the Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC, the NDRC, and the Beijing
Municipal People’s Government, the Company’s operation and
maintenance achievements were selected as one of the “Excellent
Cases for Innovative Development of Future Industries in 2024” (2024

RREXEAHERESHIZEG).
Social Responsibility

Since 2024, while developing its main responsibilities and main
business, the Company has carried out public welfare projects from
a high position. It has fulfilled its social responsibilities as a central
state-owned enterprise in a down-to-earth manner by creating public
welfare emergency relief points, constructing cement roads to facilitate
the travel of villagers, and launching safety promotion activities, etc.

In April 2024, the Angiu Huangminshan Wind Power Project of the
Company in Shandong Province organized personnel to actively assist
the local forest fire brigades in successfully conducting the forest
firefighting work.

In June 2024, a fish stocking scheme was commenced by the
Company’s Rudong H8# Offshore Wind Power Project in Jiangsu
Province, releasing 293,000 Fugu flavidus, effectively promoting the
efficiency of fisheries and increasing fishermen’s income.

In August 2024, in order to better protect the environment of the
photovoltaic area, the Company’s Dangtu Fishing-Photovoltaic Power
Complementary Power Station in Anhui Province launched a lake
surface garbage cleanup activity to protect the lake ecosystem and
improve the lake’s water quality.

In September 2024, the Company’s Dachaidan Solar Project (Xitieshan
Phase I, Il and Ill) in Qinghai Province made donation to the Education
Bureau of Henan County to reward the students who achieved
outstanding results in the 2024 college entrance examination of
Henan County, so as to motivate more students to pursue excellence
and climb up the ladder of excellence, and to further stimulate the
enthusiasm of the students towards learning.
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In October 2024, the Company’s Mingshui Wind Farm in Heilongjiang
Province actively organized operation and maintenance personnel
to sink into the countryside and go deep into the fields. They widely
publicized the hazards and legal liabilities of the disorderly burning of
straws from environmental pollution, fire hazards and other aspects by
hanging banners, posting slogans and other means to assist the local
government in guiding the public to participate consciously in thoughts
and actions, and to promote the extension of environmental protection
to the “last kilometer”.

In October 2024, the Company’s Luanping County Photovoltaic
Agricultural Integrated Demonstration Project in Chengde City,
Hebei Province made donation to Luanping County, Chengde City to
contribute to the development of rural revitalization in Luanping County.

In November 2024, the Company’s Hengfeng County Qilinfeng Wind
Farm in Jiangxi Province built a new 5-kilometer hardened concrete
road, and installed auxiliary guardrails and drainage facilities along
the road, which have greatly facilitated the villagers’ travel; meanwhile,
the road leads directly to the scenic spots near the wind turbines built
by the government, effectively promoting the development of the local
“China Starry Night Reserve * Geyuan” ((HEERERKRE TREM « B
J81) tourism.

Brand Promotion: Recognitions and Awards

The Company has always attached great importance to investor
relations and environmental, social and governance (ESG) work, and
continues to demonstrate the investment value of the Company and the
industry to the capital market and investors.

In July 2024, the Company received a total of nine titles at the 10th
Investor Relations Awards from the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association (HKIRA), not only the “Best IR Company”, the “Best ESG
(Environmental)”, the “Best ESG (Social)”, the “Best Annual Report”,
the “Best IR by Chairman/CEQ”, the “Best IR by CFO”, the “Best
IRO” and the “Best IR Team” but also the highest honor at this award
ceremony, being the “Overall Best Investor Relations Company” award
(one for each category of large, medium, and small cap stocks in
Hong Kong stock market, with the Company being the only winner in
the small cap stocks).

In July 2024, the Company was awarded the “Listed Companies with
the Most Growth Potential” by “China Financial Market” ({4 El&d
& )) magazine. Such award represents not only a recognition for the
Company’s potential in capital market, but also for the contribution
of the Company in new energy field. In the “Annual Listed Company
Investment Data Ranking 2024” released by ShenZhen Comein
Finance Technology Co., Ltd. in December 2024, the representative
from the Company’s investor relations department was recognised with
the “Best Innovation Practice” award.

The Company has always adhered to the work style of “Stringency,
Prudence, Meticulosity and Pragmatism” as always, aggressively
carried out the quality improvement of equipment operation, and
improved the availability of equipment and high quality management
level through preventive maintenance measures such as fault warning
and in-depth management of equipment. At the same time, we will
provide intensive training to skilled technicians and talents, and
give play to the craftsman spirit of a superpower, so as to assist the
Company in high quality development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In April 2024, the Zhejiang Provincial Energy Association organized
the “Excellent Achievements in Quality Management” awards, and the
Company’s Shengsi 5#6# Offshore Wind Power Project in Zhejiang
Province won two outstanding achievements.

In May 2024, the Company’s Beiba Wind Power Project in Gansu
Province and Jiuguan Microgrid Photovoltaic Project in Gansu Province
were awarded two advancement-level honors and one advancement-
level honor for “China Quality Innovation and Quality Improvement
Achievements” by the China Quality ((FFEIE & )) magazine press
respectively.

In May 2024, the Company’s Anqiu Taipingshan Phase | Wind
Power Project in Shandong Province won three third-class honors in
the “Power Industry Quality Management Group” by the Shandong
Province Electricity Association.

In July 2024, the China Electricity Power Technology Market
Association published the results, where the Company’s Datong
Majialiang Wind Power Project in Shanxi Province and Haorun Wind
Power Project in Qinghai Province were awarded the “Advanced
Achievement in Fault-Free Wind Farm Management” and the “100-Day
Fault-Free Wind Farm Management Achievement”, respectively, setting
up a benchmark for fault-free wind farms.

In August 2024, the China Electricity Council (FEIE H{E¥EE
&) announced the results, where the Company’s Longnan Yangcun
Wind Power Project in Jiangxi Province was awarded the honor of
“5A-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation
Statistical Indicators for National Wind Farms in China”, and each of
the Zhangbei Xinsheng Wind Farm in Hebei Province, Leling Zhuiji
Wind Farm in Shandong Province and Baoying Xianfeng Wind Farm
in Jiangsu Province was awarded the honor of “4A-level Unit in the
Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for
National Wind Farms in China”.

In August 2024, the Company’s Ren County Wind Farm in Hebei
Province was awarded the Certificate of Honor for “Advanced
Enterprise in Environmental Protection” by the Xingtai City Bureau
of Ecology and Environment. All staff of the wind farm actively
implemented ecological protection and restoration work during the
operation of the wind farm, planting suitable greenery around the wind
turbine foundations to promote the stability and balance of the local
ecosystem. At the same time, we worked closely with neighboring
government departments to enhance the public awareness and
support for renewable energy and environmental protection.

In September 2024, the Company’s Cenxi Dalong Wind Power Project
in the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region was awarded the “Small
and Medium Quality China Power Project” by the China Electric Power
Construction Association and a category Il achievement of “Guangxi
Quality Management Team Activity” by Guangxi Quality Association.

In September 2024, the Company’s Chenzhou Qijia Jiangbeishan
Wind Power Project in Hunan Province was honored with the
“Excellent Quality Management Team” by the Hunan Provincial Quality
Association.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

In 2024, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$1,951.3 million,
representing a decrease of 11.0% compared with last year. In 2024,
the operating profit of the Group amounted to US$528.3 million,
representing a decrease of 4.4% compared with last year.

In 2024, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to US$248.0 million, representing a decrease of US$19.7
million or 7.3% compared with last year. In 2024, the profit of the
Group amounted to US$258.3 million, representing a decrease of
US$21.3 million or 7.6% compared with last year.

If one-off adjustments were taken out, which mainly include (1)
impairment losses and disposal loss recognized in respect of property,
plant and equipment of US$45.6 million and US$7.7 million in 2024
and 2023 respectively, and (2) impairment losses recognized in
respect of goodwill of US$3.3 million and US$8.7 million in 2024
and 2023 respectively, the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 would have
increased by 4.5% compared with last year.

Revenue

In 2024, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$1,951.3 million,
representing a decrease of 11.0% compared with US$2,193.0 million
of last year. The revenue derived from wind projects in the PRC
amounted to US$687.0 million, representing a decrease of 2.2%
compared with US$702.4 million of last year. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in power generation.

The revenue derived from Korea in 2024 amounted to US$909.8
million, representing a decrease of 21.0% compared with US$1,151.0
million of last year. Such decrease in revenue was mainly attributable
to the decrease in both weighted average tariff and power generation
of Korea gas-fired projects.

Operating Expenses

In 2024, the operating expenses of the Group amounted to
US$1,423.0 million, representing a decrease of 13.3% compared with
US$1,640.5 million of last year. The decrease in operating expenses
was mainly due to a decrease in gas costs of Korea gas-fired projects.
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The breakdown of operating expenses is analyzed below:

Operating expenses:
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Repair and maintenance

Staff costs

Recognition of loss allowance of trade and
other receivables and contract assets

Other operating expenses (note)

Total operating expenses

Note:

Operation support expenses

Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Transportation and entertainment expenses
Other taxes, surcharges and duties
Insurance expenses

Expense relating to short-term leases
Outsourcing expenses

Tools and consumables

Consultancy fees

Office expenses

Miscellaneous operating expenses
REC inventory decrease/(increase)
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Operating Profit

In 2024, the operating profit, which is equal to revenue minus
operating expenses, of the Group amounted to US$528.3 million,
representing a decrease of US$24.2 million or 4.4% compared with
US$552.5 million of last year. The decrease in operating profit was
mainly caused by the decrease in revenue from the PRC wind projects
due to a decrease in power generation.

Other Income

Other income mainly represented compensation income from Korea’s
fuel cell project, interest income and government grants. In 2024, other
income of the Group amounted to US$42.6 million, representing an
increase of US$22.8 million compared with US$19.8 million of last
year. The increase in other income was mainly due to recognition of
compensation income from Korea’s fuel cell project.

Other Gains and Losses

In 2024, the other losses amounted to US$56.7 million, representing
an increase of US$46.7 million compared with US$10.0 million of last
year. In 2024, the other losses were primarily impairment losses of
US$11.9 million and US$24.2 million recognized in respect of property,
plant and equipment due to the turbine substitution revamp for our
PRC wind projects and insufficient stack module supply to support
normal operation of Korea’s fuel cell project, respectively. In addition, a
disposal loss of property, plant and equipment of US$9.5 million was
recognized due to the effect of typhoons on our PRC solar projects.

Finance Costs

In 2024, the finance costs of the Group amounted to US$181.2 million,
representing a decrease of US$31.6 million or 14.8% compared with
US$212.8 million of last year. The decrease in finance costs was
mainly attributable to the decrease in weighted average interest rate of
bank borrowings.

Share of Results of Associates

In 2024, the share of profit of associates amounted to US$4.3 million,
representing an increase of US$1.3 million compared with US$3.0
million of last year. The increase in profits of the associates was mainly
attributable to the decrease in market coal price during the year.

Income Tax

In 2024, the income tax of the Group amounted to US$79.0 million,
representing an increase of US$6.1 million or 8.3% compared with
US$72.9 million of last year, which was mainly due to the expiration of
the preferential tax rate periods of certain subsidiaries in the PRC.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$287.5
million as at 31 December 2023 to US$158.4 million as at 31
December 2024, which was mainly due to the increase in net cash
used in investing activities.

Net Debt/Equity Ratio

The Group’s net debt/equity ratio increased from 3.30 as at 31
December 20283 to 3.49 as at 31 December 2024, which was mainly
due to the increase in bank borrowings.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 25 March 2025, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024 of 1.445 US cents per Share (equivalent to 11.27 HK
cents per Share), totalling approximately US$62.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$483.6 million), which is calculated based on
4,289,924,000 Shares in issue on 25 March 2025. The payout ratio of
the proposed dividend is 25% of the profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for the financial year of 2024.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per Share, EREF
basic and diluted - calculated based on
the number of ordinary shares

outstanding at year end

Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per Share (profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company)
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables — contracts with customers B EWRDR—FEE &R

W EERREE

Less: allowance for credit losses

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates:

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
91 - 180 days 91FE180H
Over 180 days 180 A E

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$137.1 million
(2023: US$174.9 million) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 20 to 90 days from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$749.5
million (2023: US$591.1 million) from the tariff income receivables.
These receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant
government authorities pursuant to the Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice
on the Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff of
Renewable Energy. The collection of tariff income receivables is
subject to settlement by state grid companies upon finalization of
the allocation of funds by relevant PRC government authorities to the
state grid companies. As a result, the tariff income receivables are not
considered as overdue or in default.
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The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
During the year ended 31 December 2024, expected credit losses of
US$13.8 million (2023: US$2.9 million) in respect of trade receivables
were recognized and expected credit losses of US$5.4 million (2023:
US$5.7 million) in respect of contract assets were recognized.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

Contract Assets

Tariff income from sales of renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses

W EEEREA

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff
Subsidy List (the “List”) by the relevant government authorities. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the right to
receive payments becomes unconditional, i.e. after each of the Group’s
operating power plants is included in the List.

Trade Payables

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
Over 90 days 90H M E

HERBAERRGE
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As at 31 December

128318
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
411,547 383,732
(20,737) (15,586)
390,810 368,146
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As at 31 December

#®12831H

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
40,571 81,618
1,078 12,725
4,928 14,328
46,577 108,671
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The average credit period on purchase of goods is 41 days (2023: 48
days) for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are settled
within the credit period.

Financial Position

Non-current assets increased from US$6,582.2 million as at 31
December 2023 to US$6,922.7 million as at 31 December 2024,
which was mainly due to the increase in property, plant and equipment
during the year.

Current assets increased from US$1,768.0 million as at 31 December
2023 to US$1,795.0 million as at 31 December 2024, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in trade receivables.

Current liabilities increased from US$2,002.6 million as at 31
December 2023 to US$2,431.7 million as at 31 December 2024,
which was mainly due to the reclassification of US$450.0 million
loan from a fellow subsidiary. The loan is repayable in 2025 and
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities.

Non-current liabilities decreased from US$4,659.0 million as at 31
December 2023 to US$4,526.5 million as at 31 December 2024,
which was mainly due to the reclassification of US$450.0 million loan
from a fellow subsidiary, partially offset by the increase in long-term
bank borrowings. The loan is repayable in 2025 and reclassified from
non-current liabilities to current liabilities.

Goodwill

cosT B

At 1 January M1B1H
Exchange differences fERZERR
At 31 December ®12831H

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES  E:tEEFEE

At 1 January M1B1H

Impairment losses recognized in RIBE BRI EEE
profit or loss

Exchange differences fERZE=%E
CARRYING AMOUNTS EREE
At 31 December ’12831H
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2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$'000
FET F=E7T
164,734 167,513
(2,409) (2,779)
162,325 164,734
(21,382) (12,917)
(3,344) (8,681)
348 216
(24,378) (21,382)
137,947 143,352




Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
or group of cash-generating units as follows:

Wind Energy Subsidiaries REKNEAE
(as defined below) (note) (BER T (Hi:2)
Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIGHEMT B A B

(BEER T (#157)
WHEEAHENZEE

(as defined below) (note)
Multiple units without significant goodwill

Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management which cover operation periods ranging from 5 to 22 years (2023: 6 to
22 years). The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rates ranged from
9.65% to 10.99% (2023: 10.20% to 11.35%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which is determined
based on the installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and
Solar Energy Subsidiaries and management'’s expectations for the market development.
The first-year projection for electricity generation volume is determined based on the
historical generation volume of respective power plants and projections beyond the first
year are derived from the first-year projection with a growth rate ranging from 0% to 8.2%
(2023: -11.4% to 7.9%), except for the two wind power plants subject to the “Turbine
substitution” plan mentioned in note 14, where the projected electricity generation
volume is determined based on the modification and upgrading plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, due to a general decrease in electricity
generation volume growth rate adopted in the projected cash flows and a decrease in
the operation periods as the time elapsed, impairment losses of US$2,765,000 (2023:
US$8,335,000) and US$579,000 (2023: US$346,000) were recorded in “Other gains
and losses” in relation to certain CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and
Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively. Two cash generating units, CGN Solar Energy
(Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd (FFEZ ARG AE (K4 E) BIEEARAE) and CGN
Linqu Longgang Wind Power Co. Ltd (FEZERIFERE R NZEFRAE) have
been reduced to their recoverable amount of US$27,605,000 (2023: US$30,795,000)
and US$16,126,000 (2023: US$16,947,000) respectively and adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculations of recoverable amounts would result in further
impairment losses.

A reduction in annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume of 5% will
result in additional impairment losses of US$1,894,000 and US$2,799,000 to the CGUs
of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in additional impairment losses of
US$2,909,000 and US$1,408,000 to the CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries
and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.

BEESwmEADH

BEHENREEEENUZRE
BRI

BENEREUTREELEL ((REEEE
fii) RS EEEMAER

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 us$’000
FET FET
108,141 110,337
28,387 31,589
1,419 1,426
137,947 143,352
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Loans from Fellow Subsidiaries

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due within 1 year:

CGN Finance

CGN Wind Energy

CGNPC Huasheng

China Clean Energy

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due after 1 year:

CGN Finance

China Clean Energy

RERBRBERABER
—FIEREIE

HhEZR

MEZEAE

PEZER

PSR ER

RERBRERABER
—FPEREIA

rhEZR

HPEIEIREEIR
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EEE s E D

KERRKMEBLRBRIER

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
127,732 228,470
667,742 338,854
- 250,000
450,000 -
1,245,474 817,324
131,197 142,782
- 450,000
131,197 592,782




(ii)

(iif)

(v)

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmEADH

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB900.0 million (equivalent to US$125.2
million) (31 December 2023: RMB1,601.4 million (equivalent to US$226.1
million)) are unsecured, interest bearing at 2.40% (31 December 2023: 2.35%
to 3.30%) per annum and repayable within one year; and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB18.2 million (equivalent to US$2.5 million)
(31 December 2023: RMB16.8 million (equivalent to US$2.4 million)) are
unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced by the PRC
National Interbank Funding Center (“RMB Loan Prime Rate”) minus 0.65% to
1% (31 December 2023: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0% to 1%) per annum
and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2023, loan from CGN Finance of RMB8.2 million
(equivalent to US$1.2 million) was unsecured, interest bearing at 3.30% and
repayable in 2038. The amount has been fully repaid during the year; and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB943.1 million (equivalent to US$131.2
million) (31 December 2023: RMB1,003.1 million (equivalent to US$141.6
million)) are unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0.65%
to 1.35% (31 December 2023: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0% to 1.35%) per
annum and repayable in 2032 to 2040 (31 December 2023: 2031 to 2040).

Loan from CGN Wind Energy of RMB4,800.0 million (equivalent to US$667.7
million) (31 December 2023: RMB2,400.0 million (equivalent to US$338.9
million)) is unsecured, interest bearing at 2.40% (31 December 2023: 2.40%)
per annum and repayable in 2025 (31 December 2023: 2024).

As at 31 December 2023, loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250.0 million
was unsecured, interest bearing at the 3-month Secured Overnight Financing
Rate plus 1.30% per annum and repayable in 2024. The amount has been fully
repaid during the year.

Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450.0 million (31 December 2023:
US$450.0 million) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% (31 December
2023: 4.50%) per annum and repayable in 2025 (31 December 2023: 2025).

(iii)

REFBEZUBENERARBEI00.05E T
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Bank borrowings

The Group’s total bank borrowings increased from US$4,448.2 million
as at 31 December 2023 to US$4,926.0 million as at 31 December
2024. Details of bank borrowings are as follows:

Secured [=Fiavid
Unsecured il

The maturity profile of bank borrowings is as BITERENIPEROT :

follows:
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —E P L BRBEME
After 2 years but within 5 years MEMU EEBARBBEE
Over 5 years EEMUE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had unutilized banking facilities
of US$1,655.1 million (2023: US$1,410.9 million).

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities
that include RMB, USD and KRW. The bank borrowings of the Group
carry interest rates which range from 1.75% to 5.85% (31 December
2023: 2.25% to 5.86%) per annum during the year ended 31
December 2024. The analysis of bank borrowings with fixed interest
rate and variable interest rate is analyzed below:

Fixed rate EhailES
Variable rate SFEF X
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IRITEE
AEBWNEIRITHEEBR2023F12831HW
4,448 2E B EITIBIME2024F12831HK
4,926 08B ET - RITEEMNFEBAT :

As at 31 December

#¥12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
2,725,292 2,716,937
2,200,697 1,731,218
4,925,989 4,448,155
644,459 494,635
405,627 393,972
2,323,776 1,995,158
1,552,127 1,564,390
4,281,530 3,953,520
4,925,989 4,448,155

R2024F 128318 AEBEXRSHANRTEE
FE21,655.1TEBE7T (20234 1 1,410.988
ES I

RREBANABRTEEUNZEETENID
EEBHE OB ARB - Ex kBT -HE
2024F12A31HIEFE  AEERITEEEN
F1.75%%E5.85% (2023FE12H31H : 2.25%%
5.86%) MEMEGTE - B EF X R FEHEF)
ENRITEEDRUOT

As at 31 December

®12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
1,338,947 1,265,826
3,587,042 3,182,329
4,925,989 4,448,155




Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure increased by US$246.6 million to
US$888.0 million in 2024 from US$641.4 million in 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

Pledged Assets

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment, trade
receivables, contract assets and bank deposits for credit facilities
granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the total carrying
value of the pledged assets amounted to US$1,983.1 million (2023:
US$1,845.2 million).

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other significant
investment held by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other plan for material
investments or capital assets by the Group as at 31 December 2024.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had about 2,409 full-time
employees, with the majority of them based in China. The Group
provides its employees with salaries and bonuses, as well as employee
benefits, including retirement schemes, medical and life insurance
schemes.

BEESwmEADH
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Employees located in China are covered by the mandatory social
security schemes required by relevant rules and regulations of the
PRC, which are essentially defined contribution schemes. The Group
is required by the PRC law to contribute a certain percentage of the
average salaries of the employees to various schemes in accordance
with the regulatory requirements in the locations of the entities and the
Group’s policies. The PRC government is directly responsible for the
payment of the benefits to these employees.

In Korea, the Group is required by law to contribute 4.5% of the
employees’ monthly average salaries for the national pension, 3.545%
for national health insurance (12.95% of the national health insurance
is contributed for long-term care insurance), 0.9% for unemployment
insurance, 0.857% (Seoul Office)/0.968% (Yulchon)/0.927% (Daesan)
for the industrial accident compensation insurance and 0.06% for a
wage claim guarantee fund.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a mandatory provident fund
scheme established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485). Employees contribute 5.0% of their relevant
income to the mandatory provident fund scheme subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000, and the Group contributes
10.0% of each employee’s monthly base salary.

The remuneration of senior management is determined by referencing
to the performance of individuals and the group and market trends.
The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors) for
the year ended 31 December 2024 were within the following bands
(The payments of their emoluments were borne by CGN and its
subsidiaries.):

Less than HK$500,001 /D JA500,0018 75

(Equivalent to US$64,001)

Total 4ast
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Environmental Policies and Performance

PRC
Wind, Solar and Energy Storage Projects

In order to protect and continuously improve the living environment
and ecological environment, the Company ensures good management
of wastewater, exhaust gas, solid wastes and hazardous wastes in
production and operation activities, so as to achieve environmental
protection to the greatest extent. Embracing the idea that “lucid
waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets”, the Company
deeply implemented the thoughts from Xi Jinping on ecology, and
strictly followed the requirements of environment-related laws and
regulations such as the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ((FFEE AR HEMEIRIEREE)), the “Water and
Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({FRZEA
RHEMEKEFREE)) and the “Law on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste of the People’s Republic
of China” (REAREMEERSEY S RIRENIAZE)) to strictly
implement the requirements on environmental and water protection
measures on “Three Simultaneous” for project constructions, dive
into graded management and control of environmental risks and
hazard inspection and governance, establish the environmental
element checklist and hazard inspection and governance checklist.
The Company has formulated effective environmental protection
plans, dynamically cleared environmental risks and formulated
countermeasures to ensure that all environmental protection work is
carried out smoothly and strive to build itself as a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise.

Hydro Projects

The hydro projects of the Company strictly comply with the
environmental protection requirements of the local government.
Being a renewable and clean energy resource, hydro projects almost
discharge no pollutant. The requirements of the local government on
hydro projects concern waste disposal, noise control, flow control and
ecological protection.

Our requirements on waste disposal are implemented according to
GB8978-1996 standard, we have achieved grade one standard in
wastewater disposal with all indices up to standard. In respect of our
requirements on noise control, they are implemented according to
GBZ/T189.8-2007 “Work Place Physical Agents Measurement, Part
VIIl: Noise” (TESFMMIERZ A EE8EH | RS )), GBZ2.2-
2007 “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the
Workplace, Part Il: Physical Agents” { TYESZFrE ERZM £ REHE
FRHI 5288 © #IEEZE)) and Provision 20 of Order No.47 of State
Administration of Work Safety, as well as the relevant requirements
set out in the “Laws on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases” (B2 m55585%)), all monitoring results are of the required
standard, and there are no external complaints arising from noise
emission. In respect of the flow control requirements for environmental
protection, they are implemented according to the requirements of the
local water resources bureau. There were no accidents caused by
power generation flow change during the year ended 31 December
2024.
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Thermal Projects (coal-fired, oil-fired, gas-fired including cogen)

The environmental protection systems and facilities of the Company’s
coal-fired and gas-fired power projects complied with applicable
national and local environmental protection regulations. Environmental
management in all of the Company’s operating project companies
met the relevant standards and have been accredited with ISO14001
(environmental management system) international certification. In
addition, the Company’s coal-fired and gas-fired power projects have
their own environmental protection office and staff responsible for
monitoring and operating its environmental protection equipment.
Other than the “Continuous Emission Monitoring System (CEMS)”,
another “Remote Emissions Monitoring Systems (REMS)” are also
equipped in all coal-fired and gas-fired projects to continuously
monitor power projects emissions at the relevant project companies.
The Company has continued to invest substantially in energy saving
and environmental upgrading facilities at the projects to comply with
the regulations and emissions reduction. By the end of 2015, all de-
sulfurization, de-nitration and particulate matter removal facilities have
been installed in coal-fired projects and put into service as planned.
By the end of 2017, the coal-fired power plants in operation (Nantong
in Jiangsu and Huangshi in Hubei) have all completed the “Ultra-
low Emission” technical improvement to further reduce the emission
of NOx, SOz as well as dust. The Company is of the view that the
Company is not in material breach of any applicable environmental
laws or regulations as of 31 December 2024.

Air emissions of all existing thermal power projects of the Company
in the PRC have met the more stringent latest national emissions
regulation, which became effective on 1 January 2012. According
to the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” ((FZE A R HEME AR5
fh787%)), a penalty of up to RMB1,000,000 will be levied for non-
compliance. The environmental laws and regulations also impose
fines on enterprises which violate such laws, regulations or decrees
and provide for other sanctions including the possible closure of any
power projects which fail to rectify activities that cause environmental
damage or cease its operation. As of 31 December 2024, the
Company had not received any sanctions to cease operation or rectify
to environmental damages.

Korea

The Company is committed to the establishment of good standards
of environmental protection and management practices. The
environmental policies and facilities of the Company’s power projects
in Korea are in compliance with the applicable national and local
environmental protection regulations in Korea. The Company’s power
projects in Korea have their own environmental protection offices
and staffs responsible for monitoring and operating its environmental
protection equipment. Environmental monitoring system required
by the applicable national and local environmental protection
regulations are equipped in the Company’s power projects in Korea.
Environmental management in our operating project companies is
meeting the relevant international standards and have been accredited
with 1ISO14001 (environmental management system) international
certification.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition, the Company’s power projects in Korea have passed the
relevant supervisory inspections on air emission levels and effluent
water quality by the local government. We are of the view that we are
not in material breach of applicable environmental laws or regulations
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Our primary customers are the electricity offtakers for our projects. Our
primary suppliers are the fuel providers for our projects. Our largest
customer is Korea Power Exchange (“KPX”) and our largest supplier is
Korea Gas Corporation (“KOGAS”).

KPX is a non-profit, neutral and independent organization in South
Korea’s power industry. KPX ensures the reliability of power supply
by coordinating the flow of electricity in all regions of South Korea.
To secure future power reliability, KPX runs a sophisticated national
planning process for generation and transmission expansion by active
cooperation and coordination with the Korea government. KPX has
become our largest customer since the combined cycle of Yulchon
Il Power Project commenced business operations and we have
maintained a business relationship with KPX since 2009.

KOGAS is an independent third party supplier of gas for Yulchon |
Power Project and Yulchon Il Power Project in Korea. KOGAS is a
publicly listed company on the Korean Exchange that engages in the
production and distribution of gas in Korea. KOGAS was incorporated
by the Korean government in 1983 and is the sole wholesale supplier
of natural gas in Korea.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2024, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RISK FACTORS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risks Relating to the Industry

Our power projects are located in the PRC and Korea, both of which
have undergone, and may continue to undergo, regulatory changes.
Governmental regulations affect all aspects of our power project
operations, including the amount and timing of electricity generation,
the setting of tariffs, compliance with power grid controls, dispatch
directives and environmental protection. Regulatory changes in the
PRC and Korea can affect, among other things, dispatch policies,
clean and renewable energy and environmental compliance policies
and tariffs, and may result in a change of tariff setting procedures or
mandatory installation of costly equipment and technologies to reduce
environmental pollutants.
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In addition, the solar power projects are highly dependent on solar
illumination conditions, and the wind power projects are dependent
particularly on wind conditions. Extreme wind or weather conditions
could lead to downtime of the wind power projects. Solar illumination
conditions and wind conditions vary across seasons and locations,
and could be unpredictable and are out of our control.

Risk Relating to Fuel Cost

The non-renewable energy power projects of the Group require
supplies of coal, oil and gas as fuel. Fuel costs represent a significant
portion of our operating expenses and the operating expenses of
our associates. The extent to which our profit is ultimately affected
by the cost of fuel depends on our ability to pass through fuel costs
to our customers as set out under the relevant regulatory guidelines
and the terms of our power purchase agreement for a particular
project, as we currently do not take any measures to hedge our
exposure to fuel price fluctuations. Our fuel costs are also affected
by the volume of electricity generated because the coal consumption
rate of coal-fired and cogen power projects decreases when we
generate more electricity as a result of economies of scale. In the
PRC, government tariff regulations limit our ability to pass through
changes in fuel costs. In Korea, our Yulchon | Power Project is able
to pass through our exposure to fuel price fluctuations through fuel
cost pass-through provisions in the tariff formula. Our Yulchon Il Power
Project and Daesan | Power Project receive payments based on the
system marginal price (SMP), which is influenced based on gas price
and the efficiency of power plants. Therefore, in general situation,
SMP can cover fuel cost. In few special situations, for example, the
mandatory dispatch order with high cost and low efficiency, SMP may
not fully cover the power plants’ fuel cost. Korea has a system called
Renewable Portfolio Standards (RPS), which helps renewable energy
plants cover some of the additional power generation costs including
fixed cost such as investment and operations and maintenance.
Therefore, the biomass power plant, a kind of renewable energy, can
respond to changes in fuel costs through SMP and revenue from
Renewable Energy Green Certificate sales under RPS system. Our
diversified generation portfolio enables us to diversify the risks that
we would face to utilize a single resource for electricity generation. In
particular, our exposure to several fuel types mitigates risks such as
price increases in or the availability of any particular fuel source.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations
in interest rates on our debt with floating interest rates based on
market prevailing rates. We undertake debt obligations to support
asset acquisition and general corporate purposes including capital
expenditures and working capital needs. Certain amount of our
indebtedness is calculated in accordance with floating interest rate
or interest rate that are subject to adjustment by our lenders. We
periodically review the ratio of debt with floating interest rates to debt
with fixed rates, taking into account the potential impact on our profit,
interest coverage and cash flows.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

The functional currency of the Company is US dollars, and our
reportable profit is affected by fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. We collect most of our revenue from our projects in
RMB and KRW, some of which are converted into foreign currencies
to (1) purchase foreign-made equipment and parts for repair and
maintenance; (2) make investments in certain joint ventures or
acquire interests from other companies; (3) pay out dividends to the
shareholders of our project companies; and (4) repay our outstanding
debt. By managing and monitoring the risks of foreign currency, we
ensure that appropriate measures are adopted effectively in a timely
manner.

PROSPECTS

2025 is a critical year for the “14th Five-Year Plan” and also a year
connecting the “15th Five-Year Plan”, which is of great significance to
achieve a good start, a steady start and continuous improvement for
the work of the whole year. The Company has comprehensively laid
a solid foundation for safe production, insisted on seeking benefits
from management efforts, seeking driving forces from reform actions,
and seeking competitiveness from innovation initiatives, firmly grasped
the “six focuses” and truly achieved the “six guarantees”, completing
the Company’s goals and tasks of the “14th Five-Year Plan” with high
quality and laying a solid foundation for a good start of the “15th Five-
Year Plan”.

1. Focus on strengthening the roots and soul to ensure that the
leading and guaranteeing role of Party building is effectively
played

We will comprehensively implement the spirit of the important
speeches and that of the important instructions and comments
of General Secretary Xi Jinping, strengthen the advocacy
of ideals and beliefs, and consolidate and expand the
achievements of thematic education. We will push forward the
overall strict governance of the Party in an in-depth manner,
adhere to the ideas of no restricted zone, full coverage
and zero tolerance, and provide strong guarantee for high-
quality development with the new effect of the overall strict
governance of the Party.

2024 EERE |

BEESwmEADH

BE =R @ b

FABHIEEE RET > MAMNT 2R
BREINEEXRHZE - RMEIBUARE R
BITWRARDREHMEENRA  EP R
DEBMBIINELMNBEESIERENRE R
DRBREERRR QOB ETEERARETR
ERWEAMAREm ;Q)AHEMNEE LR
REXARE ; R4BEEREENE - HF
BEREREINER R LU R KB AN
PREE & T o

RIKRE

2025 BRI+ MA ) ~RE+A R BELE
BMTzF BR2FIEHEML -BHEE -FF
B EEERARABEERFZ2EERE
ERNEEENGE OREEH T DAIMES
F 7 BEEEER D) ERE TRER
Rl BEERRARTHLIBRER HER
THh I REFRBITFER-

1. BN RE BRERESIAREER
BXMEE

EHEREEROVTRECERHSE
EEMEZE TR RE A NRIERE
BB ZERERIEHFIRR MR
HEZERRLE BREXR 28
B EAT UZERBRAEEMBEYA
S HABUREHBRRE-

hEEZERIERERAE

61



62

Focus on the fortification efforts of development to ensure full
achievement of operational goals

We will continue to increase the intensity of project
development and accurately deploy high-quality projects.
Guided by the operation goal, we will efficiently coordinate
resource allocation, adhere to the golden rule of “Safety First,
Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, and focus on
project construction procedures control to lay the foundation
for creating more high-quality projects.

Focus on refined management to ensure that business
performance remains excellent

We will focus on improving equipment stability and actively
enhance our intelligence level. Besides, we will continuously
improve the level of lean management, and further strengthen
our core trading capabilities and make unremitting efforts to
refine our electricity marketing business. We will effectively
reduce costs and increase efficiency, and strive to improve our
value creation capabilities and level.

Focus on innovation and breakthroughs to ensure that
scientific and technological research and development to bear
fruit and achieve tangible results

We will continue to be guided by the Company’s needs, focus
on building independent innovation capabilities, create a high-
level innovation ecosystem, carry out key technology research,
and strive to promote a new leap in the Company’s core
competitiveness.

Focus on deepening reform to ensure that organizational
vitality and motivation are fully stimulated

We will adhere to a problem-oriented approach, strive for
the successful completion of the action of deepening and
improvement of the reform, continue to promote the reform of
the organizational management and control system, focus on
the breakthrough and solution of the deep-seated issues that
constrain the Company’s development, so as to inject strong
impetus into the Company’s high-quality development.

Focus on risk prevention and control to ensure the steady and
long-term development of the Company

We will do a good job in safety management and improve
the supervision, evaluation and assessment system. We will
continue to strengthen legal and compliance management
and further promote the regularization and standardization
construction of the Company’s compliance management
system. We will prevent and resolve major risks with our
resolution, carry out continuous tracking in key areas and key
links, and strive to build a new pattern of supervision with the
characteristics of joint prevention and joint control.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 February 2025,
Meiya Electric Asia, Ltd. (“Meiya Electric”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, intended to dispose of the entire equity interest in Nantong
Meiya Co-generation Co., Lid. (BEXRHNEERAE) (“Nantong Meiya”),
its wholly-owned subsidiary, through a public tender process on the
Shanghai United Assets and Equity Exchange Co., Ltd. On 10 March 2025,
Meiya Electric entered into a conditional equity transfer agreement with the
successful bidder for the sale and purchase of 100% equity interest in Nantong
Meiya at a cash consideration of RMB475.0 million.

Please refer to (i) the Company’s announcement dated 10 March 2025 for
the details of the terms of the disposal and (ii) the Company’s announcement
dated 25 March 2025 for the appraised value of 100% equity interest in
Nantong Meiya and the details of the valuation deriving the appraised value.

Save as disclosed above, no important event or transaction affecting the
Group which is required to be disclosed by the Company to its shareholders
has taken place after 31 December 2024 to 10 April 2025, being the latest
practicable date for ascertaining the information contained in this report before
its bulk-printing.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREESEGE

SEC

RETARY OF THE COMMUNIST PARTY COMMITTEE, CHAIRMAN AND

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(1)

RCEERUTES

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
RERTE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3REE), aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 January 2020,
and was further appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President of the Company, and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 8 April
2022. Mr. Zhang ceased to serve concurrently as the President of the Company with effect from
4 September 2023. Currently, he is also the secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the
Company and the chairman of CGN Wind Power Company, Limited (FE#ZEEZERAT) (“CGN
Wind Energy”).

Mr. Zhang joined the Company as a senior vice president in December 2019. Prior to joining the
Company, he worked in the Ministry of Personnel (AZE&f) of the State-owned Enterprises Working
Committee (IR P2 T %) and the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council (A#HI=HEEELEEEELE D) from June 1995 to November 2010.

From November 2010 to January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of the
human resources department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (FElE SR ZEEE A RA5)) (former name
of China General Nuclear Power Corporation (FElEZEBEBRAF) (“CGN”)). Afterwards, from January 2012 to December
2019, Mr. Zhang served as the director of the department of party affairs (renamed as the party team working division from
January 2017 to June 2018) of CGN, and from March 2012 to December 2019, he served as the direct deputy secretary
of the Party Committee of CGN. Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in industrial engineering management from
the University of Science and Technology Beijing (JE 5 A# A2)in June 1992, a Master’s Degree in labor economics from
the Beijing University of Economics (JEFAZ%EZB%) in June 1995, and a Doctorate Degree in National Economics from the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University (b R KB EE IR EART) in July 2000.

RERGE 555 R2020F1 B2 ESZEANTES N 2022F 488 E— P EERXASETEIFERAATEH > BIRET
AABIRLEEE ((REHEEG)) TFE-B2023F9F4HE RAEETBERNEERAADEH HERTEECAADERZZLKRH
EZREERAE ((FEZRESE) 2EEE-

RAEER2019F12BMARRBEISRENERK - FILZ AT HHIN1995F6 8 E2010F 11 B BB EHBEHEEEEEETEEE
SRR ETEN AR

E2010F 11 BE2012F1 8 REEATHERZEEEESRAE (TEAEZEBRERAR ((HFEZ) 251/ EANERIPEEL
B(EFTIH BB HR2012F 1B E2019F 128 AT EZEH TEHRET (2017F1B E2018F6 B HFERAZHTEL) » 1L
R20128E 38 E2019F 1 2B BT P EZEBELRI R RAEEN1992F6 A EBII AR AB THTREEB LB 181995
FoREBIIREKEB RSB EERLTEM THR2000F 73 ES IR AB N EETESKERSKESF LS.
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EFEREESEGRE

PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MERATES

(2)

Mr. LI Guangming
FHRALE

Mr. LI Guangming (Z=¢BH), aged 48, was appointed as the President of the Company and an
executive Director on 4 September 2023, and he is also the deputy secretary of the Communist Party
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is a member of the Communist Party of China and senior engineer.
Currently, he also serves as a director and general manager of CGN Wind Energy. Mr. Li obtained the
Bachelor’s Degree in Power Systems and Automation from Sichuan University (F9)1|K£2) in 2000. Mr.
Li joined the Company in August 2016. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li was the project manager
of the substation branch (B#E % /A T]) of Jilin Power Transmission and Transformation Engineering
Company* (FMEEEE TR AT from July 2000 to January 2010. Afterwards, he served as the
assistant to the general manager in general manager office of the northeast branch of CGN Wind
Power Generation Limited* (F/EZ /A I EERAE) (“CGN Wind Power”) from January 2010 to
May 2012. Mr. Li has held several important positions including an assistant to the general manager
in general manager office of the Jilin branch (%% /A &) of CGN Wind Energy from May 2012
to February 2013, the deputy regional engineering director (Greater Northern China Region) (T
E&Ei 488 (KZEILE)) of engineering department of CGN Wind Energy from February 2013 to December 2013, and the
regional engineering director (Northern China Region) (T 2@ 1542885 (3£15&) ) of engineering department of CGN Wind Energy
from December 2013 to March 2015. Subsequently he acted as the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of the
Northern China Branch of CGN Wind Energy and the regional director for Northern China of the engineering department of CGN
Wind Energy from March 2015 to August 2016. Mr. Li was the general manager of the Shanxi Branch (LLIF§43 /A &) and Hebei
Branch GaI1E A E]) of CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (FREZIEAERIEE CEYI) BRAF) from August
2016 to June 2018, and was its regional director for Northern China from October 2016 to June 2018. Mr. Li was the deputy
general manager of Engineering Department of the Company from June 2018 to May 2019. He was the general manager of
the Engineering Department of the Company from May 2019 to December 2020. He was the deputy general manager of the
Company from December 2020 to August 2023.
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R2016F8B MAKRRAE] c RIMAARAT R > ZE ?ﬁiﬁAzoooEﬂﬂ1201o¢1ﬁ?FéﬁiﬁéLﬁ%lfrﬂ’\i%ﬁﬁfaﬁlﬁE%«ﬁoB:‘E
% BIR2010F1 B E2012F5 B EEFEZRANEEERAT ((FEZANEE)) RN AR BCEIBKIERIE =4 ST
ZEEBRAL B1E2012FE5 8 F2013F 28NN EZETE MDA B BCIEIASERNIE; 2013F 23 E2013F 128 NP EZAS
TREEPTIREIHBE (KEILE) » UR2013E128E201E3AMPEXRA T I REX N T REINEE (FEILE) BB ®
R2015F3A E2016F8AEATEZABEILS RIRECIE (FFITMHE RIRBEEIFEILEIHARE ; £2016F88 £2018568
R EREETPEZNERIKRE CRI) BERABUAD ABEAIE D ABMEE 17220165E108 E201856 B AR FREEL
BB c 20186 B E2019F 58 MIEE AL B TS EIRIELZIR ; HEMN2019F58 £2020F 128 A K AB TIEFEI ALK
I WH2020F 128 E2023F 8B EERAT BIARLIE
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREESEGE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JE#

(3)

TESF

Mr. ZHAO Xianwen
HEXEE

Mr. ZHAO Xianwen (8B ), aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 7 February
2024 and the chairman of investment and risk management committee of the Company (the
“Investment and Risk Management Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 31 July 2024. Mr. Zhao joined the Second
Artillery Corps Back-end Operation Management Department under the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army and engaged in internal audit works until May 1998 after graduating from the Military Economic
Institute of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army* (FEARMBMEEFLLEERT) majored in
Military Audit with a Master’s Degree in July 1997. Mr. Zhao has abundant finance-related experiences
since he worked for CGN and its subsidiaries in April 2001. From April 2001 to December 2015, Mr.
Zhao worked in finance departments in Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Power Services Group Co., Ltd *
(B AR EZERY (B 2E) BPR/AF), Liaoning Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (QT“
A% BAM/AT]) and China Nuclear Power Technology Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (EF‘ﬂi’fi%
MIERZEPR B FR/AE)) , respectively. Subsequently, Mr. Zhao worked as the chief accountant of CGN Cangnan Nuclear Power Co.,
Ltd.* (PEZBEEIZE A R/AF) until January 2022. From January 2022 to June 2023, Mr. Zhao worked as the chief accountant
of Guizhou Yuping Clean Thermal Energy Co., Ltd.* (EMNERFZEEEBRAE). From June 2023, Mr. Zhao has worked as a
director in the various subsidiaries under the CGN Group. Mr. Zhao was appointed as a director of CGN Capital Holdings Co.,
Ltd.* (PEZERIZERABR/AT) in June 2023; as a director of Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd.*
(KR EiZBEESEIBAMREITAT), Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd* (BEZBEEAHREAT), Fujian
Ningde Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (B EEZEBRAT), Fujian Ningde Second Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* ({BEEEE %
BEAER/AF) and CGN Ninghe Investment Co., Ltd.* (PEIZEZIEEER/AT]) in September 2023; as a director of Taishan
Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd.* (B LUZB&EER/AE) in November 2023; and as a director of CGN Wind Energy in
January 2024.

B AL 585 R2024F 2 B7HESEAIERITES  N2024F7A3BESE AR N DREHAKEESZE S (RE
HEKREEEZES ) FRAFMNZES (HFMEE T ) ME - MAEMTETAATEARENEER L K2 ESER

BHEEBT2UB MAFRAAERKRESE " BEEHMBEESEI  2HENI BT TIEE1998F58 © azooﬁﬁmi’
HEEEBMAREZRENBAT 2B T 2N FEBRELE - 2001F48 E2015F 128 HAR A E D BN ER A D E
ZEBRS (EE) BERAS BRI ARESRADRTRERESMAKRERAT NI TIE- Efﬁi?ﬁi#ﬂiﬂﬁ‘ff?
ERZEARATHEE TN TIEE20220F 18 0 2022F 18 E2023F68 AL RIS INERFTEAEERATNE
GEtefic H2023F6 e A ERTEZERRNENH B AT RTEE ML E2023F6 A ELZTATERELSIERERA
BEE 2023 F 90 ERTARDEREEEEEERETINE EREXEAEBRAE GEEEZERRAD BEERE
ERBERATRNERERKREARATESE ; 2023F11BESTAQLUKBESERARATES ; TN2024F 1B ES
FAPEZABES-

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2024



(4)

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREESEGRE

Ms. MU Wenjun
BXERL

Ms. MU Wenjun (X&), aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) on 31 July 2024. Ms. Mu joined
Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Company, Limited (BEZESEERAT) in January
1994 and served as the secretary and auditor of its audit department until April 2003. From April
2003 to October 2006, she served as an auditor and audit supervisor in the audit department of
Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd. (K EZBEESEEARSTL
&l). Ms. Mu worked as an office administrative assistant at Lingao Nuclear Power Company Ltd. (58
JH1ZEABRAT) (“Lingao Nuclear”) from October 2006 to December 2008. From December 2008
to March 2012, she worked in China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (PEERZEE
B A PFE/A5) (the former name of CGN) successively as audit manager and deputy director (presiding
overall operation) of its audit department, and senior manager of system and process management
of the system and process management division of its supervision and audit department. Afterwards,
from March 2012 to July 2015, Ms. Mu served in the supervision and audit department of Guangdong
Daya Bay Nuclear Power Services Group Co., Ltd.* (BER A EZERT (5E) BMRAE]) successively as the person in
charge, manager, supervisor and manager of its audit center.

From July 2015 to June 2021, Ms. Mu served as a director of the supervision and audit department and manager of the audit
center of CGN Services Group Co., Ltd.* (FEIZARFEEBBRAF), general manager of Shenzhen Nuclear Power Materials
Supply Company Limited* CRIITHZEYEHEBIR/AT), and member of Party Committee and Secretary of Discipline
Inspection Committee of CGN Energy Service Co., Lid. * (FEZENGEEEZERIREAT), respectively. From June 2021 to
September 20283, Ms. Mu served as the Secretary of the Discipline Inspection Committee and member of the Party Committee
(from April 2023 to September 2023) of CGN Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.* (FEZE ALK AEE/AT). From September 2023
to July 2024, she has been serving as a supervisor, chief supervisor or chairman of the supervisory committee of a number of
companies, including Suzhou Nuclear Power Research Institute Co., Ltd. (BRNZA THFZEB B FE/AE]), CGN Finance Co., Ltd.*
(REZMFEERSE/AE), Liaoning Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (GEZEAT R AXEAIR/AE), Shenzhen Nengzhihui
Investment Co., Ltd.* CRIITHAEZ FEHR BB MR/AF]), Shandong Zhaoyuan Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (UEBEZEBRAT),
CGN Wind Energy, CGN Cangnan Nuclear Power Co., Lid. (FEZEMEIZE AR AE) and CGN Cangnan No. 2 Nuclear Power
Co., Ltd.* (REZERME _ZEABMR/AT). Ms. Mu is currently a director of CGN Lufeng Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (FREZ[EE
@E‘?EEE’AT) CGN Wind Energy, and CGN Nuclear Technology Development Co., Ltd. (EPEt‘fV?f?&m?'*)EHyfﬁﬁKE”T).
She has over 31 years of experience in auditing. Ms. Mu received her Bachelor's Degree in Geography from Guizhou Normal
University (EMEMEEAE2) in July 1992 and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Science
and Technology Beijing (B R & A 2)in June 2012.

BEXELT 535 P2024F7B31HEZXAFEHNTEERARABZEZEGME ((BREET)) 2L TH1994F1810
ANERZBEGEBRABEEENBWERBTENE2003F48 - BEEN2003F45 E2006F 108 WIE KD EZBESEIE
ERSEE NGB HEEBTMRBETEE - H2006FE108 E2008F 128 £ +EEBIZEAMRAE (TEBIZE)) #E
MAZETHENIE - H2008F 128 E2012F3B iR WEFTHERZBEBBR AR (TEZZAHE) LEBETHEINET
KELRETRIERERE (EFIHE  UAEREABHNERETREERMNERNEEESHEE -BE £ LN2012638E
2015E7THHEERAGEZERY EB) BRABDERBATZETET A ﬁ«ﬁ)ﬂzi&%%%ﬂﬂ@xﬁ%iﬂ%ﬁfﬁo

F2015F7E E2021F6 AR 24 T A B AT EZRFEERER A ERBA PRI ETERB AP OLE  RITZEY
ERESRARBTELE MKTEZNEEXZREBRADTELZZERILEZER mzoz1ﬁsﬁizoz3igﬁ’$ﬁi
ERERZEAERBRABMALEZER REEREE (H2023F48 £20235F9A) ©R2023F9A £2024F 7 HifE > W ZEA
IIRES SEEREFTER CEEMNATHERERATD WEZEHEERETLAT BRI IREERAT F
YIHREZEREBRAG  URBEZEERAD HEZAEE - PEZEAZBEERABATEZERE _ZBEBRAT
BEUTHRREATEZEEZEARAR - PEZABERTEZZEMERRNBERABD ZES FESFT LEHAEBEASIE
KB o 2 M9 ETH REN S MNMB ASBMBEG R KBAR WHR2012E6 AMEB LR ARBTHEEBR L2
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREESEGE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BIUFATES

(5)  Mr. WANG Minhao
EEE

Mr. WANG Minhao (EER ), aged 66, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018 and also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. He participated in the design of the Longyangxia and Daxia Hydropower
Stations and served as the vice president of Northwest Engineering Corporation (F516&138)55% 516%) in
1993. Mr. Wang was the deputy general manager of China Hydropower Engineering Consulting Group
Co. (FEI/KBEREE/AE), and the deputy general manager of China Water Conservancy &
Hydropower Consulting Co., Ltd. (R Bk F)7K E T2 545845 BR/A E)) from March 2000 to September
2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an University of Technology (A% I8 T A £) (formerly known as
Shaanxi Institute of Mechanical Engineering (BX7a1% 122 [5%)) of Hydraulic Engineering and obtained
a Master’s Degree in Engineering from Xi'an University of Technology (FEZ 2 T K2)in April 2003
and he was also registered structural engineer. Mr. Wang retired on 25 February 2019 and ceased to
act as deputy general manager and a member of Party Standing Committee of Power Construction
Corporation of China (FEIE NERER BZ{D) BRAF)in March 2019. In addition, Mr. Wang
ceased to act as the chairman and the legal representative of the Powerchina Water Environment Governance Co., Ltd (185 727K
RIZABEFMARALAE) on 16 May 2019.

JESE 0 665% 0 H2018F6H26 HRREIBIUFNTES UHIHNEZESEIFERIELREZETHE - S 2 HEF H R AKX
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ.ﬂﬁr BEB 1993 FE PRI BN AR B & ° H2000E38 E2011F98 » EAREETEKBEEE R QS EERAEKE
B BEKFKELIRABHAERARNETEECE  TRESENRALETI AL RIBRAKMESEMR) KITEE > WH2003F47 A
ZETASTRERBETZ24 Rt 2FMEEM e TAER2019F 28258 B K WR2019F38 ABEETFEENELER BR1D)
ERABDRBEKEREZES LI TRER2019FE5816ANBERITERKBEAEEMERATIEERERAENREK.

(6) Mr. YANG Xiaosheng
BRELE

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng (##X4), aged 72, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018 and also serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Investment and Risk Management Committee. Mr. Yang is currently
the president of Chinese Wind Energy Equipment Association (TEIE %M TR BRED D)
and an |ndependent non-executive director of Dongfang Electric Wind Power Co., Ltd. (R A B R

BRI BBR/AT). Mr. Yang resigned as an independent non-executive director of Titan Wind
Energy (Suzhou) Co,. Ltd. (RIERBE (BRIM) IRIDEBRAE]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 002531), Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co., Ltd. Ghig &
BRI DB BRAE]) (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), Stock Code: 2208) and Jinlei Technology Co., Ltd. (%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁxf’v\j) (formerly known
as Shandong Laiwu Jinlei Wind Power Technology Co., Ltd. (UK #ESFREEBER RN AERAT))
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300443) in May 2019, June 2019
and August 2022, respectively. Mr. Yang has previously served as a deputy director of the energy
and electricity generation subdepartment of the Ministry of Energy (BE/REZSE BRI FAEREEER), a
deputy general manager and chief engineer of China Fulin Windpower Development Corp. (EF‘ .%Eamﬂ EFIE5/AF)) and a chief
engineer of Longyuan Power Group Limited (Bg)R & /75 E /A &) from May 1988 to January 2007. From June 2007 to April 2012,
he served several positions in China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited (BEJRE S1E E {5 B BR/A ) including the
chief engineer, manager of the development department, technical development department and safety production department, a
director of preparatory office of wind energy research centre, technical information department, renewable energy research and
development centre and Jiangsu Longyuan Offshore Wind Power Project. He also served as a committee member of the Beijing
Direct Committee of the Chinese Community Party Longyuan Power Group Company (3 E2JRE HEE A F)) from July 2006 to
December 2010. Mr. Yang was the general manager of the Suzhou Longyuan Bailu Wind Power Vocational Technology Training
Center Co., Ltd. (Bf N EER A B @ B B 2 & i 3 OB PR AF)) from July 2007 to April 2012. Mr. Yang graduated from Wuhan
Polytechmc University (& T 22%) of Electronic Engineering in January 1982 and obtained a Postgraduate Degree in Electricity
from China Agricultural University (Jb5R 22 T2 K2 in October 1986.

BIRERE 725 B2018FE6H26 HIEBETBUFHNTES AN EERZER FNZE T RLZEGKERELRAKEER
EgHE BAEEMEITEERE R IR ERE D EEEERR A ERAERMABRAT ZBIIFRTEE BILENR2019
F552019F 68 K2022488 LB IREXIEREE (ﬁﬂl\)ﬁxfﬁﬁr@@ﬂ(ﬁ FIFEHRFZF EH 2 B BRHHRSE 1 002531) ~F5E
SREBMERMNERAD RNEBHEXRZMERAE (TBRXA)) LhZ A8 RHMASE : 2208) REFERERG AT BIELKRHEE
SERBRERDBERAE) FHIFERIIE %x%ﬁﬁtﬁiz/&i BEC5% £ 300443) ZBUIFRITESHIF B ILELIN1088FE5HE
20071 AR EAERTRERMEREERAER  PEGRAERE AT ELKERMB TN UKEREHEE QT
MI&% H2007E6 A E2012F 48 BB A BETRBEENEERNER AL T2 FIEI  BMEEN L2 EENLER
BER O -ENEAB - IBEERMEZEERPLUMRIGRERES LREBEESEE T (F i #722006578 £2010F128
HEF'E% FERHERENERATEREBEEZEEEE 2007 FE 7B E2012F 48 HFEHMNERAE R B ERMEINROER
NEVEEIE MG E 198 2F 1 B R EN R ETERETIEZ WN1986F 108 BN REBETRRARE HEEMERE S (Lo
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFMEECERE

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick
RFIELRE

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick G2F1E), aged 66, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 17 September 2014 and also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee and was
appointed as a member of the Investment and Risk Management Committee on 22 January 2020.
Mr. Leung has over 30 years of professional and industrial experience in management, corporate
governance, corporate finance, banking and accounting. Mr. Leung resigned as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee of China
Logistics Property Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company previously listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1589) on 1 March 2022. He was previously an executive director, chief financial officer and
company secretary of Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited (“Skyworth”) (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 751). In his almost nine years of services in Skyworth, he was mainly
responsible for the company’s successful resumption of trading of its shares and strengthening of
its internal controls, accounting system, corporate governance and investor relations management.
Skyworth was awarded by Asia Money as the Best Managed Medium Cap Company in China of 2011
in 2011 and by Forbes as Asia’s Fabulous 50 of 2013 in 2013. Furthermore, Mr. Leung accumulated
14 years of working experience in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He left Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in June 1999 as a principal of
corporate finance. Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Science in Business Administration (major in Accounting) from
the University of The East in the Philippines in November 1981. He became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in April 1997 and has been its fellow member since October 2013. Also, he has been a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December 1996. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since April 1999 and has been its fellow member since November 2015. In addition, he has
been a founding member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association since November 2015.

Mr. Leung was previously a non-executive director of Richly Field China Development Limited (“Richly Field”) (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 313), which was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability. He joined Richly Field as an independent non-executive director on 2 May 2003 and was appointed as an
executive director on 3 March 2004. He was re-designated as a non-executive director on 1 May 2005 and he resigned from the
directorship on 4 March 2006. Since his resignation as a non-executive director of Richly Field on 4 March 2006, Mr. Leung has
no involvement in any matters relating to Richly Field. During Mr. Leung’s tenure of directorship with Richly Field, Richly Field
and its then subsidiaries were engaged in the building construction and maintenance industry including building work, design
and construction and building maintenance in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the public announcements made by Richly Field, a
winding up petition was served on it on 30 June 2006 by a public accounting firm for an unpaid service fee of approximately
HK$593,000. On 18 December 2006, the winding up petition for Richly Field was heard in the High Court of Hong Kong and
winding up order was made against Richly Field. On 29 May 2007, the High Court of Hong Kong made an order to appoint
joint and several liquidators and the committee of inspection of Richly Field. The winding up order against Richly Field was
permanently stayed effective on 23 July 2008 and the joint and several liquidators were discharged with effect from 23 July
2008.

RFIESE 665 B014F0B17THREABIUIIFNTES AINEEEZZEGERE  LR2020F1B22HEZAAKEERAR
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREESEGE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

(1)

(2)

(3)

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
SEREE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3R &) is the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and the Chairman of the Board. See “Secretary of
the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and Executive Director” in this annual report for details of Mr. Zhang’s biography.

RESRAEREEERKEFEEIE RELEZEEFBHASRAAFRELZEC - TERNTES I —H-

Mr. LI Guangming
FHAEE

Mr. LI Guangming (ZY¢ER)is the deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee and the President. See “President and
Executive Director” in this annual report for details of Mr. Li’s biography.

FHRAEERBLRIELRBE -FREZBEEFFF2HAFRIBERRNITES —H-

Mr. LI Jing
**E?EEE

Mr. LI Jing (Z£15), aged 59, is currently a committee member of the Communist Party Committee and the deputy general
manager of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in January 2015. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li served in the
design division of nitrogenous fertiliser factory of Nanning Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (E1EABI&BRE) from July 1987 to
February 1992; joined the Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. from February 1992 to April 1999; the engineering
department of Lingao Nuclear from April 1999 to March 2003; and the maintenance department of Daya Bay Nuclear Power
Operations and Management Co., Ltd.* (KEZIZEBEEEEEERSTAE) from March 2003 to August 2004. From
September 2004 to May 2010, he held several positions in the commissioning department of China Nuclear Power Engineering
Co., Lid. (FE#% T2 EPE/AT) (“China Nuclear Power Engineering”), including the head of commissioning division for
nuclear islands, manager assistant and head of commissioning division for nuclear islands, manager assistant and director of
the commissioning manager office. From May 2010 to June 2011, he was the deputy general manager of safety and engineering
management department of CGN and from June 2011 to May 2014, he was the deputy general manager and general manager
of safety and information management department of CGN. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager of safety and quality
assurance department of CGN from January 2013 to January 2015, and concurrently as deputy general manager of safety and
quality assurance department of CGN Power Co., Ltd. (FEEZBEIRMHBERAT) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 1816) (“CGN Power”) since May 2014. From January 2015 to January 2016, Mr. Li served as chief safety officer
of CGN Meiya Power Holdings Co., Limited (former name of the Company). From January 2016 to January 2018, he served as
the chief safety officer of the Company. Mr. Li has served as a member of the party committee and deputy general manager of
the Company from January 2018 to present, and has served as a member of the Party Committee of CGN Wind Energy since
November 2019. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering majoring in Chemical Engineering from Nanjing College of
Chemical Engineering (B8 R1E T2 B5%) in July 1987, and a Master’s Degree in Engineering majoring in industrial engineering from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEA L5 A &2)in February 2001. Mr. Li holds professional qualification as a
senior engineer.

EIELE 59  RIEFRELZERANTBMEEIE . FHER2015F1FMARAT e RIMAKXAT I » FEHER1987ETH
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2003FE3F 1E58 R 12 B TIZZ0EH ; 7N2003FE38 E2004F 8B iNIE AR EXEEEEEARFME AT EEIETH ; 722004
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1B E2018F 1B IEEARRE ZRBEE - EHNAN2018F 1B ESEIANTELZLZE KRB EKIE ) WHEH2019F11BERTF
BRI EREEE - FhEMMSTETRESE Rt T B R B TREXENT RSB LB WH2001F2F ELERRF AE
TEIRSFEENTIRETEM TEAFESHRITIRMMEBEERK
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREESEGRE

Mr. XIE Qiufa
HERE

Mr. XIE Qiufa (&1Fk2%), aged 51, joined the Company in June 2023 and is currently the committee member of the Communist
Party Committee, the chief accountant and the joint company secretary of the Company. Mr. Xie worked in the finance department
of Lingao Nuclear from February 1998 to June 2001, and then worked in the finance department of China Guangdong Nuclear
Power Holding Co., Ltd. (TEESRZBEEEFRAT) (former name of CGN) from June 2001 to May 2009. From May 2009
to January 2015, he worked in the finance department of Taishan Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd.* (BWUIZBEEER A
5)). From January 2015 to August 2021, he served as a member of the party committee and the chief accountant of Daya Bay
Nuclear Power Operation Management Co., Ltd.* (KEEZEEZSEIERREIEAR). From August 2021 to June 2023, he
served as chief accountant of Yangjiang Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (B I BHER/AE]). He has served as the chief accountant
of the Company from July 2023 to present, and has served as the committee member of the Communist Party Committee of the
Company since February 2024, and has served as a joint company secretary of the Company since June 2024. Mr. Xie obtained
a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting from Jilin University (ZF#KX22) in July 1996 and a Master’s Degree in Business Management
from Jilin University (&5 #AX2) in June 2007.

KBS > 515 IR2023F6 AMALRRT  MEXARELZLE B GHMABE AR ME - HILEN1998F2HE
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Mr. DAl Honggang
HOHRBIEE

Mr. DAl Honggang (#J[) , aged 54, joined the Company in August 2024 and is currently the deputy general manager of the
Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Dai worked in the operation division of the production department of Guangdong
Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Lid. (BERZE&GEHBRAE), the Guangdong Nuclear Power Social Security Coordination
Center (BHRIZER#ZF ), CGN Datang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BEERZEBEABEEZXABMRAT) and Guangdong Nuclear
Power Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (E%Faﬁ‘é%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj) from July 1990 to April 2002, respectively. Subsequently,
Mr. Dai worked in the asset management department and strategic planning department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power
Holding Co., Ltd. (FEIEEZBEEBRAF) (former name of CGN) from May 2002 to March 2008 and from March 2008 to
May 2014 respectively, and served as the assistant to the general manager of the strategic planning department of CGN and
the deputy general manager of the strategic planning department of CGN Power from May 2014 to May 2018, and served as
a member of the Party Committee and a deputy general manager of CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited from May
2018 to December 2021, and served as the chairman of Edra during the period from December 2021 to August 2024. Mr. Dai
obtained a Associate Degree in Nuclear Reactor Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (_F783 38 AE) in July 1990, a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Maastricht School of Management in the Netherlands in August 2000 and a
Master’s Degree in Computer based Information Systems from the University of Sunderland in the United Kingdom in December
2001.

BRI AL > 5458 FR2024F 8B MAARRT  MEAAABRIBEIE - MARAB A > BAEF1990F78 £2002F48 A
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Mr. Ql Fang
BEE

Mr. QI Fang (B5 0, aged 41, joined the Company in April 2016 and is currently the committee member of the Communist Party
Committee and the deputy general manager of the Company. From July 2008 to August 2010, Mr. Qi held various positions
in China Three Gorges Corporation (FEIRI=IWEEE/AF]). In September 2010, Mr. Qi joined CGN Wind Power, where he
held various positions in the investment and development department. He served as the assistant to the general manager of
the investment and development department from November 2013 to August 2015 and the deputy general manager of the
investment development center (presiding over the work) from September 2015 to April 2016. Mr. Qi joined the Company since
April 2016 and has held important positions in different departments of the Company since then. He served as the deputy
general manager of Sichuan Branch from April 2016 to April 2018. He served as the deputy general manager of the merger
and acquisition department from April to October 2018, the deputy general manager of the market development department
(presiding over a work) from October 2018 to December 2019, the general manager of the power marketing department from
December 2019 to January 2022. He has served as the deputy general manager of the Company since January 2022 and
has served as a committee member of the Communist Party Committee and the deputy general manager of the Company from
February 2024 to present. Mr. Qi obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering in July 2005 at Sichuan University (F9)11 X%,
and obtained a Master’s Degree from North China Electric Power University (B2815 2 71 A22) in April 2008.

HW%EE’MFE R2016F4BMAKRAT  IREAERABTEERLE  BIAEKIE o TR E R 2008F 78 E2010F88  RAEE

T IREBABEERREREAL2010F98  BEAEMAFTEZRANEE ETEREZESIETZERA R2013FE118E
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ARBE1I0R B ERESHBEIRIARLLIE ; 2018FE108 E2019F 128 HET BRI EIAELIE (EFT/E) ; 2019F 123 E20224
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F2005FE 7B EBIIIABETEELTE( ; 2008F48 EBEILBENARETEE LS

Mr. DING Yeliang
TERKE

Mr. DING Yeliang (T % ), aged 49, is currently a committee member of the Communist Party Committee, the deputy general
manager of the Company and serves as the director of Science and Technology Committee (RIZ2MTEZE |), the general
manager of CGN Solar and Thermal Research Institute Co., Ltd. (in preparation) (FREZ LR ARAT (8)). Mr. Ding
joined the Company in January 2022. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ding worked in Qinghai Electric Power Company (58
“AESHAF)and Qinghai Provincial National Economic and Trade Commission (HBEBERLEZZEE D) from July 1998
to September 2003. Subsequently, Mr. Ding also held different positions in the Qinghai Provincial Government from September
2003 to January 2014. From January 2014 to January 2022, Mr. Ding held various positions in the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council (E#EEESELEEEEEZE D). Mr. Ding served as the
deputy general manager of the Company in January 2022, and served as the director of the Science and Technology Committee
(BRI #MTZ E ) in March 2023. Mr. Ding served as the general manager of CGN Solar and Thermal Research Institute Co.,
Ltd. (in preparation) (FEZMAFZEIRERAT (2))in January 2024 and was then elected as a committee member of the
Communist Party Committee of the Company in February 2024. In July 1998, Mr. Ding graduated from Wuhan University of
Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering (&2 /K8 1 AKE) (former name of Wuhan University (E;EAE2)), majoring in Power
System and Automation, and also obtained a Master’s Degree from China University of Geosciences (FREI#E AZ2) in 2018.

TERES 495 RIEAEEZEZE A QA E %@\fé%f?ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬂ%&%%é%I&&ﬂPJ?fff?ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁﬂnlﬁﬁBE’Aﬂ (8) 1B
o THER2022FE1BMARAT c MMARATART T HER1998FE7TE E2003FIB N AITEFT BEENRAT FHEBEEARKE
ZE%%éa EBE-BE® > T N 2003FE9B E2014FE1B NS ’@éﬁﬁzﬂf’fﬁ?ﬂmu02014¢1H12022¢1H TRE
EREFCEEEELEBEEELZESHRENBE M T ER2022F 1 BEERATRNELIE 2023FE38 FERBRMES
GEML 2024F 1B RAEPBEZAAEIRERADT (B) B8 BRA024F 2 ERAATEEZRZE o T LEN1998FE7H
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Mr. JI Wenbo
s iERE

Mr. JI Wenbo (5t 18), aged 45, who holds a Bachelor’s Degree in electrical engineering and automation from Jilin University
(FMAE), is currently the committee member of the Communist Party Committee, the deputy general manager of the
Company and also serves as the chairman of the Inner Mongolia of CGN New Energy. Mr. Ji joined the Company in August
2016. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ji held various positions at XJ Electric Co., Ltd. (EF4& B R I& 15 B FE/A F)) from October
2000 to April 2012. He served as the general manager of Beijing XJ Renewable Resources Technology Co., Ltd. (35 R 5F 4k
A REHE AR S EAT) from April 2012 to June 2013. Mr. Ji worked in the Henan Branch of CGN Wind Energy from June
2013 to August 2016, during which time he held various important positions and he served as the deputy general manager from
September 2015 to August 2016. Mr. Ji served as the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of the Henan Branch
of CGN New Energy from August 2016 to March 2018, and then the general manager of the Henan Branch of CGN New Energy
from March 2018 to February 2023. Mr. Ji served as the general manager of the Inner Mongolia Branch of CGN New Energy in
February 2023 and served as the chairman of the Inner Mongolia of CGN New Energy in December 2024, and also served as
the deputy general manager of the Company in November 2023, and was elected as a committee member of the Communist
Party Committee of the Company in February 2024.

B LE A A EMAZBERA IREAEBHTERX  ARNBEE RIEAAL D EZEE BIELKE - RPEZNER
AXHABEER AL 2016F8BMAERRAR  RIMAERRAB R > 5T ER2000F 108 E2012F 4B EHEERRNDE
[RABGETAEBAL; BERN2012FE48 2201356 AL RHF#MAERRI R ERET AR TELE  R2013F68E
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Mr. GAO Chao
SEkE

Mr. GAO Chao (F#8), aged 44, joined the Company in February 2025. He is currently the deputy general manager of the
Company. From May 2007 to December 2017, Mr. Gao held various positions in the technical department of China Techenergy
Co., Lid* Gt REFM XA TZER/AT) (“China Techenergy”). Subsequently, from December 2017 to January 2022, Mr.
Gao led the intellectual property and technology management department at China Techenergy. From January 2022 to January
2023, he served as the manager of the technology management department at Shanghai Engineering Science & Technology Co.,
Ltd* (B EZ TRRRIE AR /AT) and concurrently as the manager of the intellectual property and technology management
department at China Techenergy. From January 2023 to August 2024, he was the manager of the technology and digitalization
department at CGN Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (FEZEF & HR/2AF)) (“CGN Digital Technology”), concurrently serving
as the general manager of the Beijing Branch of CGN Digital Technology and the manager of the intellectual property and
technology management department at China Techenergy. From August 2024 to February 2025, he held the position of general
manager of the Beijing Branch of CGN Digital Technology and manager of the intellectual property and technology management
department at China Techenergy. Since February 2025, he has been serving as the deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Gao obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Measurement and Control Technology and Instruments from Xidian University (78 % &
FRIFAE) in July 2004 and a Postgraduate Degree in Computer Application Technology from the China Electronics Huabei
Computer System Engineering Institute (23551 & 1% R 48 T2 8 ZTFT) of Computer Systems Engineering in May 2007.

BB AE 4458 R2025F 2B MAARRE ) IBMEARABRIEKIE2007F58E2017F 128 ahETEILRENZAZFK TR
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EFEREESEGE

Mr. CHEN Shengli
RS HI ST £

Mr. CHEN Shengli (R %)), aged 52, joined the Company in September 2017 and is currently the assistant general manager
and the press officer of the Company. Mr. Chen worked in Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. (BERIZBESEH R
’D\T)from July 1992 to March 2004, and worked in Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd.* (K32 /& 1%
BESEEFMRAT)from March 2004 to November 2006. From November 2006 to December 2014, he served several major
positions in China Nuclear Power Engineering. Subsequently, Mr. Chen served as deputy general manager and deputy general
engineer of CGN Huizhou Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (FEZEINZBEERAT) from December 2014 to November 2016, and
served as general manager and director of CGN Yangxi Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (R E %P5 1% B A RA ) from December 2016
to September 2017. In September 2017, Mr. Chen joined the Company and has served as the assistant to the general manager
of the Company from November 2018 to present. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Administration from Sun Yat-Sen

University (FRLLIAZE) .

BRESFSCAE > 525% » 201 7TEIBNMAR AT WEFEAR AR BLIENEMIBE S A BRILEN1992FE7H E2004F3FEE
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Mr. LONG Yingbin
BEFEIR S &

Mr. LONG Yingbin (B2FE3R), aged 54, is currently the assistant general manager of the Company. Mr. Long joined the Company
in November 2018. Prior to joining the Company, he served various positions in Unit 61785 (617852BFX) from January 1996
to September 2003. From September 2003 to October 2018, he served different major positions in the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council (B#EHEEELEBEEZEEE), including deputy director of
the General Department of the Foreign Affairs Bureau from September 2005 to January 2009, director of the General Department
of the Foreign Affairs Bureau, and director of the General Department of the International Cooperation Bureau from January 2009
to October 2018; Mr. Long served as a member of the Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of China Eastern Airlines
Beijing Branch from November 2013 to May 2015, and has served as the assistant general manager of the Company from
November 2018 to present. Mr. Long obtained a Master’s Degree of Military Informatics from Information Science Department of
the PLA Information Engineering University (B2 EE {5 & T2 AKE) in July 1996, and an EMBA Degree from Business School of
Ecole des Ponts ParisTech (£ BB 1L B5 5 A 2) in May 2016.

BEMEIR AL > 545k IMEE A AT BLIRMNIB o BRI 2018FE 1A NMALRAT » MAKRAQBT AT HH19965F 183 E2003459
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Mr. XU Jiapeng
HFEMmLE

Mr. XU Jiapeng (¥ % ME), aged 50, is currently the general counsel and chief compliance officer of the Company. From January
2010 to January 2014, Mr. Xu worked in the legal affairs office in CGN Wind Power, and later from January 2014 to January
2015, he served as deputy general manager (in charge of overall operation) of Legal Department. Mr. Xu served as temporary
person-in-charge of Legal Department of the Company from January 2015 to July 2017; he served as the general manager of
Legal Department of the Company from July 2017 to October 2019; and served as the general counsel and the general manager
of Legal Department of the Company from October 2019 to January 2021. From January 2021 to present, he has served as the
general counsel of the Company. In July 2023, he also served as the chief compliance officer of the Company. Mr. Xu obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree of International Economic Law from China University of Political Science and Law (FREIEUEAZR) in 1997, and
a Master’s Degree of Law from Peking University (55X A82)in 2004. Mr. Xu is a qualified lawyer.

G e soﬁ’IE?FEEZ!K’/}T%,z?@EEF‘%DEF‘A%EE A ER2010F1 B E2014F 1 BETEZRA NS BN ERER
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Mr. CHENG Hexiang
AL E

Mr. CHENG Hexiang (A #1#£), aged 55, joined the Company in November 2007 and is currently the deputy chief engineer of
the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Cheng worked as an electrical shift supervisor in Yancheng Thermal Power
Co., Ltd. (B EABER S EAT)) from August 1993 to November 2007, and the manager of the production department in the
Northeast Branch of CGN Wind Power from November 2007 to March 2009. He worked as the Director of Safety Production
Department in the operation and maintenance division of CGN Wind Energy from March 2009 to January 2014 and he served
as the assistant to the general manager and director of Human Resources Performance and Training Management Department
of the production operation and maintenance center from January 2014 to July 2015. He served as the assistant to the general
manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company from July 2015 to August 2018. He worked as the deputy
general manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company (presiding over the work) from August 2018 to
September 2020. He worked as the general manager of the operation and maintenance division of the Company from September
2020 to November 2023 and also served as the general manager of the technology company from February 2020 to June 2021.
He has served as the deputy chief engineer of the Company since November 2023. Mr. Cheng obtained a Associate Degree in
Electrical Technology from Yancheng Industrial College (B3 T 2= #124%) in July 1993 and a Bachelor’s Degree in Computer
Science and Technology from Nanjing University (B8 52 A 22) in July 2004.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The directors (the “Directors”) of the CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the
generation and supply of electricity, construction and operation of power
stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and Korea.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report, which forms part of this
report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in this annual report.

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommends that
1.445 US cents (equivalent to 11.27 HK cents) per share of the Company
be distributed as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 22 May 2025 (the “2025 AGM”), is
expected to be paid on Friday, 20 June 2025 to shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Monday, 9 June 2025.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2025
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
19 May 2025 to Thursday, 22 May 2025 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for
attending and voting at the 2025 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration by not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16 May 2025.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 5 June
2025 to Monday, 9 June 2025 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at the above
address for registration by not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4 June
2025.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on pages 259 to 260. The summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in note 35(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) are subject to the rights, privileges
and restrictions set forth in the memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and are not subject to any pre-emptive or
similar rights under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda or pursuant to the
Bye-laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 April 2024, the Board
announced that the Company shall, from time to time, repurchase its Shares
on the open market in the following one-year period (the “Share Repurchase
Plan”), subject to market conditions and pursuant to the general mandate
to repurchase Shares granted by the Shareholders to the Board. The Board
considered that (i) the then share price of the Company was below its intrinsic
actual value and cannot reflect the business prospects of the Company;
(ii) the Share Repurchase Plan reflected the confidence in the Board and
senior management of the Company in the long-term growth and market
performance of the Company; (iii) the Share Repurchase Plan was beneficial
to the Company and create value to the Shareholders, and thus the Share
Repurchase Plan was in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole; and (iv) the current financial resource of the Company enabled it
to implement the Share Repurchase Plan while maintaining a solid financial
position. In furtherance of such plan, 900,000 Shares have been repurchased
on the Stock Exchange and cancelled during the year, details of which are
summarized as follows:
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202498

There were no treasury Shares held by the Company as at 31 December
2024.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including
sale or transfer of treasury Shares, if any) during the year ended 31 December
2024.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 35(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 138 to 139, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as of 31 December 2024 was approximately
US$175.4 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Below is a summary of the policy:

1. The profit distribution policy of the Company aims to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders as well as the sustainable development of the
Company, ensure the continuity and stability of profit distribution policy
in compliance with relevant requirements of laws, regulations and bye-
laws of the Company.

2. The payment and amount of dividends will depend on the specific
operation results of the Company, general financial position, cash flow
position, future operating and capital needs, amount of distributable
profit, restrictions under loan covenants, tax considerations, general
economic conditions, applicable laws and regulations as well as other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

3. The declaration of final dividend shall be recommended to
Shareholders by the Board based on the above situations, and will be
implemented after being voted and approved in general meeting of the
Company.

4. The declaration, payment and amount of interim dividend shall be
determined by the Board and implemented based on the above
situations from time to time.

LARGEST CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 65% of the Group’s total revenue and the Group’s
largest customer for the year accounted for approximately 35% of the Group’s
total revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
97% of the Group’s total purchases, while the largest supplier for the year
accounted for approximately 79% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) or any of the Shareholders
who owns more than 5% of the Company’s number of issued Shares has any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The Directors since 1 January 2024 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman and Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu

President and Executive Director:
Mr. Li Guangming

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on 7 February 2024)

Ms. Mu Wenjun (appointed on 31 July 2024)

Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on 7 February 2024) (Note (i))
Mr. Liu Qingming (resigned on 31 July 2024) (Note (ii))

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Note (i): Due to retirement, Mr. Chen Xinguo has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 7 February 2024.

Note (ii): Due to job arrangement, Mr. Liu Qingming has resigned as a non-executive Director with
effect from 31 July 2024.

Under the Bye-laws, the existing Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company.

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Mu Wenjun will retire at
the 2025 AGM and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Minhao and Mr.
Leung Chi Ching Frederick will retire by rotation at the 2025 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The retiring Directors, if re-elected, will hold office from the date of re-election
to the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held in
2028, subject to early termination in accordance with the Bye-laws and/or any
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to the factors set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election or election at the 2025
AGM has or will have a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions” in this
report of the Directors and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31 December 2024 or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the continuing connected transactions as stated in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report of the Directors,
no contract of significance between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2024 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2024,

TAXATION

Under present Bermuda law, there is no Bermuda income or profits tax,
withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital transfer tax, estate duty or
inheritance tax payable by the Company or its members, other than members
ordinarily resident in Bermuda. Further, no such tax is imposed by withholding
or otherwise on any payment to be made to or made by the Company.

STAMP DUTY

Under present Bermuda law, the Company is exempt from all stamp duties
in Bermuda except on transactions involving “Bermuda property”. This term
relates, essentially, to real and personal property physically situated in
Bermuda, including the shares of local companies (as opposed to exempted
companies). Transfers of shares and warrants in all exempted companies are
exempt from stamp duty in Bermuda.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors and/or chief executive of
the Company has any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which will be required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and chief executive were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Capacity/Nature

ERTHRS

EFNEFHNEmEK

R2024FE12A31R MEESER / AEXATRSTH
AEREAQABDREHBEIE (TEREHRBEKA
(MBS REERE ) BXVI) IR H HBRARM TES
EHO A B)RIBES M EEAIEXVERET7K8D I
BAAARARBRF (AREERRESTHRASRES
HERPEEAEREXWEENRAES B Z %
B) (IR BEEHF R ERAEIMETALRTEFEEZ
BHERM; KGR R B $RC3m AR & L 3
TABEETESTZNETESTH (MEEFH) BN
AN B B B AT P PR R A B R kA o

FERR

2024 12H31H MEBEERARBDRBTHRAEMR
o UTAL (EERERFDRSTHEAERN RRMK
HEMRNITEARNAAAEFEARAREES A
BRGISEXVER B2 553 BR 4R E M A& 2 B ke Bk 32 P i
B WA RBAREESRBEKRAFEI6HFRAFENE
SCPECERBIME T B K A ¢

Approximate %

Name of Interest Number of Shares of Shareholding

%18 B #EniE in &8 RS E 2L

China General Nuclear Power Corporation Interests in controlled corporation 3,101,800,000 72.30%
(“CGN”) (2xs) (long position)

HFEEZEEBRAR (THEZ) @ SREEEED FR)

CGNPC International Limited Interests in controlled corporation 3,101,800,000 72.30%
(“CGNPC International”) (/2% (long position)

FREZERARAR (THEZBERE) 2 REEEED FR)

CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited Beneficial owner 3,101,800,000 72.30%

(“CGN Energy International”) (/23
FEEZERERZERERAE
(TR ERZAE TR PR ) 1

(long position)

EmBERA (FB)
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Notes:

(1) CGN indirectly holds 100% of the total issued share capital of CGN Energy International,
which directly holds approximately 72.30% of the issued share capital of the Company,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary CGNPC International. Accordingly, CGN is deemed
to have an interest in all Shares held by CGN Energy International.

(2) CGNPC International directly holds 87.28% of the total issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, which directly holds approximately 72.30% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and indirectly holds 12.72% of the issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Gold Sky Capital Limited.
Accordingly, CGNPC International is deemed to have an interest in all Shares held by
CGN Energy International.

(3) Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, as of the date of this report, none of the Directors is
a director or employee of a company which had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 24 November 2015 for the purpose of enabling the Company to
(i) establish incentive and mechanism that is in line with market practice and
satisfies the Company’s development strategy needs so as to facilitate long-
term development of the Company and maximise Shareholders’ value, and
(ii) optimise the remuneration structure of core employees of the Company
such that the competitiveness of the Company’s remuneration system may be
enhanced, which will in turn attract and retain core management and technical
staff to serve the Company for a long period of time. All Options (as defined
below) ever granted under the Share Option Scheme have lapsed. No Options
were granted, exercised nor cancelled during the year ended 31 December
2024. Accordingly, the number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2024 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was nil.

(1) Eligible Participants to the Share Option
Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant options (the “Options”) to any eligible participants
(the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe at a price calculated in
accordance with paragraph (8) below for such number of Shares as
it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Participants to any Options
shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis of
his/her contribution to the development and growth of the Group in the
opinion of the Directors.
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Report of the Directors

Maximum Number of Shares Available for
Exercise

The total number of new Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other effective share option schemes (if any) of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
same class as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
which is 429,082,400 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 10 April 2025, being the latest practicable date for
ascertaining the information contained in this report before its bulk-
printing.

The Company may at any time as the Board thinks fit seek approval
from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit save that
the total number of new Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the refreshment of
the Scheme Mandate Limit and the maximum number of new Shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of securities available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was nil.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible
Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted and to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other effective
share option scheme(s) (if any) of the Company to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares of the same class.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons
Pursuant to Rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Any grant of Options to an Eligible Participant who is a
Director, chief executive of the Company or substantial
Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or their
respective associates (including a discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include a Director, chief executive or a
substantial Shareholder of a company beneficially owned by
any Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder) must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors.

(2)

(3)
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(4)

(b)

Where the Board proposes to grant any Option to an Eligible
Participant who is a substantial Shareholder or its associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include a substantial Shareholder or a company beneficially
owned by any substantial Shareholder) would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options
already granted and to be granted (including Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue; and

ii. having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, over
HK$5,000,000.00,

such proposed grant of Options must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case, the Company
shall send a circular to its Shareholders containing all those
terms as required under the Listing Rules. All connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting at such
general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the relevant resolution provided that his intention to
do so has been stated in this circular). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such Options must be taken
on a poll.

The total number of options available for grant under the
Share Option Scheme at the beginning and the end of the year
ended 31 December 2024 is 429,082,400 and 429,082,400,
respectively. No service provider sublimit was set under the
Share Option Scheme.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised at any time during a period of 3 years
from the date after the completion of the minimum period for which the
Option must be held as described in paragraph (5) below.
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Report of the Directors

Exercisable Period

Subject to the fulfilment of the exercise conditions as described in
paragraph (6) below, the Options are exercisable (subject as provided
below) during each Exercisable Period specified below for up to the

(5)

ERTHRS

AI{T{EHAR
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number of Shares specified below:

Maximum number of Shares

R= k5 #E

BB

Exercisable Period

5] 17 {5 23 R

approximately one-third of the Shares fall to be issued on
exercise of the Options*
BIINEREETHERETRITORMN=22—

approximately an additional one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*
N B R EETHERR T ETHRMH SIS

=pz—

approximately the remaining one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*

RN EBREEITEREFETHNRMGONERT
e

the first business day after 24 months from the offer date to

the last business day in the 60th month after the offer date
EHOHBARE4ERBNE—EEXHEZLNBHBE
FeoEANRE—EEXEH

the first business day after 36 months from the offer date to

the last business day in the 72th month after the offer date

BEMNHBE6EARNE—EEXBESNERE

FT2ERMNERE —EEXH

the first business day after 48 months from the offer date to

the last business day in the 84th month after the offer date

BEMNHPE48ERRNE—EEXBESNERE

BeAE RN EE—EEXA

*Note:  The Board may at its absolute discretion determine the exact number of the

Shares fall to be issued on exercise of the Options.

Exercise Conditions

The Board or its delegate(s) may at their sole discretion specify, as
part of the terms and conditions of any Option, any performance
targets or conditions that must be satisfied before the Option can be
exercised as part of the terms and conditions of any Option.

Offer of Options

The Company and Eligible Participants shall enter into a share
option agreement upon the offer to set out the rights and obligations
of both parties. Share option agreement shall contain information
among others, names, identification card number, address, contact
information, and any other matters. Eligible Participants shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as the nominal consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.

(6)

(7)
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(8) Exercise Price for Shares

The exercise price for Shares issuable under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which
must be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date.
(9) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted by the Shareholders, unless otherwise terminated under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Shareholders on 24 November 2015 and, as at the
date of this report, has a remaining life of approximately 7 months.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
and no equity-linked agreement subsisted as at the end of the year ended 31
December 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provide that each Director is entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the year ended 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this report, the Company has arranged directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into certain
transactions with connected persons. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are as follows:

(A) With CGN and its subsidiaries, excluding
the Group (the “CGN Group”)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements

1(a) Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited*

(PEZEXRZEARMRAT)(“CGNPC Huasheng”) and
the Company entered into the financial services (CGNPC
Huasheng) framework agreement (the “2014 Financial
Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement’)
in relation to the deposit and other financial services
arrangements in Hong Kong provided by CGNPC Huasheng to
the Group, which was effective from 12 September 2014 to 29
May 2015, being the date of the first annual general meeting
of the Company after its listing. The first renewal of the 2014
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the first annual general meeting of the Company
with effect from 30 May 2015 to and including 31 December
2017. The second renewal of the 2014 Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 December
2017 with effect from 1 January 2018 to and including 31
December 2020. The third renewal of the 2014 Financial
Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement, together
with certain amendments, was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 23 December 2020 with effect from 1
January 2021 to and including 31 December 20283.
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On 18 January 2024, the Company and CGNPC Huasheng
entered into certain financial services (CGNPC Huasheng)
framework agreement in relation to the provision of deposit
and other financial services to the Group with effect from
18 January 2024 to and including 31 December 2024. On
25 April 2024, in order to revise the existing annual caps,
the Company and CGNPC Huasheng entered into another
financial services (CGNPC Huasheng) framework agreement
(the “Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework
Agreement”’) which was then approved by independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 23 May 2024 effective from 23 May
2024 to and including 31 December 2026, terminating the
financial services (CGNPC Huasheng) framework agreement
dated 18 January 2024.

CGNPC Huasheng is a wholly owned subsidiary of CGN which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the prospectus of the
Company dated 19 September 2014 (the “Prospectus”), the
announcements of the Company dated 18 January 2024 and
25 April 2024 and the circulars of the Company dated 20 April
2015, 30 November 2017, 25 November 2020 and 7 May
2024.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum outstanding
balance of deposits to be placed by the Group with CGNPC
Huasheng under the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement, together with the relevant interest to
be received and service fees (if any), for the period from 23
May 2024 to and including 31 December 2024 amounted
to US$260.0 million. The maximum outstanding balance
of deposits placed by the Group with CGNPC Huasheng
under the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework
Agreement, together with the relevant interest and service fees
received (if any), for the period from 23 May 2024 to and
including 31 December 2024 was approximately US$168.7
million.
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1(b) Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework

Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGN Finance Co., Ltd.* (REZB1 75
BIRE(EAT) (“CGN Finance”) and the Company entered
into the financial services (CGN Finance) framework agreement
(the “2014 Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework
Agreement”) in relation to the deposit and other financial
services arrangements in the PRC provided by CGN Finance to
the Group, which was effective from 12 September 2014 to 29
May 2015, being the date of the first annual general meeting
of the Company after its listing. The first renewal of the 2014
Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework Agreement was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the first annual general meeting of the Company with effect
from 30 May 2015 to and including 31 December 2017. The
second renewal of the 2014 Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 18 December 2017 with effect from
1 January 2018 to and including 31 December 2020. The
third renewal of the 2014 Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement, together with certain amendments, was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
December 2020 with effect from 1 January 2021 to and
including 31 December 2023.

On 18 January 2024, the Company and CGN Finance entered
into certain financial services (CGN Finance) framework
agreement in relation to the provision of deposit and other
financial services to the Group with effect from 18 January
2024 to and including 31 December 2024. On 25 April 2024,
in order to revise the existing annual caps, the Company and
CGN Finance entered into another financial services (CGN
Finance) framework agreement (the “Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement”, together with the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement,
the “Financial Services Framework Agreements”) which
was then approved by independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 May 2024 effective from 23 May 2024 to and including
31 December 2026, terminating the financial services (CGN
Finance) framework agreement dated 18 January 2024.
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CGN Finance is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

For further details, please refer to the Prospectus, the
announcements of the Company dated 18 January 2024 and
25 April 2024 and the circulars of the Company dated 20 April
2015, 30 November 2017, 25 November 2020 and 7 May
2024.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum outstanding
balance of deposits to be placed by the Group with CGN
Finance under the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement, together with the relevant interest to
be received and service fees (if any), for the period from 23
May 2024 to and including 31 December 2024 amounted
to US$540.0 million. The maximum outstanding balance of
deposits placed by the Group with CGN Finance under the
Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework Agreement,
together with the relevant interest and service fees received
(if any), for the period from 23 May 2024 to and including 31
December 2024 was approximately US$311.6 million.

As the nature of the services to be provided to the Group
under the Financial Services Framework Agreements is similar,
the annual caps under the Financial Services Framework
Agreements were aggregated pursuant to Rules 14.22 and
14A.81 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of determining the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting and announcement requirements

2(a) Operation and Management Services (CGN

Energy) Framework Agreement

On 20 August 2014, CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd.*
(PFEZERMEBMREMLAT) ("CGN Energy”’) and
the Company entered into the operation and management
services (CGN Energy) framework agreement (the “Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide, or procure a subsidiary of the Company to provide
operation and management services to power projects
(whether in operation or under construction) in which CGN
Energy had interest. The initial term of this agreement was
from 1 May 2014 to 31 December 2016. The Company
served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 where
the principal terms (other than renewal of the term) of the
renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement remained the same as the original
Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement”). The Company
further served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with
the terms of the 2016 Renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such
agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 where the principal terms (other than renewal
of the term) of the further renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”).The Company further served a notice to CGN
Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2019 Renewed
Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The principal
terms (other than renewal of the term and certain amendments)
of the further renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (CGN
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2020 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

On 8 November 2023, the Company further served a notice
to CGN Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for another
three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 with
the same principal terms except for the renewed duration.

ERTHRS

BETFHRRAEHENN T ESRIFEMES

e

2(a)

RE R EERE (REZAETR) 1E

215

2014588200 FEZEREES
REFAE (HREZKER)) EARRQEE]
UREREERE (PEZER ERD
# ((REREER (P EZER) EZ
W& B XATDERRRME X
RERARTDN—KHERAIRELE
REEBRBEFTHIEZERES#AN
BHEE FHmeEEPRER) - ZiH
EVTFEHA2014FE581HE20164F
12831 H AR B BIRFELE R EIER
¥ (PEZAER) ERpEN G B P E
ZEEREHBRN EEEMBER=F"
H2017F181HEE2019F12831H
I EPEEENLCERETERE (R
BEZER) ERBENEIERR (EER
PRBRSN RS KR EIBARTS (P EZAE
R) ERGHRAER (BEEEENE
H) (2016 FREENKEREER
% (PEZER) EERHBE) - AAFR
B0 EREENKEREERS (Fh
EZER ERBENERBRETE
ZEEREHBRN  EEEMRE—F
H2020F 181 HEE2020F12831H
I ERFBREEENLEREERS
(PEZIER) ERBENEERR (B
EHARRMRIN RS R EERY (TE
ZEETR) ERGZEAER (BEEEEN
HFEAR) (MROIIELKEENLERE
B (PEIZAER) ERBZE) - A2
BlIRIECO1OFE KL EHNLE R EER
% (PEZER) ERBZENGEREBR
BPEZERSEHEN SEEEMBHE
=% [H2021FE181HEEE2023F12
B31HILE BREENLCERTERKE
(PEZAER) ERBENEEET (B
BHRRETEIIRN BRECERE
ER® (FEZIER) ERGEBER (8
FEEBENFERN) ([2020F K EEF
MRS R EERT (FEZER B
E A

£2023F11H8H » A B R IK20204F
BREHANCEREERD (FEZER)
EZR 7 E NI B R E P EZERE
LB EEERE=E > H20245F
1B1B#E2026F12831H L BRE
EHARRSN  E BB o

2024 FERE | FEREENERERERAE

91



92

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

2(b)

CGN Energy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016, 4 December 2019 and
8 November 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 25
November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement

On 15 September 2014, Huamei Holding Company Limited
(“Huamei Holding”) and the Company entered into the
operation and management services (Huamei Holding)
framework agreement (the “Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide, or procure
a subsidiary of the Company to provide, operation and
management services to power projects (whether in operation
or under construction) in which a subsidiary of the group of
companies which were transferred to CGN Energy International
as part of the reorganization of the Group as described in the
Prospectus under which Huamei Holding had interest. The
initial term of this agreement was from 15 September 2014 to
31 December 2016. The Company served a notice to Huamei
Holding in accordance with the terms of the Operation and
Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement
to renew such agreement for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019 where the principal terms
(other than renewal of the term) of the renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement remained the same as the original Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”). The Company
further served a notice to Huamei Holding in accordance with
the terms of the 2016 Renewed Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement to renew
such agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020 where the principal terms (other than
renewal of the term) of the further renewed Operation and
Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement (including
the calculation of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed
Operation and Management Services (Huamei Holding)
Framework Agreement”). The Company further served a
notice to Huamei Holding in accordance with the terms of the
2019 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for
a term of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023 where the principal terms (other than renewal of the term
and certain amendments) of the further renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement remained the same as the original Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2020 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”).
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On 8 November 2023, the Company further served a notice
to Huamei Holding in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Renewed Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for
another three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 with the same principal terms except for the renewed
duration.

Huamei Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement and its renewals
were disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016, 4 December 2019 and
8 November 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 25
November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (wind energy) framework
agreement (the “Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement”) with CGN Wind
Power Company, Limited (F/EZEBEAERAE) (“CGN Wind
Energy”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide,
or procure a subsidiary of the Company to provide operation
and management services to power projects (whether in
operation or under construction) in which CGN Wind Energy
had interest. The relevant subsidiaries of the Company would
provide comprehensive operation and management services
according to the requirements of the service recipient, and
may appoint personnel to be responsible for or to be involved
in the operations management, financial management, human
resources management, technical management, information
management, and/or safety management of the relevant
power project or company which held interest in the relevant
power project. The term of this agreement was from 17
June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The Company served a
notice to CGN Wind Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the principal
terms of the renewed Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement”). The Company further served a notice to
CGN Wind Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2017
Renewed Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term
of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 20283.
Save for the renewal of the term of the agreement and certain
amendments, the principal terms of the renewed Operation and
Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and the
2017 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2020 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement”).
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EXOHRS

On 8 November 2023, the Company further served a notice to
CGN Wind Energy in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for
another three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 with the same principal terms except for the renewed
duration.

CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 17
June 2015 and 8 November 2023, and the circulars of the
Company dated 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided under the
Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement, the Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement and the
Operation and Management Services (Huamei Holding)
Framework Agreement (collectively, the “Operation and
Management Services Framework Agreements”) is similar,
the annual cap for the management fees payable thereunder
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was determined on an
aggregate basis and amounted to US$43.0 million. The actual
management fees paid under the Operation and Management
Services Framework Agreements for the year ended 31
December 2024 were approximately US$30.7 million.

Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreements

On 10 July 2020, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology Co.,
Limited (“CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology”) and
the Company entered into the maintenance services of wind
farms and photovoltaic power plants framework agreement
(the “2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to engage CGN
(Beijing) New Energy Technology to provide maintenance
services (which may include the provision of information
services, two measures services, overhaul services, repairs,
maintenance and upgrading of facilities and equipment, regular
inspection services, and pre-testing services, installation and
replacement of equipment and spare parts services) to certain
wind farms and photovoltaic power plants of the Group. The
term of this agreement was one year from 10 July 2020 to 9
July 2021, subject to renewal by way of written notice to CGN
(Beijing) New Energy Technology upon its expiry.
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Report of the Directors

On 29 April 2021, the Company and CGN (Beijing) New
Energy Technology further entered into the maintenance
services of wind farms and photovoltaic power plants
framework agreement (the “2021 Maintenance Services of
Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreement”) to renew the 2020 Maintenance Services
of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreement for a term of three years from 10 July 2021 to 9
July 2024.

On 20 November 2024, the Company and CGN (Beijing) New
Energy Technology further entered into the wind farms and
photovoltaic power plants operation and maintenance services
framework agreement (the “2024 Maintenance Services of
Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreement”’) for a period from 20 November 2024 to 31
December 2026, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
engage CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology to provide
technical maintenance services to wind farms and photovoltaic
power plants of the Group.

CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology is a wholly owned
subsidiary of CGN Solar Energy, which is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the 2020 Maintenance Services of
Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreement, the 2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms
and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement and
2024 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 July 2020, 29 April
2021 and 20 November 2024, respectively.

The estimated cap for the maximum service fee payable by the
Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology under the
2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants Framework Agreement for the period from 1
January 2024 to 9 July 2024 amounted to RMB33.8 million.
The actual service fee paid by the Company to CGN (Beijing)
New Energy Technology under the 2021 Maintenance Services
of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreement for such period was approximately RMB20.8
million.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum service fee
payable by the Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy
Technology under the 2024 Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement
for the period from 20 November 2024 to 31 December 2024
amounted to RMB50.0 million. The actual service fee paid
by the Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology
under the 2024 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement for such
period was approximately RMB50.0 million.
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Shared Services Agreement

On 30 July 2021, CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CGN Shenzhen”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy Development
Co., Ltd.* (FEZKIGHEMEARRAS)(“CGN Solar
Energy”), and CGN Energy entered into the shared services
agreement (the “Shared Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy and CGN Energy,
and their respective subsidiaries from time to time (collectively,
the “Service Providers”) agreed to provide various types
of shared services, including but not limited to (i) usage of
office and business premises; (ii) human resources support;
(iii) repair and maintenance services; (iv) office and meeting
administrative services; and (v) other operational resources
support, to CGN Shenzhen and its subsidiaries from time to
time (collectively, the “Service Recipients”). The term of the
Shared Services Agreement was from 30 July 2021 to 31
December 2023, subject to renewal by the parties thereto in
writing before the expiry of its term.

On 8 November 2023, CGN Shenzhen served a notice to each
of CGN Wind Energy and CGN Energy to renew the term of
the Shared Services Agreement for another three years from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026 with the same principal
terms except for the renewed duration and the removal of CGN
Solar Energy as a party due to the fact that CGN Solar Energy
had become a wholly owned subsidiary of CGN Wind Energy.

Each of CGN Wind Energy and CGN Energy is a subsidiary
of CGN, and is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Shared Services Agreement and its
renewal were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 30 July 2021 and 8 November 20283.

The estimated annual cap for the service fee payable by the
Service Recipients to the Service Providers for the year ended
31 December 2024 was RMB177.8 million. The actual service
fee paid by the Service Recipients to the Service Providers
under the Shared Services Agreement for the same period was
approximately RMB107.9 million.
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Report of the Directors

Power Agency Service Framework Agreement

On 29 August 2023, CGN Shenzhen and CGN Wind
Energy entered into a new energy station power agency
service framework agreement (the “Power Agency Service
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which CGN Shenzhen
(or its subsidiaries) agreed to provide the services to CGN
Wind Energy of acting as an agent for and on behalf of
CGN Wind Energy (or its subsidiaries) to procure the sale of
electricity generated by CGN Wind Energy (or its subsidiaries)
to downstream users for the period from 1 September 2023 to
31 December 2023 and the two years ending 31 December
2025.

CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN
and therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Power Agency Service Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 August 2023.

The estimated annual cap in respect of the Power Agency
Service Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2024 was RMB39.8 million. The actual service fees
received for such period were approximately RMB18.9 million.

Energy Storage Services Agreement

On 22 August 2023, the following wholly owned subsidiaries
as clients on the one part: (i) CGN Yiyang New Energy Co.,
Ltd.; (ii) Lengshuijiang CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.; (iii) Zixing
CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.; and (iv) Xiangxiang CGN New
Energy Co., Ltd., and CGN (Hunan) New Energy Development
Co., Ltd., Xintian Branch (“CGN Hunan Xintian”) on the
other part, entered into a new energy supporting energy
storage services agreement (the “Energy Storage Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which CGN Hunan Xintian agreed
to provide energy storage facilities and related services to the
clients above in respect of certain wind power farms of the
client above in Hunan Province for the period from 22 August
2023 to 31 December 2023 and the two years ending 31
December 2025.

CGN Hunan Xintian is a branch of CGN (Hunan) New
Energy Development Co., Ltd. which is in turn a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of CGN. CGN Hunan Xintian is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Energy Storage Services Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
August 20283.

The estimated annual cap in respect of the Energy Storage
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2024
was RMB23.3 million. The actual service fees paid for such
period were approximately RMB12.8 million.
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*

Maintenance Services Framework Agreement

On 12 May 2023, Yunnan CGN Energy Services Co., Ltd
(“CGN Yunnan”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and CGN Wind Energy entered into a wind farms and
photovoltaic power stations maintenance services framework
agreement (the “Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which CGN Yunnan agreed to
provide repair, maintenance, testing and cleaning services for
facilities and equipment in the wind and photovoltaic power
plants to CGN Wind Energy (or its subsidiaries) for the period
from 12 May 2023 to 31 December 2023 and the two years
ending 31 December 2025.

CGN Wind Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN
and therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 May 2023.

The estimated annual cap in respect of the Maintenance
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2024 was RMB40.0 million. The actual service fees
received for such period were approximately RMB2.9 million.

For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors

General

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group as mentioned above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 and have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better (as defined in the Listing
Rules); and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;
2. were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of

goods or services by the Group;

3. were entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above, none
of these related party transactions constitutes discloseable connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In relation to
those related party transactions that also constitute connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, they have complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-Competition
Deed”) with CGN on 15 September 2014 under which CGN agreed not to,
and agreed to procure its subsidiaries (other than the Group) not to, compete
with the Group in its non-nuclear power business (save for the retention of the
existing Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus) of the CGN Group
or any future business which the CGN Group has carried on pursuant to the
terms of the Non-Competition Deed) and granted the Company with a right to
acquire the Retained Business of the CGN Group and a right to acquire any
new business or equity investment opportunity directed to the Group according
to the terms of the Non-Competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from CGN confirming to the
Company on its compliance with the relevant non-competing procedures set
out in the Non-Competition Deed and having protected the right granted to the
Company under the Non-Competition Deed to invest in or acquire the relevant
projects during the year ended 31 December 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the independent non-executive
Directors (the “Disinterested Directors”), being the Directors other than
those who are also directors and senior management personnel of the CGN
Group, had reviewed several business or investment opportunities offered by
or referred to by the CGN Group pursuant to the Non-Competition Deed. The
Disinterested Directors considered the opportunities taking into account, inter
alia, the following:

(a) whether such business or investment opportunities would create or
would likely create competition with the principal business of the
Group;

(b) the business and financial performance and potential of the subject

business or investment opportunities;

(c) the feasibility and viability for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities (in terms of the
availability of management, financial and business resources and
expertise);

(d) the terms and conditions of the acquisition of or taking on the subject
business or investment opportunities;

(e) the financial budget and business plan of the Group for undertaking
the subject business or investment opportunities in the relevant year;

(f) result of a cost-benefit analysis for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities, and whether such
subject opportunities are consistent with the business development
strategy of the Group, and whether it is likely to create any strategic or
synergy value to the Group’s existing business;
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Report of the Directors

(9) the likely risks associated with the subject business or investment
opportunities should the Group acquire, take on, operate or participate
in such subject opportunities; and

(h) the equity internal rate of return and/or the expected internal rate of
return of the subject business or investment opportunities.

As a result, we had not exercised any right to acquire or invest in those
businesses or investment opportunities.

The Disinterested Directors have reviewed compliance by CGN’s compliance
with the Non-Competition Deed and confirmed that based on the confirmations
and information provided by CGN, CGN was in compliance with the Non-
Competition Deed during the year ended 31 December 2024,

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of the date of this report, so far as the Directors were aware, none of the
Directors, and their respective close associates had interest in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

We determined the emoluments of our Directors and employees based on their
respective performance, working experience, roles and responsibilities as well
as market factors. We offer our executive Directors and senior management
members, who are also employees of our Company, various compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension scheme, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other benefits in kind. We provide our employees with
salaries and discretionary bonuses, as well as employee benefits, including
retirement schemes, medical and life insurance schemes, housing and other
benefits in kind. None of our Directors has waived or agreed to waive his
Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2024.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” SUMMARY

This section presents the summary of the Company's “Environmental, Social,
and Governance Report” (the “ESG Report”). It outlines the Company's
core strategies and achievements in sustainable development in 2024.
During the reporting period, the Company upheld the principle of sustainable
development, actively fulfilled its environmental, social, and governance
responsibilities, and closely cooperated with stakeholders to achieve mutual
benefits. As an electricity generation company, the Company remains
committed to contributing to the “dual carbon” goal, proactively responding to
national policy directives, focusing on core business growth while expanding
its market presence, and accelerating the development of a top new energy
enterprise.
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GOVERNANCE

The Company actively establishes a robust, efficient, transparent, and orderly
corporate governance mechanism to promote high-quality and sustainable
development. During the reporting period, the Company enhanced its ESG
governance through various measures, including assessing ESG risks and
management practices, reviewing the progress of existing environmental
targets, analyzing the feasibility of greenhouse gas Scope 3 data collection,
and conducting climate risk assessments. The Company also received
numerous honors during the reporting period, including the “Best ESG” awards
(Environmental and Social 2 awards) at the 10th Investor Relations Awards
by the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, showcasing its outstanding
achievements in sustainable development. Looking ahead, we will continue
to optimize sustainability management and information disclosure practices,
ensuring steady progress towards our business strategies and goals while
creating long-term value for stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENT

The Company consistently upholds its mission of “Developing Clean Energy,
Building a Beautiful China”, sets up targets for the total installed capacity
annually, and provides continuous impetus for the development of clean
energy in the fields such as wind, solar, hydro, gas-fired, fuel cells and
biomass, while promoting continuous progress and self-improvement. In
environmental management, the safety, quality, and environmental protection
department of the Company regularly reviews and enhances environmental
safety management, and conducts annual performance evaluations and
assessments for various departments, centers, branches and subsidiaries. To
ensure compliance with national environmental safety laws and regulations, the
Company strictly monitors emissions standards for air pollution, wastewater,
and waste. In ecological protection, the Company actively participates in
environmental restoration projects, endeavors to improve local ecosystems
where projects are based, and is committed to preserving biodiversity.
Regarding climate change, the Company proactively addresses and manages
climate-related risks, strengthens its ability to respond to climate challenges.
As clean energy becomes a global development trend, the Company will
seize national clean energy development opportunities, continue to cultivate
the clean energy market, and strive to provide safe, environmentally friendly,
and economical clean energy, contributing to the realization of national “dual
carbon” goal.
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SOCIAL

In its operations and development, the Company thoroughly implements the
core principle of “Safety First, Quality Foremost, and Pursuing Excellence”.
In terms of safety management, the Company continuously advances the
construction of the safety management system by clearly defining safety
responsibilities at all levels, conducting safety training and supervision,
organizing annual health check-ups for employees, and providing personal
protective equipment to strengthen safety production. In talent development, the
Company offers diversified vocational training based on the skill requirements
of different project positions and establishes clear career development
paths, enabling employees to enhance their professional competitiveness
while creating value for the Company. In terms of quality management, the
Company rigorously selects suppliers, strengthens environmental and social
risk management within the supply chain, and enhances internal management
policies for electricity sales and trading to ensure regulatory compliance in
business operations. In technological innovation, the Company enhances
its scientific research management system, strengthened the cultivation of
R&D talent, and continuously improves its core competitiveness. Regarding
community contribution, the Company fulfills its social responsibilities as a
central state-owned enterprise through initiatives such as educational support,
emergency assistance, and rural revitalization efforts.

For more details, please refer to the full version of the “Environmental, Social,
and Governance Report of CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 2024”

published on the HKEX news website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's
website (www.cgnne.com).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available information and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has sufficient public float
as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to approximately HK$3,289,000 (2023:
HK$13,678,000).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
KPMG as auditor of the Company.

There was no change in auditors of the Company in any of the preceding three
years.

On behalf of the Board

Li Guangming
President and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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The Board considers effective corporate governance to be a key component
in the sustained development of the Group and believes that good corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting
shareholder value and investor confidence. The Board sets appropriate policies
and implements corporate governance practices for the conduct and growth of
the Group’s business.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. The Board considers that the Company was in compliance with all
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2024.

External Auditor
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Corporate Governance Framework of the Company
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility for overseeing all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring of
the performance of the senior management. The Directors make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises seven Directors, including two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Members of
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Secretary of the Communist Party Committee,
Chairman and Executive Director:

Mr. Zhang Zhiwu

President and Executive Director:
Mr. Li Guangming

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on 7 February 2024)
Ms. Mu Wenjun (appointed on 31 July 2024)

Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on 7 February 2024)
Mr. Liu Qingming (resigned on 31 July 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Biographical details and relationships among members of the Board as at the
date of this report are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing day-
to-day operations, business strategies and management of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Director, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

During the year, the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) provided the Company with a diverse range of expertise
and a balance of skills, and brought independent judgments in issues pertinent
to strategic direction, development, performance and risk management through
their contribution at the Board meetings and Board committee meetings.
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Chairman and President

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhang Zhiwu and the President is Mr. Li
Guangming. The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the President are
separate and are not performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Zhiwu is
principally responsible for overall corporate strategies planning and business
development of the Group, while Mr. Li Guangming is principally responsible
for leading and managing all the activities of the Group to achieve the goals
and objectives set by the Board, identifying and recommending the short,
medium and long-term business strategies, directing and executing the
Group’s plans and budgets, directing and organizing the Group’s material,
human and economic resources to deliver the corporate results, identifying
and developing business opportunities for the growth of the Group.

Appointments, re-election and removal of
Directors

Each Director has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws. In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Mu
Wenjun will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election. Mr. Wang Minhao and Mr.
Leung Chi Ching Frederick will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election, in accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws.

Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals
with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication.

Board meetings in each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of Directors.

Our Corporate Culture

The Company is always committed to maintaining a corporate culture that
is consistent with its Mission, Vision, Basic Principles, Values, Idea of
Management and Code of Conduct. Our Mission, Vision, Basic Principles,
Values, Idea of Management and Code of Conduct, the details of which are
available on the Company’s website (www.cgnne.com), are the driving force
and guiding principle for the Group’s daily operation and sustained growth. In
2024, efforts to continuously strengthen our corporate culture have been taken
as set out in the ESG Report. The Board acts with integrity, leads by example,
and promotes the Company’s culture.
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The calendar of regular Board meetings, Board Committees (as defined below)
meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2024 is

shown below:

Corporate Governance Report
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BE2024F 1283 1HLEFEMNEFEERER EF
BZEE (BEEUD) EFURKBRFAGEERNT ©

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
18 2H 38 48 58 68 78 8H 9H 108 118 128
Board BExg v v v v
Nomination Committee RHEER 4
Remuneration Committee ¥ MZEES 4 v/
Audit Committee BREER v v v
Investment and Risk CEBREREE
Management Committee ~ ZEE v/ v/ v/
General Meeting REAE o Note T
Note: ~ The Company held two general meetings in May 2024. Hiat . R2024F58  RABIRITTMRBEKRE ©

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held four regular Board

meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company held an annual

REE2024F12831HIEEE EEG
HEEggH-

REE2024F12831HIEEE » AAT

BEETHERE

BEET XK

general meeting (the “2024 AGM”) and a special general meeting. REFAE (12024 FRRBEERE ) A—XKEFH
Ko
The table below sets forth the number of such meetings of the Board and  FREINE E2024F 12831 HEFESERESY
Board Committees and general meetings attended by each Director who held FREEEZTETZLETELZETEEUAREARE
office during the year ended 31 December 2024: ZRE
Attendance/Number of meetings
BRELER/RY
Investment
and Risk
Nomination Remuneration Audit  Management General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BREHERE
Name of Director RN EE4 RLZEY HFHWEEE BRRET EEZREY BRRAE
Secretary of the Communist Party BREN IEEWNTES.
Committee, Chairman and
Executive Director:
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu RERLE 4/4 171 - = - 2/2
President and Executive Director: BERNTES:
Mr. Li Guangming ERBERE 4/4 - - - - 2/2
Non-executive Directors: FRITES .
Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on B (7220244 4/4 - N/A - 2/2 2/2
7 February 2024) (Note i) 2ATEEZT) (Witi) B
Ms. Mu Wenjun (appointed on ENELT (20245 2/2 - - 2/2 - N/A
31 July 2024) (Note /i) 7B BREEME) (Hati) B
Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on BB LA (7220244 N/A - - - N/A N/A
7 February 2024) (Note iii) 2ATREHME) (i) ~EA NEA ~EA
Mr. Liu Qingming (resigned on 2IERLE (20245 1/2 - 1/2 11 11 0/2
31 July 2024) (Note iv) TR BEHE) (H7#iv)
Independent Non-executive Directors: HIFHITES !
Mr. Wang Minhao ITRERE 4/4 11 2/2 - - 2/2
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRERE 4/4 il 2/2 3/3 3/3 2/2
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick RYELRE 4/4 - - 3/3 3/3 2/2
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Note i: Mr. Zhao Xianwen was appointed as a non-executive Director on 7 February 2024 and

was appointed as the chairman of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee on 31 July 2024. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 February 2024 and 31 July 2024,
respectively.

Note i Ms. Mu Wenjun was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of the Audit

Committee on 31 July 2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 July 2024. During the year ended 31 December 2024, no general
meeting was held after her appointment took effect.

Note iii:  Mr. Chen Xinguo resigned as a non-executive Director and the chairman of the

Investment and Risk Management Committee on 7 February 2024. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 February 2024. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, no general meeting was held before his resignation took
effect.

Note iv: Mr. Liu Qingming resigned as a non-executive Director, the chairman of the Investment

and Risk Management Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee on 31 July 2024. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2024.

Corporate Governance

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code including the development of policies and
practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct applicable to the employees
of the Company and the Directors, the compliance with the CG Code of the
Company and the disclosure in this report.

Training and support for Directors

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code with regards
to continuous professional development, all Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Upon appointment to the Board, all newly appointed Directors have been
provided with necessary induction training and materials to ensure that they
have proper understanding of the operation and business of the Company and
their responsibilities under the relevant laws, regulations and rules. Mr. Zhao
Xianwen and Ms. Mu Wenjun (appointed as a non-executive Director on 7
February 2024 and 31 July 2024, respectively) had obtained the legal advice
referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 7 February 2024 and 24 July
2024, respectively. They had confirmed they understood their obligations as a
director of the Company.

To further ensure that all Directors are adequately informed about the
Company’s business and operations as well as their responsibilities under
relevant laws, rules and regulations, the Joint Company Secretaries regularly
provides all Directors with information regarding the Company’s most recent
performance as well as updates on latest amendments and developments to
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has
organised trainings in respect of the latest updates with the Listing Rules.
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The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2024
received the following trainings during the same period according to the
records provided by the Directors:
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REEFRERMNEH  RE&E2024F12831HLEFE
EEEERRREZOEINOT ¢

TYPES OF TRAINING:
HRHIEE

Reading of materials
in respect of updates

Attendance for

on the Company’s

Visit to power

trainings/seminars/ business, duties plants and
meetings in respect and responsibilities facilities and
of the Company’s of Directors their respective
business or duties and regulatory management
of Directors requirements personnel
HEEAARER
HEEMAATERY EIRBEREEUR BHEERK
EEREMNIEN EEHRTHMN HEAREBEN
Weig & BHEN EEAE
Secretary of the Communist Party BRED IRERNTES:
Committee, Chairman and
Executive Director:
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu RERGLE v v v
President and Executive Director: BHRATES:
Mr. Li Guangming FRBERE v v Vv
Non-executive Directors: FRTES:
Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on BB L (Ro024FE2R7REET) v v v
7 February 2024)
Ms. Mu Wenjun (appointed on ENELT (R2024E7E31HEER D) v v v
31 July 2024)
Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on BRHEEISE (2024528 7HEHD) N/A v N/A
7 February 2024) TEB TER
Mr. Liu Qingming (resigned on AIERELE (2024 F7R31HEHE) v v v
31 July 2024)
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Wang Minhao IRERE v v v
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRERE v v Vv
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick RFERE v v v

Directors’ insurance

During the year ended 31

out of corporate activities.

December 2024, the Company has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising
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Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
securities transactions

The Company has adopted its own code for securities transactions by
Directors (the “Company Code”), which are on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules, as a code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Company Code during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee,
a Nomination Committee and an Investment and Risk Management Committee
(collectively, the “Board Committees”). The terms of reference of the Board
Committees are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, respectively. Members of the Board Committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr. Leung Chi
Ching Frederick (independent non-executive Director), and the members are
Ms. Mu Wenjun (non-executive Director, appointed on 31 July 2024) and Mr.
Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director). Before 31 July 2024,
Mr. Liu Qingming (former non-executive Director) served as a member of the
Audit Committee.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. § Annual Report 2024

1220245128310 EREZEEMAFIESLE (BILF
WITES) BEEE HEGELEXELL GERTE
F1R2024F 7N BERME) RGRELE BILIFH
TESE) - R2024F7H31HA] 2FBEE FIIEATT
EX) REBEREEEME



Corporate Governance Report

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditors

(a)

(b)

(e)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider the plan for each year’s audit submitted by the external
auditors and discuss the same at a meeting if necessary;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed.

Review of the financial information of the Company

()

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and annual
reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. In reviewing these reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee shall focus particularly
on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(ii) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in

relation to financial reporting.
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(9)

in regard to (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

(ii) the Audit Committee shall consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, internal
auditors or external auditors.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control systems

(h)

(i)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems ;

to discuss the internal control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to management about accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to review arrangements which employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit Committee
should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;

l Annual Report 2024
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(p) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

(q) to review the continuing connected transactions to ensure compliance
with the terms approved by Shareholders;

(r) to establish whistleblowing policies and systems to allow employees
and others who have dealings with the Company (such as customers
and suppliers) to raise their concerns in secret to the Audit Committee
about any possible improper matters regarding the Company;

(s) to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(1) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Company are
in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, three Audit Committee meetings
were held, inter alia, to review the 2023 annual results, the 2024 interim
results and the internal control of the Group. The attendance records are
set out under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report. A recent meeting of the Audit Committee was held
on 18 March 2025 to consider the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024, the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity, the effectiveness of the audit process and the Group’s
internal control system, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr.
Wang Minhao (independent non-executive Director), and the members are Mr.
Zhao Xianwen (non-executive Director, appointed on 31 July 2024) and Mr.
Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director). Before 31 July 2024,
Mr. Liu Qingming (former non-executive Director) served as a member of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(a) to assess, review and make recommendations once a year or as and
when required, to the Board in respect of the remuneration packages
and overall benefits for the Directors;

(b) to make recommendations to the Board in relation to all consultancy
agreements and service contracts or any variations, renewals or
modifications thereof, entered into between the Company and the
Directors or any associate company of any of them;

(c) to consider what details of the remuneration/benefits of the Directors
should be reported in the Company’s annual reports and accounts
in addition to those required by law and how those details should be
presented;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for remuneration of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(e) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(f) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment);

(9) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

(h) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities as well as employment conditions of other
positions in the Group;

(i) to review and approve compensation payable to executive Director
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and reasonable and not excessive;

(J) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

(k) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and

Q)] to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, and to make disclosure and give
explanation on the appropriateness of such material matters (if any)
being reviewed and/or approved in the Corporate Governance Report.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2024
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held, inter alia, to review the remuneration structure and
packages of the Directors and senior management, and consider the
emoluments of candidates for the Director. The attendance records are set out
under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance”
in this report. A recent meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on
18 March 2025 to consider and review, among others, the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, the current
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr.
Zhang Zhiwu (Secretary of the Communist Party Committee, Chairman and
executive Director) and the members were Mr. Wang Minhao (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive
Director).

The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company;

(b) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship, including but not limited
to assessing the balance of skills, knowledge and experience as well
as diversification of Board members, and based on the assessment
results, to prepare a description of the roles and capabilities required
for individual appointments;

(c) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
(e) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the president of the Company;

(f) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
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(9) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Bye-laws
or imposed by the Listing Rules or applicable law; and

(h) to review the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board’s diversity policy.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the Company
are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will carry out
a selection process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations, and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates for directorship.

The Board has also adopted a Board diversity policy. The Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board diversity policy. Below is a
summary of the policy:

“The Board recognizes that board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company and enhances
Board effectiveness and corporate governance. In determining the optimum
composition of the Board, all Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board aims to
maintain a Board which has an appropriate mix of diversity, skills, experience
and expertise, as well as a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) so that
there is also independent element on the Board.”

The Company has an unwavering commitment to talent as a prime resource
for development. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in related business areas.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held, inter alia, to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and to consider, nominate and recommend appointment
and re-appointment of Directors. The attendance records are set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.
A recent meeting of the Nomination Committee was held on 18 March 2025 to
consider and review, among others, the composition of the Board, succession
planning for the Directors and the Board’s diversity policy.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2024
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To achieve gender diversity among Board members, the Company actively
seeks suitable females to join the Board and appointed Ms. Mu Wenjun as
a non-executive Director on 31 July 2024. As of the date of this report, the
Board has met the requirements for non-single gender members under the
Listing Rules.

The Company will also continue to ensure that there is gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that the Company will have a pipeline
of female management and potential successors to the Board in due time to
ensure gender diversity of the Board. The Group will continue to emphasize
training of female talent and provide long-term development opportunities for
female staff.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had about 2,409 full-time employees,
comprising of approximately 2,080 males and 329 females (that is, a male-
to-female ratio of approximately 6:1). The Group will continue to strive for
gender diversity and increase the female-to-male ratio in the whole workforce
in order to reflect the gender equality principle generally adhered by the
Group. The Board is mindful of the objectives for the factors as set out above
for assessing the candidacy of the Board members, and will ensure that
any successors to the Board shall follow the gender diversity policy. Similar
considerations shall also be in place to assess the candidacy of the senior
management team from time to time. The Group is determined to maintain
gender diversity and equality in terms of the whole workforce, and endeavours
to procure the senior management team to achieve gender equality in terms of
the gender ratio within one to two years. The Company expects the above is
achievable with suitable effort in promoting a gender diversity culture.

The Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism (the “Mechanism”) is
designed to ensure a strong independent element on the Board for ensuring
independent views and input are available to the Board which allows the Board
to exercise independent judgment effectively and enhances the accountability
and transparency of the Board, so as to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests. An annual review on Board independence has been conducted
to assess the Directors’ contribution to the Board (including the viewpoints,
perspectives, skills and experience they bring to the Board), aims to ensure
that it remains independent in judgement, and to continue to present an
objective and constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management. The Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Mechanism and makes changes as necessary.
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The major contents of the Mechanism are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(e)

(h)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Nomination Committee is established and maintained with clear terms
of reference to identify suitable candidates, including independent non-
executive Directors, for appointment as Directors;

“Procedures for Nomination of Directors and its Processes and
Criteria” is in place with details of the process and criteria of
identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating new
Directors;

Every independent non-executive Director is required to confirm
in writing to the Company his/her independence upon his/
her appointment as Director in accordance with the Company’s
“Procedures for Nomination of Directors and its Processes and
Criteria” and the Listing Rules as well as other regulatory requirements
(including but not limited to the requirements on independence,
qualifications, number of Directors and Board diversity);

Each independent non-executive Director has to declare his/her past or
present financial or other interests in the business of the Company and
its subsidiaries as soon as practicable, or his/her connection with any
of the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules),
if any;

Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in his/her own
personal particulars that may affect his/her independence;

Each independent non-executive Director is required to devote
sufficient time to the discharge of his duties as a Director and actively
participate in the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees;

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence of
all independent non-executive Directors and confirm if each of them
still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out in the Listing Rules
and is free from any relationships and circumstances which are likely
to affect, or could appear to affect, their own independent judgement.
Every Nomination Committee member is required to abstain from
assessing his/her own independence;

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it will
set out in the circular to Shareholders the reasons it believes he/
she should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to be
independent. The relevant independent non-executive Director is
required to abstain from assessing his/her own independence; and

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s
senior management independently, if necessary.
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As at the date of this report, the following table and paragraph illustrates
the composition and diversity of the Board in terms of four objective criteria,
namely (i) age group, (ii) cultural and educational background, (iii) professional
experience and (iv) industry experience, skills and knowledge.

EEELSHS

RAEREEH Lﬂ%w&sﬂ**;naﬂEﬂmm@%%mﬁ
EMEEEGHNBARAES T B()ERAR - (i)
AL RBE AR (i) B R AR R (v)(T 2485 F A
E

Age group Cultural and educational background Professional experience
FHAER XIEREERR EE 4

Accounting,
Audit,
Bachelor’s Master’s Doctoral Economics
degree degree degree and
40 to 49 50 to 59 60 to 69 70t0 79 holder holder holder Engineering Finance
EERYHE
40E495% 50Z595% 60Z695% T0E795% 21 Bt it I BERMH
14% 43% 29% 14% 43% 43% 14% 43% 57%

In addition to the above table, each of the Directors has at least one of the
following industry experience, skills or knowledge:

(a) Experience of electric power or energy-related industries;
(b) Engineering and Mechanic;

(c) Strategic planning;

(d) Investment and risk management;

(e) Corporate management (including internal control, operations, assets
and other aspects);

(f) Project management;

(9) Financial (including accounting, audit, finance, corporate finance, tax,
etc.);

(h) Negotiation and execution of commercial contracts;

(i) Public management and venture management;

(J) Environmental protection;

(k) Experience in management of listed companies;

O] Familiarity with the business environment of China; and

(m) Familiarity with the business environment of Hong Kong and the

international business environment.

The Nomination Committee considers that the existing composition of
the Board is diversified, taking into account the nature and scope of the
Group’s operations, specific needs as well as the different backgrounds of
our Directors. Furthermore, the Nomination Committee recommends that the
diversity of the Board in terms of (i) cultural and educational background, (ii)
professional experience, and (iii) industry experience, skills and knowledge
should be maintained, and that the Board should adopt these criteria as the
basis for the selection and assessment of candidates for Directors by the
Nomination Committee in the future.
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(9) M5 (BEgst
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FE R LERE-RNB

(h) BMEGRESRANT;

(i) NHEBRAEERE;
0) RIFERE ;

(k) LTHRBEEBEER ;
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

As of 31 December 2024, the Investment and Risk Management Committee
was chaired by Mr. Zhao Xianwen (non-executive Director, appointed on 31
July 2024), and the members were Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick (independent non-
executive Director). Before 31 July 2024, Mr. Liu Qingming (former non-
executive Director) served as the chairman of the Investment and Risk
Management Committee.

The majority of the members of the Investment and Risk Management
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The major duties of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee are as follows:

(a) to review major investment and strategy and objectives of project
financing of the Company;

(b) to review any major investment, financing proposal and operating
project matters of the Company that are subject to approval by the
Board in accordance with the “Board of Directors Delegation of
Authority Manual”;

(c) to review the development and objectives of the Company’s risk
management system;

(d) to supervise the soundness, reasonableness and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management system, and instruct the
comprehensive risk management of the Company;

(e) to study the risks of significant matters in major investment and
financing activities and operation management of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board;

(f) to study the significant investigation results and feedbacks from the
management concerning the risk management of the Company; and

(9) to handle other matters in relation to investment or risk management
as delegated by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
adopted by the Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a
copy of which was posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, three Investment and Risk
Management Committee meetings were held to review the proposed
investment project of the Group, the related proposals and reports of risk
management. The attendance records are set out under the section headed
“Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report. A recent
meeting of the Investment and Risk Management Committee was held on 18
March 2025 to consider and review, among others, the Comprehensive Risk
Management Report, Comprehensive Risk Management Plan and the Risk
Management Evaluation Report of the Group.
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Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Xie Qiufa and Mr. Wong Chun Cheong were appointed as Joint Company
Secretaries on 18 June 2024 in place of Mr. Lee Kin who resigned on the
same day. Mr. Xie Qiufa and Mr. Wong Chun Cheong were full time employees
of the Group and have day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. They
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules during their terms of office in the year ended 31 December
2024.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2024, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, amendments to standards and
the related interpretations, made adjustments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
in this report.

External auditor’s remuneration

KPMG has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor since 29 June
2020. The Audit Committee has been notified of the scope, nature and the
service charges of the audit and non-audit services performed by KPMG and
considered that these audit and non-audit services have no adverse effect
on the independence of KPMG. There was no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of KPMG.

The remuneration paid to KPMG in respect of audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:
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Amount of fees

Type of services provided by KPMG EEH M ERrIRENREES ERE%E
HK$'000

FET

Audit services EZRFE 5,990
Non-audit services JEBZARTS 967
Total st 6,957

The non-audit services provided by KPMG mainly include issuing comfort
letters on sufficiency of working capital of the Company for major transactions
occurred in 2024 and tax advisory services.

EEHGHMEEAEENIEEZRBEEIECES
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2024 FERE | FEREENERERERAE



122

Corporate Governance Report
tTEEARS

Risk management and internal control

The Board has the responsibility of evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and overseeing
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management should provide a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems on an ongoing
basis. The Board should ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems has been conducted at
least annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and the implementation and
continuous review of an internal control manual. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual reviews on the Group’s internal control system
and make recommendations for strengthening such systems. The results of
the review for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board. No material deficiencies have been identified
so far and there were no significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders.

A framework has been established for prudent and effective controls to enable
risks to be identified, evaluated and managed. Procedures have been designed
for the management of financial, strategic and operational risk management
functions. The procedures provide reasonable assurance against material
untrue statement or losses and to monitor the risks existing in the course of
arriving at the Group’s objectives.

The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

The Company is aware of its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules
and the Inside Information provisions under the SFO and has put in place the
proper procedure to ensure that any perceived inside information would be
announced to the investing public on a timely basis.

The Company has an internal audit function.

The Audit Committee, inter alia, reviews the financial controls, risk
management and internal controls systems of the Group and any significant
internal control issues identified by the audit and legal department, external
auditors and management. The Audit Committee also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions and internal audit function and their training
programmes and budgets. In addition, the Board has reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s ESG performance and reporting.

The Investment and Risk Management Committee reviews the development
and objective of the risk management system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enable the Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company’s public
relations firm and share registrar, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company.

Shareholders or investors can contact the public relations firm of the Company,
Wonderful Sky Financial Group, to make enquiry or to provide suggestions, of
which the contact details are as follows:

Tel: (852) 3977 1881
Fax: (852) 3102 0210
Email: cgnne@wsfg.hk

In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, if they have any enquiries about their
shares of the Company and dividends.

The members of the Board and the Board Committees and KPMG are
expected to be present to answer the Shareholders’ questions at annual
general meetings of the Company (the “AGM”). Meeting circulars will be
published on the Stock Exchange’'s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company’s website (www.cgnne.com) and distributed to Shareholders (if
requested) before AGM and special general meetings of the Company (the
“SGM”) in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down in the Listing
Rules and the Bye-laws.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group maintains
a website where information on the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted. The Directors have reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the communication policy with
the Shareholders and investors (the “Communication Policy”). Having
considered the multiple channels of communication in place, the Board is
satisfied that the Communication Policy has been properly implemented for the
year ended 31 December 2024 and is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a special resolution was passed by
the Shareholders at the AGM held on 23 May 2024 for amending the Bye-laws
in order to (i) bring the existing Bye-laws in line with the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules which mandate the electronic dissemination of corporate
communications and the applicable laws of Bermuda; (ii) allow the Company
to hold and dispose of treasury shares as and when permitted by the Listing
Rules; and (iii)) make other consequential and housekeeping amendments.
Details of the amendments were set out in the circular of the Company dated
18 April 2024 and an up-to-date version of the Bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM is one of the principal channels of communication with its
Shareholders. It provides an opportunity for Shareholders to communicate face
to face with the Directors about the Company’s performance and operations.

The 2024 AGM was held on 23 May 2024 at Boardroom 3-4, Mezzanine Floor, HEE—FEEEEESAERIEgEE = M7

Renaissance Harbour View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong.

Resolutions passed at the 2024 AGM 22024 G RIBE KRG HBBEAIR

e 3
= ES

Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2024 AGM on each substantive & ﬁ%#%lﬁi’]ﬁ’?omﬁﬂx%iﬂﬁﬁﬁtuﬁiJlua»

issue and the percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions is set out FIRZE > MBEBMZSREEZNEHLEEINT :

below:

Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2024 AGM Votes in Favour
22024 FRRIBFERE LIREWRE KREERBE DL

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company, the Report 99.98%
of the Directors and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2023
BB EARRNBEHE2023F 12831 HIEFENRBEZAGVERR - ESTHRER
B ZEENR S

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 99.98%
EMIKEEE2023F12831HIEFENARERE

3.(a) To re-elect Mr. Zh\ang Z_hiwu as an executive Director 98.76%
BEERTHRAEANITES

3.(b) To re-elect Mr. Li Guangming as an executive Director 99.96%
BEFHBAREANTES

3.(c) To re—e[ect Mr. Liq Qingmlng as a non-executive Director 99.82%
BEIERALERIFNITES

3.(d) To re-elect Mr. Zhao Xian!ven as a non-executive Director 99.93%
BEMBNAERENTES

3.(e) To re—ele\ct Mr. Ya\ng Xiaosheng as an independent non-executive Director 99.92%
BEEBRETERBIENTES

3.(f) Tg authorize the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration 99.90%
EHEEgETESN:

4. To re-appoint KPMG as auditor and authorize the Board to fix its remuneration 99.98%
BENMREERER S EBMAREMRERESEETCHNS

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase Shares 99.98%
BPEEBELORMHN—RITRE

6. TQ grant a ge_neral mandateﬂto the Directors to issue Shares 97.95%
BPFEELTRMON—AREE

7. To approve the Proposed Amendments in the manner as set out in the notice of the Annual General 99.95%

Meeting of the Company dated 18 April 2024 and the Company’s adoption of the new Bye-laws in

substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing Bye laws in their entirety

BARNE HEAR2024F4F18HNWREBFRGBSE S AMERSZEST AR DERMIA
Al U 5E 2 B R BE PR IR A 4 )

B Tf&ozztﬁﬂ;%?ﬁﬁk@iﬁﬁ&%%%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁi R

Accordingly, all resolutions put to the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM were
passed. The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Dividend Policy” in the Report of the Directors in this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of SGM and requisition by the
Shareholders

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy on
Shareholders’ rights.

One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition in
aggregate shares that represent not less than one-tenth of the voting rights
at general meeting of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, in the
share capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Company’s registered office at M Q Services Ltd., Victoria Place, 1st
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Suites 1201-3 and 7-10, 12/F, Great Eagle Centre,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Joint Company Secretaries of the Company, to require a SGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business or resolution specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the Joint Company Secretaries will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested.
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Procedures for making proposals by the
Shareholders other than a proposal of a person
for election as director

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy on
Shareholders’ rights.

The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general meeting
known as a special general meeting whenever necessary. Shareholder(s)
holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and deposited
at the Company’s registered office at M Q Services Ltd., Victoria Place, 1st
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Suites 1201-3 and 7-10, 12/F, Great Eagle Centre,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretaries of the Company, not less than six weeks before the AGM in the
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one
week before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition. If the
written request is in order, the Joint Company Secretaries will ask the Board
(i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/
or circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s policy
on the procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director.

1. If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/
herself) for election as a Director (the “Candidate”) at that meeting,
he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1201-3 and 7-10, 12/F, Great
Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the
Shareholder(s) for such proposal can be found from the website of the
Company.

A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the
Candidate can also be found from the website of the Company setting
out, amongst other things, his/her willingness to be elected together
with the information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules as follows:

(i) full name and age;

(ii) positions held with the Company and/or other members of the
Company (if any);

(iii) experience including (i) other directorships held in the past
three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, and
(ii) other major appointments and professional qualifications;

(iv) length or proposed length of service with the Company;

(v) relationships with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, or an
appropriate negative statement;

(vi) interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, or an appropriate negative statement; and

(vii) a declaration made by the Candidate in respect of the
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)
(h) to (w) of the Listing Rules, or an appropriate negative
statement to that effect where there is no information to be
disclosed pursuant to any of such requirements nor are there
any other matters relating to that Candidate’s standing for
election as a Director that should be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders.

The period for lodgement of the written notice will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and end no later than seven (7) clear days prior to the date
of such general meeting. If the notice is received less than fifteen
(15) business days prior to that general meeting, the Company will
need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in order to (i)
assess the suitability of the proposed Candidate; and (ii) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the
proposal to the Shareholders at least fourteen (14) clear days and not
less than ten (10) business days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or
have enquires to put to the Board may write to the Joint Company
Secretaries at Suites 1201-3 and 7-10, 12/F, Great Eagle Centre, 23
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN New Energy
Holdings Co., Ltd.(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 134 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

RPEEZMERERARABDRKRRZ
B ZHBENERE
(REREZEZMELZHRAE)

=
=

AEBMEBEZTEEZNERERERAR (MTBEA
8 REKBAT (TEEME)) HINE134E258E 24
U BEmRKR LM BREREIENR2024F 12831 B4R
EMBRAR - BEZHLFENGEBaREMER
WaR - GREoRaE8PRAEEHRERER UREKS
MBRRME QEEEGBENEE-

REHFRBA 2SRV BRREREBEER Gt #A)
By (ERGENESS)) EH2BERUBERS
2B (TERMBRELEN)) EEMAFHIRR SEE
R2024F 12831 HMNREHBRRARBEEZBIEFE
HNizeBRERGEREAE LEEREELBK
BN EREEESRIY -

BERZEE

EEFREREBEHMNAE (FEREHMAE)) B
iz EBEHER (EBEAERN) ETBEATIF-K
EBMAZE RN RENSEF AN KRS Z LA
BERACHBRRXAENEF B -RESBGHAQ
ENFEEMEETA (TFA) URBEEFHPRE
ZEREGAEMBEREREBNENERER  XEHHR
B BEE BXAEFFERBEZIFERKTRE
THMEBERET AZHABE AEBMMERSHNE
ZBRREREMBEEMSEAEBMNEREHTER-



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that,

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on notes 2(f).

The Key Audit Matter
FEEZER

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, as
at 31 December 2024, the Group has goodwill of approximately
US$137,947,000 relating to groups of cash generating units
(“CGUs”) comprising subsidiaries engaged in generating and
supplying electricity through solar energy and wind energy in the
Peoples’ Republic of China (the “PRC”), which are tested for
impairment annually.

M EHBRERM 16T > 120245128318 BEBER
#3137,947,000X T E > 2 EW BN PE AR ENER (THE)
REZBRGERBNEEREENNBARMRNREELB N
(TREEEEBM) ABRAR UEFEETRERR-

In performing impairment assessments, management engaged an
external valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of the relevant
CGUs using value in use method by preparing discounted cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial forecast
approved by the management. Management compared carrying
value of each of the separately identifiable CGUs with their
respective recoverable amounts to determine if any impairment
loss should be recognized.

TETRENGR EEEZEISEEMREESEBMAENTH
MHEAGRITRBEREER WERABEEZTLERREEESL
Efﬁﬁ’ﬂ?ﬂﬁz@%é’&ioAE@J@Hq%@%ﬂTD&EUEE%%E%MB’JEEE@
HAHEZENAKRESEFEHLEER  LURE R TR AR ERIS -

in our professional judgment,
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

B2 H AR S

FREELSEE

FRELFEERBEASHMOBENE HEHRGS
HEBRENEREAREENF R -ZFERNLNREERMH

was of

BREAVMBBRRZBERBRHASRBERE - XEH
FIAENZEREHEBNER -
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2(f)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFANEZNAEEMEEREER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill
included the following:
EMTEEEAENEZREFEEUATRS !

. assessing the management’s identification of CGUs, the
allocation of assets to each CGU and the methodology
adopted by management in its impairment assessments
with reference to the requirements of prevailing accounting
standards;

. SERTEAENNER THEEEHRESELEMNR
E-BREEECRSELBEAU AN EUREERENRET
BEFTEPRAN S E

. evaluating the competence, experience, capability and

objectivity of the external valuer engaged by management to
perform the valuation of the relevant CGUs;

. FEE Iiﬁﬁéﬁaﬁ%zﬂﬁﬁaﬁ%;iiﬁu TEE IR
BEENERE KB ENMEEML;
. evaluating the assumptions adopted in the preparation

of discounted cash flow forecasts for the purpose of the
impairment assessment of goodwill, including projected
future growth rates for income and expenses, with reference
to our understanding of the business, historical trends and
available industry information and available market data;

. SERMHEBNER BELBBNRETEENRREAD
LEE AEAEBAENEMARTIRBERETBRFK
AWER GFERARBZNTESRRIEREE ;

2024 FERE | HEEEHERERERAS

129



130

Independent Auditor’s Report

18 1L 1% H BT ¥R S

The Key Audit Matter
AR BT IXEIE

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognized impairment losses on goodwill of
US$3,344,000 during the year ended 31 December 2024.

MG EMBRRWEF16PTIEE > BEBENEE2024F12831H
I FEANREREERER183,344,000% 7T ©

The recoverable amounts are based on value in use calculations
using discounted cash flow model, which require significant
assumptions and estimates with respect to the discount rates and
the forecasted cash flows, in particular the revenue growth rate,
taking into account the management expectations for the power
industry.

AWEEBEUAEREESEAER KARERENREAAE B
FRERMNBERBARESRE (CHRRAEER) FREARR
Kfhst Wtk EBEEBHENITENTEL-

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of goodwill
as a key audit matter because the impairment assessments
performed by management are complex and contain judgemental
assumptions, particularly the revenue growth rate and discount
rates applied, which could be subject to management bias in their
selection.

EMETEEENBEBTCRBEI RAAREREE RAEEBEEETH
RELERE S THAE S ZFMRAN KA REERITIR
T BEENEEJESAERR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

TEHFRNEZNAEEMBEEZER

. involving our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
management’s valuation methodology adopted in the
impairment assessment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards; and assess whether the
discount rates applied in the cash flow forecasts prepared
for the purpose of assessing the impairment of goodwill
were within the range adopted by other companies operating
in the same industry;

. HANPEEER—LSBRTEFENNER HEEER
BESGEFRANGEL EETHEG; KT EATHEEER
EMAMNEERERAMKEANTREEZSERTEHEM
REIFMRANBERN ;

. comparing the significant assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts and actual results for the
current year with management’s forecast in the previous year
in order to assess the reliability of historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting process and whether there is any
indication of management bias;

. BARFERERENMREAMBAZEEBRIRBEREBHEE
BE F—FEMNBEAETHES WTHEEERBABENE
FPEEMERTIRUREREEEAARRETNERBEERE

. evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by management
for each of the key assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecast and considering the possibility of error or
management bias; and

. TEEEEMITRBEERERAMKANEEIERSZME
HNPRAESN LEELIRERNEEBRENAIEY ; &

. assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of impairment testing of goodwill with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. S2ERTHHAENRE  TEES
BERIFEBIEE -

MBRETARBEER
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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- Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Maggie L.T. Lee.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

RoEmkEMEEERTR

for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

Revenue

Operating expenses:
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Repair and maintenance
Staff costs
Recognition of loss allowance of
trade and other receivables and contract
assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
retirement scheme assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income

- net change in fair value
ltems that are/may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized
during the year

Deferred tax credited arising from
fair value change in hedging instruments

Reclassification adjustments for amounts

transferred to profit or loss

- release of hedging reserve

— deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve

- release of cumulative gain of translation
reserve included in profit or loss upon
deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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2024 2023
20244 20234

Notes USs$’000 US$'000
k23 FET FET
4 1,951,339 2,192,977
761,231 983,336

356,205 343,740

24,497 31,358

131,050 120,313

36(a) 19,271 8,593
5 130,751 153,144
1,423,005 1,640,484

528,334 552,493

6 42,639 19,774
7 (56,741) (9,996)
8 (181,231) (212,765)
4,251 3,022

337,252 352,528

9 (78,971) (72,895)
10 258,281 279,633
13 96 (654)
74 =

(114,387) (41,414)

- (8,436)

- 1,949

(104) (109)

23 26

37 - (2,485)
(114,298) (51,123)

143,983 228,510




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Share
- Basic (US cents)

- Diluted (US cents)

Other Comprehensive Income

ReEmKREMEENER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes US$’000 US$°000
ok FET FET
FELERRA -
RABRERIRER 248,018 267,685
JEER S 10,263 11,948
258,281 279,633
FE(L A2 IR 4B 28
NATI R IRER 135,966 219,565
JEER S 8,017 8,945
143,983 228,510
sREF 12
— &K E) 5.78 6.24
— 58 (E10) 5.78 6.24

The notes on pages 142 to 258 form part of these financial statements. Details  $F142E 258 B I BN ZEMFTREMN —LH - &£
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the A FE{F A< /A B 1 %5 B 58 FE (5 % 7 AU B8 B85 1B #0510 B

profit for the year are set out in note 35.

5£350
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EEMBIRRR

at 31 December 2024 j22024F12831H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates
Deferred tax assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Net defined benefit retirement scheme assets

Other non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Tax recoverable

Derivative financial instruments
Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Contract liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
— due within one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due within one year
Bank borrowings - due within one year
Lease liabilities — due within one year
Government grants
Tax payable
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Notes

mat

14
15
16
17
19

18

13
20

21
22
23
24
25
19
26
27
27
27

28
34
29
25

20)

30
31
32
33
19

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FE7T
6,124,678 5,883,410
189,862 131,916
137,947 143,352
78,777 75,929
30,194 27,004
3,379 3,354
1,053 397
356,791 316,805
6,922,681 6,582,167
53,972 44,648
886,638 766,028
390,810 368,146
131,122 163,171
11,507 12,562

- 19

583 =
162,018 111,735
- 14,166
158,377 287,500
1,795,027 1,767,975
46,577 108,671
3,237 3,959
427,901 437,322
16,854 107,045
3,094 3,209
1,245,474 817,324
644,459 494,635
11,295 6,209
188 191
32,614 24,061
2,431,693 2,002,626




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BA AR R

at 31 December 2024 [22024512H31H

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
- due after one year
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
— due after one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due after one year
Bank borrowings — due after one year
Lease liabilities — due after one year
Government grants
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 25 March

2025.

Zhang Zhiwu
RER
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 142 to 258 form part of these financial statements.

Notes

ok
mEEEREE
MEERTEAE
ERBEE
HihfEHRIB R ESE A
—R—FB 3 29
FEA — S FE SRR B ER RN IE
—R—F%&EH 25
KERRMNBABDNER
—R—FB3B 30

fﬁﬁﬁa“ﬁ R—F% 2 31
E8E-RN—FRIH 32
BZJ*‘%@EJJ% 33
ERIBEE 19

FEE

B% 2 B (56 1
[N 35(c)
B

FNE) R R R E
KBEm
R

2024 EERE

=S

nvis

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FE7T
(636,666) (234,651)
6,286,015 6,347,516
7,821 7,148
1,269 1,209
131,197 592,782
4,281,530 3,953,520
55,564 45,398
6,661 6,697
42,436 52,203
4,526,478 4,658,957
1,759,537 1,688,559
55 55
1,617,617 1,544,536
1,617,672 1,544,591
141,865 143,968
1,759,537 1,688,559

BETR2025F3F 25 A HE T B T o

Li Guangming

S
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Il‘l AY

At 1 January 2024

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising on translation of

foreign operations

Release of hedging reserve

Deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve

Remeasurement of net defined
benefit retirement scheme assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income - net change in fair value

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends declared and paid to equity shareholders of
the Company in respect of previous year (note 35b(ii)
Dividends declared to non-controlling shareholders

Transfer of other non-distributable reserves

Capital injection from non-controlling interests
Capital repatriation from non-controlling interests
Repurchase and cancellation of shares (nofe 35(c))

Transfer of enterprise work safety funds
Utilization of enterprise work safety funds

At 31 December 2024

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

BEmBER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

Re024F1818

FRaR|
BESNEBEENERER

BB S
REZZRAGEEEFE

EHsE
HEANARBESEELH AL

2ENENEREE-
s

NrBEZD

FREEREEHR

BAAIREREE KR

S EEBRE (W ssb(i)
BERFLRRRNRE
SREMRTHREE
FARRETE
FEREREARR
BOIREHERN (o)
BEPELRLEER
HRECER2LEER

20245125318

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRERRELN
Other non- Non-
Share Share distributable Hedging Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity
A RE
B RiDER HikfEE HakE ERHE Eap-tl Wit FERER aRz
(note 35(c))  (note 35(c) (note 35(d)(i)) (note 35(d)(ii)) (note 35(d)(iii))
(Wtsste)  (Witssie)  (Waasid)i)) (Waasid)ii) (Witss(apii))

Us$'000 Uss'000 Uss$000 Us$000 Us$'000 Uss'000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
55 250,406 67,004 1,736 (161,743) 1,387,133 1,544,591 143,968 1,688,559

- - - - - 248,018 248,018 10,263 258,281

- - - - (112,141) - (112,141) (2,246) (114,387)

B - . (108) - - (104) - (104)

- - - 23 - - 23 - 23

- - - - - 9 96 - 96

- - 74 - - - 74 - 74

- - 74 (81) (112,141) 248,114 135,966 8,017 143,983

- - - - - (66,921) (66,921) - (66,921)

- - - - - - - (6,724) (6,724)

- - 14,326 - - (14,326) - - -

- - 928 - - 1,338 2,266 10,811 13,077

- - - - - - - (14,189) (14,189)

- (236) - - - - (236) - (236)

- - 15,093 - - - 15,093 409 15,502

- - (13,087) - - - (13,087) (427) (13,514)

55 250,170 84,338 1,655 (273,884) 1,565,338 1,617,672 141,865 1,759,537




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SEmEER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

n‘7|'\

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATRERRENS
Other non- Non-
Share Share distributable Hedging Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity
Ht A
K& B EE DkGEE fapt 1 EREE KA gt FERER G
(note 35(c)) (note 35(c))  (note 35(d)(i)  (note 35(a)(ii))  (note 35(a)iii))
(rtsere)  (Watsse)  (Hi3sa))  (WEseari))  (a23s()i)
US$'000 Us$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$000 Us$000
FET FET FET F£T FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2023 1202351818 55 250,406 46,384 8,306 (120847) 1177921 1362225 197331 1,499,556
Prolfit for the year EREF - - - - - 267,685 267,685 11,948 279,633
Exchange difference arising on translation of BEBNEBEENERER
foreign operations - - - - (38,411) - (38,411) (3,003) (41,414)
Release of cumulative gain included in profit or loss ~ REIEVEAHBAT % ABE
upon deconsolidation of subsidiaries (note 37) SEG R = - = = (2,485) - (2,485) = (2,485)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of EREDZHRTAAREEZ
hedging instruments recognized during the year BREHHH - - - (8,436) - - (8,436) = (8,436)
Deferred tax credited arising from HATANABEEBELEN
fair value change in hedging instruments RERERE - - - 1,949 B = 1,949 = 1,949
Release of hedging reserve BEHMEE - - - (109) - - (109) = (109)
Deferred tax credit arising on release of RESFEEEEN
hedging reserve RERERE - - - 2 - - 26 = 2
Remeasurement of net defined REZDRUGEEEFE
benefit retirement scheme assets EE - - - = - (654) (654) = (654)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZANGLE - - - (6,570) (40,896) 267,031 219,565 8,945 228,510
Dividends declared and paid to equity shareholders of ~ AAABERZREE KK
the Company in respect of previous year (note 35b(ii) kit LEERE (HsE350(i) o o o = o (39,029) (39,029) = (39,029)
Dividends declared to non-controlling shareholders BEREERRENRE - - - - - - - (3.641) (3,641)
Transfer of other non-distributable reserves BREMATDRER - - 17,483 = = (17,483) = = -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FERERTE - - - - - (1,351) (1,351) 6,580 5,229
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries RHAHHBAR - - (17) - - 4 27 (5,267) (5,240)
Transfer of enterprise work safety funds BROEPREEER - - 15,393 - = = 15,393 408 15,801
Utilization of enterprise work safety funds BACEREEEER - - (12,239) - - - (12,239) (388) (12,627)
At 31 December 2023 120235126318 55 250,406 67,004 1,736 (161,743) 1,387,133 1,544,591 143,968 1,688,559
The notes on pages 142 to 258 form part of these financial statements. F142FE 258 BB ZEMFRERN—D °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

|\7I'\ iﬁﬁ/]lt%%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill

Interest income

Recognition of government grants

Net recognition of loss allowance of trade and
other receivables and contract assets

Share of results of associates

Transfer of enterprise work safety funds

Utilization of enterprise work safety funds

Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments
reclassified through other comprehensive
income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in contract assets

Decrease/(increase) in other receivables and
prepayments

Changes in amounts due from/to
fellow subsidiaries

Changes in amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders

Decrease in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and accruals

Increase in net defined benefit retirement

scheme asset
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Notes

mat

10
10

36(a)

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
337,252 352,528
356,205 343,740
11,692 8,313
181,231 212,765
9,462 37
- (2,485)
36,132 7,659
3,344 8,681
(2,984) (5,778)
(447) (1,052)
19,271 8,593
(4,251) (3,022)
15,502 15,801
(13,514) (12,627)
- (2,170)
948,895 930,983
(33,610) 40,539
(15,139) 20,212
(156,774) (44,935)
(33,794) (25,571)
27,094 (42,273)
(82,963) (11,107)
(1,145) 3,706
(57,302) (108,093)
(8,547) (6,860)
(644) (881)
(670) 539
585,401 756,259
(82,775) (74,709)
502,626 681,550




Consolidated Cash FIow Statement

BRRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 128310 IEFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Payments for right-of-use assets

Net cash outflow from deconsolidation of
subsidiaries

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings raised

Interest paid

Repayment to fellow subsidiaries

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Repayment of lease liabilities

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Capital repatriation from non-controlling
shareholders

Repurchase of shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The notes on pages 142 to 258 form part of these financial statements.

IV'F

2024 2023

20244 20234

Notes US$’000 US$°000
ok FET FE7T

B’EEE
BEYE BERRE
EOENEN (887,961) (641,371)
EHEIRRIRITER (93,291) (2,561)
EREESENR (38,466) (3,262)
BUEE A B AWM
RS M IEER 37 - (16,872)
R IRRIRITER 27,937 39,787
HEWE BEK
BB RIE 39,913 7177
BUFE 2,984 5,778
IRBVERRIR TR 14,152 145
KREEHFMAREFEE (934,732) (611,179)
FLEEE
BERBTEE (751,061) (1,520,471)
BEEMETREE 1,344,503 1,677,886
BT E (184,085) (211,893)
BERRZRMBARNIE (821,642) (1,025,973)
BN AR #ERE l&%ﬁxu

(66,921) (39,029)
BENIEERKERE (4,028) (3,641)
EBEREERE (17,720) (15,608)
KERRMBABRNER 800,938 920,953
JEERERRTFE

11,457 5,229
JEPERR AR ER & AR BE (O]

(14,189) =
EE R 1A (236) -
MEFHELE  (FRA)
HE38 297,016 (212,547)
HERREEEMRL
] (135,090) (142,176)
FVRERFEEEY

287,500 440,646
SEEXRESETE

5,967 (10,970)
FRAESRFEETEEY

158,377 287,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

1.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

GENERAL

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in October 2014. The registered office of the Company
is at M Q Services Ltd., Victoria Place, 1st Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is at Suites 1201-3 and 7-10, 12/F, Great Eagle Centre, 23
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its immediate holding company
is CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited (“CGN Energy
International”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, and its ultimate holding company is China General Nuclear
Power Corporation (“CGN”), a state-owned enterprise established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in the generation and supply of
electricity and steam, construction and operation of power stations and
other associated facilities in the PRC and Republic of Korea (“Korea”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollar (“US$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”).

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these amendments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

l Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in its associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- investments in equity securities (see note 2(g)); and

= derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
US$636,666,000 as at 31 December 2024. CGN Wind Power
Company, Limited (“CGN Wind Energy”), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company, has confirmed in writing that despite the loan
from CGN Wind Energy of RMB4,800,000,000 (equivalent to
US$667,742,000) which is due for repayment within twelve
months from 31 December 2024, it will not cancel the existing
loan facilities within twelve months from 31 December 2024
and that the loan will be extended upon expiry. Furthermore,
taking into account the financial resources of the Group, the
Group has unutilized general facilities of US$995,914,000 as
at 31 December 2024 for the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. In addition, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by the management of the Group. The cash flow
projections cover a period not less than twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the IASB to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

. Amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current and amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements - Non-current liabilities with
covenants

. Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases - Lease liability in a
sale and leaseback

. Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and
IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Supplier
finance arrangements

None of these amendments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

2.

EEg

(b)

(c)

TR (48)
MBHRRGREE (&

AEEM2024F 12831 ElE’JmLéiJﬁfi
FEE#)%636,666,0005= 7T ° A
ARBRAATEZRAE ﬁ@ﬁﬁU*
EZBEE) EEEmER - EBEKRBR
EZzRENERAR4,800,000,000
7T (B E71667,742,000% 75) B 2024
F1283 1B+ - EARNMEE  ER
BARERBE2024F12831 B +Z
BEABEREERRE  BEFRER
FHERBIER o b4 5t R A E B L
FEIRR2024F12B31H  "EBEE
995,914,000 T ARBHE — KA &
WA RBERRBERRTZEBE AR
BReltih RATEZECERMAERE
BEMRUNAERRSREEA R
EREBEARBEERESHRES AL
R+ @B AR -

@%HEZJ:%I‘L%%?‘E KRABEFERR
FEMRBERRBRAREL + @
ABEREE Eﬁ%u,u%llﬁ HFR
BIRMBERD ALEZEREUHR
RNBEBEEEAERR -

& 5 R

FEBRASH B ERLU T HERE
Gt EREEEHEGOEARMBRS
FAZEITEARZEVBRE

. BB g St EERI 158 (IBRT &) »
HBEBREIZ 5~ 1EF D
ARB B IF B R B R & 5t 2
AISE15E (BT A) » BB AHY

ER RGeS =
. B PR A 5 R 5 22 R 55 165K (1BET
) HE-ERBEEFHEE
0 BFRE St RSB TSR (BST ) »

HehEXRBEKMEEREE
BISE7SR 2@ T A X HE—
EBHMEZH

ZEEIUARNAEB BB IBE
BN EE LM BRI RRTAH
REEMBRENEINSXELEEM
EAXE -AEBELEEAN A H

A

5 i SR E R E TR 5T ZE R SR a2 1 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I‘I

B 1 75 ¥ 2R Y X

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 128310 IEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognized.

2, EET

(d)

2024 EERE

stEER ()

Bt B 2 B Re FEHZE AR i ok

WE@?E$$I?%ZE%O%$
EEFR2HEEBCEEMATHER
Ho@spk TAENEBEHE
BEHFEZSOR AAERE
ZEREBESE - ETHLAEAR
SHEERIOR EEREEERN (B
FEBRHEMALESR) o

R—RMERB KRS B EG R
EREZEMEKRLERHAKREHB
BR-EEAADBOGEER X5 KH
%m%%&@&ﬂl%@@@ﬂ%*
SMEENRER SN HERNES
MHERSFHTHEHE - EEMANRARER
SRREENRSHERUEERER
W B E A7 NE 8 R S EERE
BB T ET

FERESIETIFHAATD EZNME
BRUEN—XNEAS#D BEAEH
TEAZERTFAASTHEEM
B MERAEMBRARZS %m
AENEEREBREENAREE-

BREBEHMES > K%IT%ETQ
ABEBEAFEREEDEHRBEATH
HAFEENLEG > st BERIFERE

2z
iy

m

FFERBENGEMBRRT RO
W25 BAQE SRR B E T
DHEY - AEBERDHIFEREDE
Kﬁéﬁ“ﬁﬁwmaﬁ&ﬁﬁéﬁ

TREBINAFEBBEZERBE2E K
EE?H’“HﬂEmAﬁ’Ajﬁ“Hx%Z
BRDE - FEREER A ANERK
HZERAANEMGRETRER
H2(a)H(n) (RFBEUEME) 255
THEE.

ﬁ$$l#—%%§@7%ﬁ“k%
TEEHEREH R AFSRER
Aﬁ’tﬁﬁéﬁﬁmﬁkﬁﬁﬂ&%

o B9 5 BR 1F SR > DU PR AR 9 e 2 2
o EranEEFHBER BEFER
AU A ©

| PEEZHERZERERAR

145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= =

nin

RA %5 ¥ 2R Y 5E

for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see note ()
(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate (after applying the ECL model
to such other long-term interests where applicable (see note

2(1)(0)).

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not measured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(1)(if)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Equity investments

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are recognized directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 36(e).

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognized in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(b)(i).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on the remeasurement to fair value is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge of
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged (see note 2(i)).

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge its risk of foreign exchange forward
contracts.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective
portion of any gain or loss is recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost of the non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such as when a
forecast sale occurs or interest expense is recognized).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
(including when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated
in the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and it is recognized in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the amount that has been accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss
immediately.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i) Hedging (continued)

Fair value hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in
a hedge of the change in fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or a firm commitment that could affect profit or loss,
changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The change in fair value of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recognized in
profit or loss. If the hedged item would otherwise be measured
at cost or amortized cost, then its carrying amount is adjusted
accordingly.

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for fair
value hedge accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(1)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labor, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs(see note 2(x)).

Items may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The proceeds from selling any such items and
the related costs are recognized in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognized in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows except for freehold land in Korea:

- Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, and 5-50 years

- Electric and steam 5 to 25 years, or over the

generating facilities relevant operating license

period

- Office and electronic 3 - 10 years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 - 6 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e Ml R M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 128310 IEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group, are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalized are recognized as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease
is capitalized is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(j)
and 2(1)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and recognized the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the statement of financial position, the Group
presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognized in accordance with note

2(v)(b)(iii).

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, trade receivables and other receivables and
prepayments) and contract assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial instruments and financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof where the effect of
discounting is material.

2, EET

(k)
(ii)

stEER ()

BEEE (@

ERtEFAA

EXAEERFAHBEA HRE
ENERREBEEEESR
EHERKEHEE -H— B
ERBMEEA KBNS
R ER D B B e [B] ¥k o 5 T K AR
N BIZEENERREHRE
SAZEEENEAKEE

E-

HEREaHEREHEES
DO AREBRERPHNRER
EHEBUEBRENRESH
DoREHRENE & WARE
B 5E2(v) (b)(iii) FE R ©

() EEBEREERE

0]

2024 EERE

THMITARSREEEE
ZIEEEE

HIEEHENAFENTRMEE
(BERzAREEEY B
WRBIT R RBRTER
B 5 T B Ath BE Wk I8 e TR AT 7R
B REFNEEHRARESRS
B (TRAGEEER) &
GUBIRE AR

BARBEAENSHMEE (8
BETEEMIARBEASUR
AEBEEFEEZHFAAEME
BEWENEREE) BRETR
HEEmEIRT b

RHEEBENE

TEHIE BEELEEEIBER
KMEMst-EEHEEURMA
TERRIR &% BNRE SR EN
AEBZRESREAKLEHRE
HRRZREREZENELE)
ZIREFE

RRRETERUN S EREE
ENBERMERITRTEBEKX
RO R RITIR

| PEEERERERERAR

153



154

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2'11 A
i 3

2.

RA %5 ¥ 2R Y 5E

for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(N

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
based on its historical observed default rates which is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEHER &)
(continued)
(1) Credit losses and impairment of () EEGEEREERE
assets (continued) (#&)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () =E=MTAREGREBEEESE
and contract assets (continued) 28518 @)
Significant increases in credit risk EERPREEEIEM

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realizing security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instrument are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of

assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instruments credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss

allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the

issuer.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognized as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(N

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(N

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(if) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favorable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.
Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract
liabilities

A contract asset is recognized when the Group recognizes
revenue (see note 2(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognized when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognized
the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A contract liability would
also be recognized if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognized (see note 2(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2(v)(b)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognized before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2(n)).

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(1)(i).

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

EEGTHR (@

(n)

(o)

(p)

A EBRIRE S BFTE 2T RIER
REERESRGFRRAEZATREIIK
A (RKsE2(v)) " AIRRBEREE -
EREERBE LM E2(1)(1) 2 BUEREE
EEPEEER TR WRERRE &
FRAEEGRENSBEERIKHNIE
(RHFzE2(0)) ©

fifl 25 2 B 7 £ [ B 50 A8 BA W A BT 32 1Y
FRREZAE AEISGEAERE (R
MiEE2(v)) o fisl A< 55 B o A5 S AR 14 HE R =)
B 7 £ [ B 52 48 A UK A A U B R B) 3R
BB THREDGRAAEE EXF
BRT > AR ERAAENERRIE (R
MizE2(0)) ©

MEZFITUNE-—SEMES UER
BEEFHEIACAEEFIEEI -EE
GRME THEBERANEGREERE
BaEFLUFEEERY.

HERESEARMEND  aREHE
ERERFBZEHENESFE (R
FE2(v)(b)(il)) °

B 5 R HE R RIE

HAEBERSBKIRABZEFER
RSB EWRIE R ES M
A ERTREERS KK EZ
BAHBEFEG -HRARESERSE
HEEANEERAREREHES  BZN
B2 AGREAEE (RIMFsE2(n) °

FEWRIEE 2 €A B RA B A R %
AR MEEEEHEEE (BRI
s2(1)(1)) °

REMAEFEY

HeERBELEWBERITRS F
ERS VIRTREMESMIEEETHE
HMAERRRACHNSBREEBEE
BEHERBIARRBABR=ZBARN
APz e RN RE-BRERR
SEBYRIBE M F2(1) (1) 2 BUER T
EBHREERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘7|'\

B M5 i R MY X

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value.
Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortized
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

(r) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrow
costs (see note 2(x)).

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement schemes is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior
years; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations (continued)

Service cost and net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognized in profit or
loss and allocated by function as part of “staff costs”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current year. When the
benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is
curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related
to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognized as an expense in profit or
loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognized. Net
interest expense for the year is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to
the net defined benefit liability. The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement schemes are recognized in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately in
retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and any change in the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognized restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilized, are recognized. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilized.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;

- temporary differences related to investment in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill; and

- those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted to implement the
Pillar Two model rules published by the Organization
for Economic Co-operation and Development.

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilized.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognized.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realize the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognized for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognized for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and
recognizes revenue on a gross basis except for service
income on sales of electricity. For service income on sales
of electricity, the Group is the agent for the transactions and
recognizes revenue on a net basis. In determining whether the
Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers whether
it obtains control of the products before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the products.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes.

(i)

Revenue from the sale of electricity or
steam and tariff income

Revenue from the sale of electricity or steam
and tariff income are recognized based upon
output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“IFRS 15”), revenue from
sales of electricity or steam and tariff income
is generally recognized upon transmission of
electricity and steam to the customers, which
is the point of time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of the output and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
output.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income
(continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from capacity charges, start-up
charges and management service
Capacity charges are payments from
independent power purchasers for maintaining
availability of some of the Group’s power
generators for dispatch of electricity,
regardless of actual dispatch. Start-up charges
are payments from independent power
purchasers for the start-up of the power plants.
Management service fee income is recognized
when the service is provided. The revenue
from capacity charges, start-up charges and
management service are recognized over time
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

Revenue from sales of renewable energy
certificates (“REC”)

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when
customer takes possession of the REC.

Service income on sales of electricity
Service income on sales of electricity is
recognized when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income
(continued)

(b)

Revenue from other sources and other
income

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues
under the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognized as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognized in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction dates is the date on which the Group initially
recognizes such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into US$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong,
are translated into US$ at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related party
includes a person and entity as defined below:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third entity.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(z)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vil) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

In addition, government refers to government, government
agencies and similar bodies whether local, national or
international. A government-related entity is an entity that is
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by a
government.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3.

ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 16, 36(a) and 36(e) contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to impairment of goodwill, impairment of
trade and other receivables and fair value of financial assets. Other key
source of estimation uncertainty is as follows:

(a)

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced
to the recoverable amount.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and goodwill,
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value less costs of disposal because quoted
market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgment relating to items such as level of
electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or, except for goodwill, reversal
of impairment in future periods.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSIPER

(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are the generation and AEEBNFEEFAETEREHZ
supply of electricity and steam, construction and operation of BEKRMEENREAR BEEREE
power stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and BELKREMHEMBZE BEEASER
Korea. Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities FTEEBENE—TFBTRHE4(b)I
are disclosed in note 4(b). Eo
Disaggregation of revenue LONbs)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by KEFEFERMNKARE & RRE U
goods and service and by the timing of revenue recognition is B AR B IFRWT «
as follows:
Power Power
plants in plants Management 2024
the PRC in Korea companies Total
TENER BENER EEAT  2020F 45
Us$’000 us$’000 us$’000 us$’000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers B[ B4 #53R & 2 Bl 55 155%
within the scope of IFRS 15 BERNKREZFERN
WA
Disaggregated by types of goods RERMRBERMAD
and services
- Sales of electricity —HEBAN 542,349 728,615 - 1,270,964
— Tariff income —BERA 318,167 - - 318,167
- Sales of steam —HEXRS 89,669 - - 89,669
- Capacity charges —-REE 10,008 116,487 - 126,495
- Service income on sales —EBRBEWRA
of electricity 49,714 - - 49,714
- Start-up charges and others —BEEREAM - 11,345 - 11,345
- Management service income —EEREWA - - 31,644 31,644
- Sales of REC —HETBEREREE - 53,341 - 53,341
1,009,907 909,788 31,644 1,951,339
Disaggregated by the timing of bSO s L
revenue recognition
- Point in time — P E— R 2k 999,899 781,956 - 1,781,855
- Over time —RE—BFEE 10,008 127,832 31,644 169,484
1,009,907 909,788 31,644 1,951,339
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers Bl FREAF5#R & 28I F 1558

within the scope of IFRS 15 HENRKBEZFERAN
WA
Disaggregated by types of goods BERMRBHBEA D
and services
- Sales of electricity —ﬁﬁ% BN
— Tariff income BEWA
- Sales of steam —fﬁE“ P
- Capacity charges —-REE
- Service income on sales —EBRBWA
of electricity
— Start-up charges and others —HEEKEAM
- Management service income —BERBEWA

- Sales of REC —HETBEERES

Disaggregated by the timing of FR U B ER B RS AR 0
revenue recognition
- Point in time ﬁ\% BF R 2
- Over time A HE— BRI ER

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of electricity or steam

Revenue from the sales of electricity or steam are recognized
based upon output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, revenue from the sales of electricity or
steam is generally recognized upon transmission of electricity
or steam to the customers, which is the point of time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the output and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the output.
A receivable is recognized by the Group when the output is
delivered to the customers as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90 days to its
customers.
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(a) WA ()
WAL (&)
Power Power
plants in plants  Management 2023
the PRC in Korea companies Total
HFEMER BENER BIENE  2023FE485t
US$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FE1 FE1 FET FE1
452,677 957,223 - 1,409,900
412,421 - - 412,421
101,769 - - 101,769
10,094 110,733 - 120,827
35,753 - - BEN153
- 6,269 - 6,269
- - 29,255 29,255
- 76,783 - 76,783
1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
1,002,620 1,034,006 - 2,036,626
10,094 117,002 29,255 156,351
1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 128310 IEFE

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Tariff income from government authorities for sales of
electricity

Tariff income is recognized at the same time as the relevant
revenue from the sales of electricity is recognized, that is, upon
the transmission of electricity to the customers.

Certain amounts of tariff income are subject to the approval
for the registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
List (the “List”), pursuant to Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on
the Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff of
Renewable Energy jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
National Department and Reform Commission and the National
Energy Administration in January 2020 (the “2020 Notice”).
Pursuant to the 2020 Notice, the List is registered in the
National Renewable Energy Information Center and approved
by the relevant government authorities.

A receivable is recognized at the same time except for those
which are pending the approval for the registration in the List
from the relevant government authorities, which a contract
asset is recognized. Due to the nature of receivables, there is
no credit period and the directors of the Company expect that
the receivables will be recovered within the Group’s normal
operating cycle from the time they are recognized.

Sales of REC

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when customer
takes possession of the REC. A receivable is recognized by
the Group at the same time when revenue recognized, at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due. The Group
allows a credit period of 30 days to its customers.

Capacity charges

Capacity charges are payments from independent power
purchasers for maintaining availability of some of the Group’s
power generators for dispatch of electricity, regardless of
actual dispatch. Revenue is recognized over time when the
relevant dispatch requirements are met. The credit period is
normally 30 days to the independent power purchasers.

WA R EER (B

WA #&)
ERSRBYNEE @)

FLIHE B B BN BES R EERA

BEERAREDHEEES NAEBBARN
Eil:SN Eﬂﬁ”‘r‘]@rﬁlﬁﬁm Spalisti Tk

&TE FHAZNE*E?%EWZEB ‘BERER
N EZEEREXRERBNR20205F
18 H%’*Aééﬁﬁﬂ’] (I BEERBEMRM
WMENEEEEPA) M E[2020]55% B
(M2020F@H)) KRERBELZNRAE
SERBSEWNESHESE (TEE))
Ao RIF2020FEEH FEAEARA B
A BER(E BB B b0 5k I % A8 B
JF BB PIHE 7 o

P& WSRR IR S () B i 53 - 1 1) 5 48 B BT
BRI EMABEERIN ERZER
BEDEREE - BN ERREN T
B REEHEAADEERAEY
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EEBAAE -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Start-up charges

Start-up charges are payments from independent power
purchasers for the start-up of the power plants. Revenue is
recognized over time during the power generation period to the
independent power purchasers. The credit period is normally
20 days to the independent power purchasers.

Management service income

Management service income is recognized overtime when the
service is provided. The credit term is normally 30 days.

Service income on sales of electricity

Service income on sales of electricity is recognized when
control over a service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled. The credit term is 30 days.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Contracts for capacity charges and management service
typically have 3 to 20 years non-cancellable terms in which
the Group bills fixed rates by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligations. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognizing revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied contracts are not
disclosed.

Contracts for sales of electricity and steam typically have
20 years non-cancellable terms. As the revenue from sales
of electricity and steam as well as the related tariff income
depends on future actual consumption, the revenue arising
from these future sales have not been included in the
transaction price for revenue recognition purposes.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on geographical location are set out below.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
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(continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

The executive directors of the Company reviews the operating
results and financial information of the Group based on
individual power plant, management companies and on a
location basis. Each power plant and management company
constitutes an operating segment. For certain operating
segments that exhibit similar long-term financial performance
as they have similar economic characteristics, produce
electricity and/or steam by using similar production processes
and all of the electricity and/or steam are distributed and sold
to similar classes of customers, provide similar consulting
services to customers, their segment information is aggregated
into a single reportable operating segment.

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

(1) Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of
electricity;

(2) Power plants in Korea - Generation and supply of
electricity; and

(3) Management companies - Provision of management
services to power plants operated by CGN and its
subsidiaries.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

7 BT — S ER

Segment revenue - external

Segment results DEBEE

Unallocated other income ROEEMUA

Unallocated operating ROEK ST
expenses

Unallocated finance costs KPRV BHER

Share of results of BEBE AT ES
associates

Profit before taxation FR2 AR A

(b)

WA R EER (B

DEBURA B 73 BB 4R

ERABRTEERENER - EERQ
ARUBEEEBRRNAERANEEXR

RUBEN KBEBRREBE QB EM
—EEESH AR BRLUEES

M FERENLEERFEEE RS
HES FBABNR/HEADHK
WEFHEUENERURBEFEH
BUERRSMBERBURRMBR
BNETEEDH HOoBER DR
ER—EE-—Z2RZENE-

FEEEBUT=ET2RDE :

(1) FERER—EEREIMHE;

(2) BENEBR-EBREIMHE;

)4
(3) BEERQA— WEPEEW?&EWE
NEIEENERKIEMHEER
5o
() SBEE BERAER
UTRZAI2HRDEHE DA
EERAREEDN:
HE20245F12831HLEE
Power Power
plants in plants in Management
the PRC Korea companies Total
PENER BENER EEAT #ast
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FETT FET FET FET
1,009,907 909,788 31,644 1,951,339
289,510 92,811 1,507 383,828
37
(11,490)
(39,374)
4,251
337,252
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) TEBMA R ERELE
(continued) (#E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PHEE-BEERERE
(continued) #)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F 128310 ILEE
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea companies Total
FENER BEOVERK (=PEYAE] Rt
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE1 FET FET
Segment revenue - external 73 BT A — ShER 1,012,714 1,151,008 29,255 2,192,977
Segment results pan=iE 303,791 91,246 1,393 396,430
Unallocated other income AOEEMUA 37
Unallocated operating RO ERL
expenses (3,532)
Unallocated finance costs KNEEHMHEER (43,429)
Share of results of BMEABEER
associates 3,022
Profit before taxation R 76 Al e A 352,528
The accounting policies of the reportable segments Eji%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁ%}
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set 2P E AL B G 5T EERAER o
out in note 2. Segment results represents the profit DEEEIE il £ 2B B E B &
earned by each segment without allocation of certain #o T@%E:Fﬁf’fﬂuﬁzA e
other income, operating expenses, finance costs and Fﬁﬁ\j?ﬁ%%}ﬂ&%{ﬁ%ﬁﬁé@
share of results of associates. This is the measure EES | E’\J;ﬁﬁﬂﬂtt)'ﬁ?.%ﬁ;}?\@
reported to the executive directors of the Company for @B&ﬁﬁ#jﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%&@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
the purposes of resource allocation and performance EERENFHELI
assessment.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable segments:

Segment assets DEEE
Power plants in the PRC H B A9
Power plants in Korea 52 B0 Y B R
Management companies BIENT
Total segment assets DEEERE
Interests in associates R E QBN R
Unallocated FOER

- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE

- Others —HAth
Consolidated assets HREBE

4.

WA R EER (B

(b) PERRARDEBEE

(&
() ZSDEHEE-BERAER
#)
UTAZAZRDBADHAE
EEBEERBEDR
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
7,279,722 6,894,919
1,327,720 1,335,257
1,327 954
8,608,769 8,231,130
78,777 75,929
1,586 1,136
28,576 41,947
8,717,708 8,350,142
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Segment liabilities
Power plants in the PRC
Power plants in Korea
Management companies

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated
— Bank borrowings

- Loans from fellow subsidiaries

- Lease liabilities
- Others

Consolidated liabilities

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance

SEWER
B B9 E R
FRE B
EENF

DEERIBER
ROEC
—RTEE

—RERRWBABNER

—HE&E
—Hfth

e A

o

T

and allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates,
right-of-use assets and corporate assets of

investment holding companies; and

. all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than certain bank borrowings,
loans from fellow subsidiaries, lease liabilities

and unallocated corporate liabilities.
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WA R EER (B

(b) PERRARDEBEE

(%)

() DERFER - BERER

#)
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$°000
FET FET
5,465,778 5,201,487
684,068 647,951
659 573
6,150,505 5,850,011
348,132 100,000
450,000 700,000
1,633 1,151
7,901 10,421
6,958,171 6,661,583

MBEDEERRE R DL D E
BERMES :

FMBEEEHADREEE
DE (REE AT MR
m ETHERAEEER
KEZERABNARTE
BRI 5 K

PREREHDEE
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KERRNBARNE
FoHEREURRSD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45 B 55 ER R MY X

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEPURA B D EREELE
(continued) (#E)
(ii) Other segment information (iiy HthoER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE2024F 128318 L EE
Power Power
plants in plants in Management
the PRC Korea  companies Unallocated Total
FENER BENER EEAF KA st
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of FHENFEZADPHEER
segment profit or loss or segment ~ EERBFANSE !
assets and liabilities:
Depreciation of property, NE BERRENE
plant and equipment 290,425 65,502 8 270 356,205
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EAEEENE 8,939 1,414 68 1,271 11,692
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HENE BEIRE
property, plant and equipment B8/ hm) F8 9,366 100 - (4) 9,462
Interest income FIEMA 1,661 1,261 16 46 2,984
Finance costs MBER 123,723 18,135 2 39,371 181,231
Impairment losses recognized in WE -BERZERDZ
respect of property, plant and REBR
equipment 11,902 24,230 - - 36,132
Impairment losses recognized in HEEHIZAESR
respect of goodwill 3,344 - - - 3,344
Amounts regularly provided to EHRTELEEARERY
the chief operating decision maker B AFESHERD
but not included in the measure AREEREENSE
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets and liabilities:
Interests in associates REEARANES 78,777 - - - 78,777
Share of results of associates ) UNCIE 4,251 - - - 4,251
Income tax st 61,163 17,802 6 - 78,971
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) TEBMA R ERELE
(continued) (#E)
(ii) Other segment information (continued) (iiy HhoIEN #)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F 128310 ILEE
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea companies  Unallocated Total
TENER BENER EEAF XxDE it
US$'000 Us$'000 USs$'000 Us$'000 USs$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of  HENBERZANBEER
segment profit or loss or segment ~ BEEFANLE:
assets and liabilities:
Depreciation of property, NE BERRENE
plant and equipment 276,366 66,688 14 672 343,740
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EAEEENE 5,839 1,198 153 1,123 8,313
Net (gain)/ loss on disposal of HENE BER
property, plant and equipment &= (R /BEEE (4) 42 - (1) 37
Interest income FIEMA 2,828 2,869 6 75 5,778
Finance costs PHEER 142,996 26,340 5 43,424 212,765
Impairment losses recognized in WE -BERZERDZ
respect of property, plant and REBE
equipment 7,659 - - - 7,659
Impairment losses recognized in HEEHIZAESR
respect of goodwill 8,681 - - - 8,681
Net gain on cash flow hedging FREMEZERGEEHNDEN
instruments reclassified through ReRHATIEN
other comprehensive income a3 = 2,170 = = 2170
Gain on deconsolidation of BB B AN KRG
subsidiaries 2,485 - - - 2,485
Amounts regularly provided to EHRTEEBARERY
the chief operating decision maker ~ ERFt At 2D HER
but not included in the measure FABEERBRN
of segment profit or loss or £%5:
segment assets and liabilities:
Interests in associates REEARNER 75,929 = = = 75,929
Share of results of associates BEHEATIES 3,022 = = = 3,022
Income tax st 71,350 1,115 430 = 72,895

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) TEBMA R ERELE
(continued) (#E)
(iii) Information about major customers iy BRAFEERNEN
Revenue from customers from segment of power plants RNEBEEAREBEIHELR
in Korea of the corresponding years contributing over 21 0% LA - B RRAY 58 B E R
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: DEELUWAWT :
2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Korea Electric Power Korea Electric Power
Corporation (“KEPCO”) Corporation (TKEPCO J) 222,797 433,498
Korea Power Exchange Korea Power Exchange 675,536 717,510
(iv) Non-current assets by geographical (iv) B EEDRIERS
location BE
The Group operates in three principal geographical AEBTE=-BAFEMBUEL
areas - the PRC, Korea and Hong Kong. The Group’s A -@BRAKRES &E
information about its non-current assets (Note) by EMNERHEE (W) 2E
location of assets and its associates by location of the EMTEMKRERAHKHEATKE
relevant associates’ business operations are detailed HFE -
below:
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
PRC ==]E| 5,860,828 5,526,200
Korea B2 (5 1,025,803 1,024,065
Hong Kong 55 5,856 4,898
6,892,487 6,555,163
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. Kz FERBEBEEAEIERIER
THEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 5.

Operation support expenses

Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15)
Transportation and entertainment expenses
Other taxes, surcharges and duties
Insurance expenses

Expense relating to short-term leases
Qutsourcing expenses

Tools and consumables

Consultancy fees

Office expenses

Miscellaneous operating expenses

REC inventory decrease/(increase)

OTHER INCOME

Compensation from insurance companies
Equipment rental income

Government grants (note 33)

Income on sales of scrap materials
Technical service income

Interest income

Compensation from supplier

Others

RETRAX

WRE B2 B KRk E

EREBERE (Hat15)

I 8 K FE N B R

HARIE - W& R E

&R

HIGHRHE AR

SNELE

TAKHEFER

B8 & A

WAERX

HMIEEERX

Tgiﬁb/}_uﬂaré ll\/
(1B m)

6.

RER A BB E
REHEVRA
BB (f/a233)
& BRI
i BRF WA
B
RS 7 B fE

HAh
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Hith#& 'SR

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$°'000
FET FET
60,125 63,313
12,604 12,772
11,692 8,313
10,297 10,270
9,994 8,145
8,748 7,978
4,977 2,535
4,170 3,648
4,733 8,261
3,437 4,948
2,421 1,480
7,134 9,901
(9,581) 11,580
130,751 153,144
Hg A
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$'000
FET FET
584 293
455 423
9,597 9,459
46 218
2,842 1,857
2,984 5,778
25,765 =
366 1,746
42,639 19,774
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
(note 37)

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment (note 14)

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill (note 16)

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments
reclassified through other comprehensive
income

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:

Bank borrowings

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

7.

Wﬁéﬁ%%@ﬁ%
& (W&37)
ﬁ%% R 5 e 5% 6 i 22
BERE Wat14)
TE B 2 AERIE
(Htzt16)
SNEE (B518) Wi Z?éﬁ
HEWE BB &%
518 7% %8
HiRHEMEEmNEERN
ﬁ*—EE’Jiﬁ,%/)IL%‘J’/EP
TENWRFE

MTFEEZHE

RITEE
X@H%W%@TEE?
EaE

E%%ﬁﬁ@&%%%%
P —RIFERRRRIE

Hithim R g518

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$°'000
FET FET
- 2,485
(36,132) (7,659)
(3,344) (8,681)
(7,803) 1,726
(9,462) (37)
- 2,170
(56,741) (9,996)
BT E R
2024 2023
20244 20234
US$’000 US$'000
FET FET
130,155 150,766
48,099 59,740
2,442 2,006
456 178
79 75
181,231 212,765
2024 FERE | PEIEZFERERERARE
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9. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:

Current tax: BRHATRIE :
Provision for the year FREBE
Under provision in prior years BEEFERETE

Dividend withholding tax — current year BB EFEHIRN —AKEE

Deferred tax (note 19): IRIERRIE (KfaE19) -
Current year KEE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda.

Current tax provision represents provision for the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT”) and Korean Corporate
Income Tax (“KCIT”).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards, except for those subsidiaries
described below.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are under the
Western China Development Plan and a preferential tax rate of
15% is granted for an extended period from 2020 to 2030. As
a result, the tax rate of 15% is used to calculate the amount of
current taxation.

Pursuant to KCIT law, the statutory income tax of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries was calculated at a rate of 23.1% (2023:
23.1%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended
31 December 2024.

186 CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

m R Hith 2 E R m R

I*.IZFFr 5m

mAEmRAZRIERE

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
85,278 63,333
1,682 223
86,960 63,556
6,185 6,355
(14,174) 2,984
78,971 72,895

FRBERRHMBERERE

VAR IE R s R E PSR (THE
EEMRSR) REETEMSR ((RE
EEMRFR) BHE-

RigPEAREMBECEMRESRE (TR
EFRBRE) REEMBRIZBHK
> 22008 F1H1BHE > RFEIRERE
MR Z 225% > M T SCAT LAY BT & A 3]
BRIN o

AEBEFESENE TH B QIR
BAEMAMESE  IZR15%2EE
MEH2020FERE20304F o F L > 5F
BN IERRA15% 2R E -

RIFBE R EMSINIE > B E20245F12
A31BIEFE AEBZEENEBAR
HEAERESREEMEFERRENN
23.1% (20234 : 23.1%) 5t 8 o
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(continued)

Pursuant to Hong Kong tax law, the statutory income tax was
calculated at a rate of 16.5% for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023. Pursuant to the tax laws in Republic of Malta
and in Mauritius, the statutory income tax was calculated at
a rate of 35% and 15%, respectively, for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023. However, subsidiaries of the Group
operating in these jurisdictions have not generated taxable
income during both years and therefore, no tax provision has
been made by the Group in relation to these subsidiaries.

The Group’s subsidiaries and associates that are tax residents
in the PRC are subject to the PRC dividend withholding tax
ranging from 5% to 10% for those non-PRC tax resident
immediate holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions, when and if undistributed earnings are
declared and to be paid as dividends out of profits that arose
on or after 1 January 2008.

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax residents in Korea are
subject to a 10% Korean dividend withholding tax for the
immediate holding company incorporated in the Republic of
Malta when and if undistributed earnings are declared and to
be paid to non-PRC or non-Korea residents as dividends out of
profits.

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the profit for the current year of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries and certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

|\7F

m R Hith 2 E R m R

WZ%%ﬁ%ﬁ

(a)

EAEERANZIRIEN
(#2)

RIFEFER L BE2024F 20234
12B31HIEFEZEAEMBRDEZ
16.5%sT H o IRIEFEMEMNE & E4E
BEIR L B E2024F % 2023F 128
1B I FEEZEEMERDBIEI5% K
15% 2 MEAE -RAM AEBEZE
AAREREZHBABTNZMEN
W ELERRRUIA > AL BT &R
ZENBABEHRIBREME

W EMBER2008FE1B1EBRZRBESE
MaMEPRNRs REBHELRKRBIK
T HRETEBEREMB ARG F MK
UNZEFFPERBEREEREERA
BME FATRERBERNFEKNE
NE RIS A B BN %E10% N E R
% S IEINR -

fifl B 5 Lt M & YR D IR E A 1F 2
RERNFIRTRIGFREAETR > F5
BENTERNAEHNE AR EAT
REBMAMBAFMAINEZER
AEBN10%HIFRE B B FEINR o

BA 74 4 &2 [ BJ 42 A6 B B 2 52 A9 [o 5 B
B Mt ERERENRRERRERE
FEEZ BT ERRANEEELEDN
FEBRRBRBANBARDRE T TEKE
AR Z B EENERERNGEHM
BRI HIELER AR -
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9.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

9 . n\l-F

m R Hith 2 E R m R

A ZFE 518 #&)

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) ErEMEAZEEHEF%
and accounting profit at applicate tax HERREAF Z IR
rates: T

2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$’000 US$’000
FET F=T
Profit before taxation B2 A am A 337,252 352,528
Notional tax on profit before taxation BRERBEZBRAMEMRE
calculated at the rates applicable to HE BRRANEFIN S E
profits in the countries concerned RIa 86,398 90,028
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AOHREAINRE T E
for tax purpose 8,429 10,161
Tax effect of non-taxable income NERMBANRFE B (3,964) (3,010)
Tax effect of share of results of Eﬁfﬁﬂﬁ?%@jﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%
associates A (883) (616)
Tax effect of preferential tax rates ETHENBAT
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries BEEENENRBLE (36,149) (48,896)
Utilization of tax losses previously not BRI ARERRIBEE
recognized - (97)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized R FEERAIIRIBES B RY
B 17,273 15,122
Withholding tax on distributable profits M /B A B K E & A 5
of subsidiaries and associates Bk A B TR0 AR 6,185 9,980
Under provision in prior years BEFEERERE 1,682 223
Income tax expense for the year FRFERMAS 78,971 72,895
Details of deferred tax movement are set out in note 19. BRAREERIBEE M IEH TR M
190
(c) Pillar Two income taxes (c) BIZHFAEMR

In 2021, the Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development published the Global Anti-Base Erosion Model
Rules (“Pillar Two model rules”) for a new global minimum tax
reform applicable to large multinational enterprises. Certain
jurisdictions in which the Group operates have implemented
Pillar Two income tax legislation based on this framework,
and those Pillar Two income tax laws became effective on 1
January 2024.

The Group has applied the temporary mandatory exception
to recognizing and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes and
accounted for the tax as current tax when incurred.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FAEF
2024 2023
20244 20234
USs$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived at FEWNRAZLEIN :
after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)¥ R KR HEITE 356,205 343,740
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEEITE 11,692 8,313
Recognition of loss allowance of trade and other FEZRE 5 K EHMEWHRIE K
receivables and contract assets EREEBBERE
(note 36(a)) (K13£36(a)) 19,271 8,593
Impairment losses recognized in respect of TYE - BEKRREBRIZ
property, plant and equipment (note 14) BAERSE (Kfat14) 36,132 7,659
Impairment losses recognized in respect of ThEm BB AR
goodwill (note 16) (Hizt16) 3,344 8,681
Staff costs BIHA
- salaries and allowances —Fr e BER 106,671 100,558
— contribution to retirement benefits scheme, —RIARTEA] A HE
including directors’ emoluments BiEEEME 24,379 19,755
Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 488 T a7 SR EEi S 131,050 120,313
Auditors’ remuneration ZH Ml &
- audit services — B IZR 768 702
- non-audit services —IEBRZR 124 202
Total auditors’ remuneration 4B IZ B EMEN 892 904
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11.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments

2024

Name

Secretary of the Communist Party
Committee, Chairman and Executive
Director

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu

President and Executive Director

Mr. LI Guangming

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Xianwen (appointed on
7 February 2024)

Ms. Mu Wenjun (appointed on
31 July 2024)

Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on
7 February 2024)

Mr. LIU Qingming (resigned on
31 July 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

i)

BRER IRRUTES

REREE

BERHTES

FRPLE

FHTES

BEEE (202452 B7HER )
ENELL (R2024F7831 BEZRMA)
RAELE (H2024F287HBHT)

2IBBRLAE (R2024F7B31ABHE)

BIFHTES
RFERE
BRERE
IRERE

l Annual Report 2024

1. EFMERES M
E5M=E
20244
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total
REERA RAER
EENE  HeREM HEER BEMER HE e @t
us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
17 - - - - 17
8 - - - - 8
8 - - - - 8
33 - - - - 33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

2023

Name

Secretary of the Communist Party

Committee, Chairman, President and

Executive Director
Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu, (former President)
(resigned as President

on 4 September 2023)

Executive Director

Mr. LI Guangming (appointed as President

and Director on 4 September 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Qingming (appointed on
29 December 2023 )

Mr. WANG Hongxin (resigned on
29 December 2023)

Mr. Bian Shuming (resigned on
4 September 2023)

Mr. Chen Xinguo (resigned on
7 February 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

iz

BRER IR MERUTES

RERLE FIEH)
(12023598 4 H BHT 1 H,)
WiTES

EHIALE (R2023F9F4HERTE

FHTES

2IEBRLE (R2023F128 298
EZA)

IRHEE (R2023E12829R BHF)

TERLE (20239848 FH D)

BEELE (R2024E287HHE)

BIUFHTES
RFERSE
BRERE

IRELE

n‘7|'\
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1. EEMERESFHFM (&)

E5ME B
20234
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total
=EEA RINER
EZHE  HEeRER HEER BIEA SRR st
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
17 - - - - 17
9 - - - - 9
9 - - - - 9
35 - - - - 35
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11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services as directors of the Company.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries, so the payments of their emoluments were borne by CGN
and its subsidiaries for both years.

Neither the President nor any of the directors of the Company waived
any emoluments during both years.

No emoluments were paid to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join for both years.

Individuals with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals did not include any directors of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. The
emoluments of the five individuals for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Hr KRR
BRARTEH 5T B R

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
Performance related incentive payments (note)

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined by the board of

directors of the Company based on the Group’s performance.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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RIRERBBER (W)

EFMERESHFM (&)

EXME @)

ERAGTEEWNES A RELAETRBDREER
EIEEFER ZRB M AT -

FHIFRTEEMES D MRFEEERILTIA
ME QB EFEEARBM A o EMBIIIFHA
TEEMEDMRFREEARDEEHMRE
M3z fy o

ETEETRERPEZRENBAR  HHE
IS 22 0 {8 6 2 B9 7 B Bl o AR e EL B /BB R B K
}%0

BEAARABINEANEETNZMBEEERR
WS BRAE (AT B =

BERZMEFERRLARDES AN IFES
AR B FHH o

&= {E S

B E2024F K2023FE 12831 B IEEE > #H M
BEehiAEALRGERARERES -HE
2024F K2023FE 1283 1B EEE LA RS
ANTHEFOT :

2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$°000 US$'000
FET FE71
1,081 1,048
83 76

292 532
1,456 1,656
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 11.
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments
(continued)

No benefits in kind and compensations of loss of office were paid to
the individuals and no emoluments were paid to the individuals as an
inducement to join for both years.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0013& 7z (F7T1) 22,000,000 7T

(Equivalent to US$192,001 to US$255,000) (#HER192,0013E 75 E255,000% 70)
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00177T%2,500,0005875
(Equivalent to US$255,001 to US$319,000) (1821 255,001%7TE319,000%7T)
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017875%3,000,00087T
(Equivalent to US$319,001 to US$383,000) (HHE12319,001% 7T £ 383,000%7T)
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017875%3,500,000875
(Equivalent to US$383,001 to US$447,000) (1HE12383,001E7TE 447,000%7T)
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per Share attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company is based on the
following data.

Earnings: BAH

Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic AR ESREARKEE
and diluted earnings per Share (profit for the BANEN EATEER
year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders 7 7 J% B8 FE {5 €5 R % A1)
of the Company)

EFMERESHFM (&)

m=NES (&)

108 0 R B £ FE R B A SZ (Y B A o K R
BE TEAEAINTMESFERMAETRBTH
FE-

BENMENFUTEHE :

No. of employees

BEAH
2024 2023
20244 20234
0 0
5 2
(] 2
0 1

sikEA

FABEBRRABLEERERREERF T
RIELLT B E -

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
248,018 267,685

2024 FERE | HEEEHERERERAS
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

13.

Number of shares: BHEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of R ESRELARK
calculating basic and diluted earnings per HERAN NI EREE

Share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, and therefore, diluted earnings per
Share are the same as basic earnings per share.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

Hong Kong

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Employees
contribute 5% of their relevant income to the MPF Scheme
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000,
and the Group contributes 10% of each employee’s monthly
base salary. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the retirement benefit scheme contributions
arising from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss were
approximately US$157,000 (2023: US$220,000).

The PRC

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations of the
PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to social insurance (including endownment
insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance) and
housing provident fund, as well as enterprise annuity and
supplementary medical insurance for the current employees.
The particular proportion of contributions are based on the
location of the entities and the Group’s policies. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the costs charged under such
arrangements for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries amounted to
approximately US$22,536,000 (2023: US$18,068,000).
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12. SREH (@)

2024 2023
20244 20234
000 000

FiR FR
4,289,924 4,290,824

HE2024%F K2023FE 12831 HIEEE > W iE#

é HE

TEER Bt SRESEMNAGRELX

BAER -

BEEF

(a)

EFR R s E
R

rEBEEBAMBECENREREZHA
RIFaHE QA BE ot EEG (5485%)
HRIUMRBEEE cEEZREMERKA
Hs%msaBEe st BER BN S BB
AE EBRA30,00087T MAEERS
LEESBELAFEHI0%EH MR
BRESHEANEBENBINAEREE
REBISTAEFNNESARFTE NE
F2024F 1283 1HIEFE AaEE
SR ELEANBEANKRNERAKET
B AIA157,0005= 7 (20234
220,000%7T) ©

FRE

REFEBERARANKEER ZEEMN
FENBAGREAAREBETIAMME
R (BIEEERB - KERER - BE
RE-TITHERB -EERR) MEEA
B URGCEFSNBTEERRE
BREMHALAKRBECEFREMMNER
BER#$IT o REE2024F 12831 1E
EE > REBEAEEPENBASNE
FZBENBRINE B#497%422,536,000E 7T
(20234 : 18,068,000% 7T) ©
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan (continued)

Korea

The Group’s Korean subsidiaries are required by law to
contribute 0.8% to 4.5% (2023: 0.06% to 4.5%) of the
average salaries of the employees for national pension,
national health insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial
accident compensation insurance and wage claim guarantee
fund. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the cost
charged under such arrangements for the Group’s Korean
subsidiaries amounted to approximately US$1,686,000 (2023:
US$1,486,000).

In the PRC and Korea, the Group cannot reduce the existing
level of contributions by the forfeited contributions made by the
employers on behalf of the employees who leave the defined
contribution schemes before the vesting period. As such, no
forfeited contribution was used to reduce both years’ level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
at 31 December 2024 and 2023 to reduce future years’
contributions in the PRC and Korea. In Hong Kong, the Group
has utilized nil forfeited contributions to reduce the current
year’s level of contributions for the year ended 31 December
2024 (Nil for the year ended 31 December 2023). As at 31
December 2024 and 2023, no material forfeited contribution
was available to reduce the contribution payable in future years
in Hong Kong.

Defined benefit retirement scheme

Korea

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Korea,
all employees with more than one year of service are entitled
to lump-sum severance payments equal to one month’s pay of
service for each year based on their rate of latest salary and
the length of service upon termination of their employment or
retirement.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries in accordance with an independent
actuary’s recommendation based on annual actuarial
valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
scheme was at 31 December 2024 and were prepared by the
qualified staff of Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd, who are members of
the Society of Actuaries of the United States of America and
Institute of Actuaries of Korea, using the projected unit credit
method.

13. EE4EF (@)

(a)

(b)

2024 FERE |

EERIMREE (@)
L

SEBBAMBABDRBERETE
BIEHEE FH57£0.8%F4.5% (2023
£ 0.06%E4.5%) 2HEF EBEAR
BEh: BERBERR KERR T
EENEEREATIERRRBZES -
REE2024F 12831 HIEEE > IBIT
FEFBEAMNBAT ZE BRI BN
BIRY <49 751,686,000 75 ( 20234 :
1,486,0003 7T) ©

EPERER AEBREUEERE
REBHAELATHAGTENES
EH BB R R EIR B H K TFE o A
It EESR W ERAR B MEEE
B ERK T » BiR2024% K% 2023412
A31RLEBBUMRATBRE LR
REEFEARBENER - ESE A
EEEE2024F 12831 HILEET
EHABRWMER (B E20235F12H31
HIEFE | 8)  UREBERFEMRIK
T o JR20244F % 2023F 128318 » i iE
BAERBEFTBRBLREKEE
SENELHR

1R R E B AR B AR B KRB > PR A AR
BEB-—ENEEHAEENRKLER
FERAREG REESBRHFERRBE
ESFESHEAEN —BARBHN
—RMEEWE-

ZotBNESKBAEREHBA
AREBIEEMREFEREMGE
RENEBFAELNHERZFERA
—REBIUBEGEREE20245F12831
H > BShinhan Bank Co., Ld&E&&E
T (BEMNBREREREMBE KERH
EEMREE8) EABFEUEEE

FPE EA AR RERARAE
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as
investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk. Information
about the plan is disclosed below:

(1)

(i)

The amount recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position is as follows:

Present value of wholly or partly
funded obligations

Fair value of plan assets AEEENAABE
Net defined benefit retirement RESZDBINAEEE
scheme assets FEB

A portion of the above asset is expected to be
recovered after more than one year. However, it is
not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts recoverable in the next twelve months, as
future contributions will also relate to future services
rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The Group expects to pay
US$951,000 in contributions to defined benefit
retirement schemes during the year ended 31
December 2025.

Plan assets consist of the following:

RENREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents

There were no asset-liability matching strategies used
by the scheme of the Group.
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R E R m RIS E (B

]

(b)

ﬁE. (:E
Zet Bl AEEEESERR N

ERAMOBREEZIRE

ERAK - MEXEBRMFSAK A/
ZEtEIMBERIFENT ¢
(i) RGEEHBERRERDPEINE
BEOTF .
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$'000
FET FE=T
12,717 13,272
(13,770) (13,669)
(1,053) (397)
THBEN OB BE—

FEUBWE R & iE
HARE+ AR YR E S
BRI AT ThEKRKH
30N A B R AR AR 2 B9 AR 7S I
EREEEBRNHBEEN
HEAEM ~EBABEHRREE
2025F12H31HIEEEARTE
iR PR 5T B 2 S F951,000
Ete

(i) EEEEEUTRE

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
(13,770) (13,669)

FEANFB T RRBEER
BUCFCERBE o
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)
Korea (continued)
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations:
At beginning of the year REA]
Remeasurements: BEHEtE ¢
- Actuarial losses from —REREEFE R
changes in experience TEEEE
- Actuarial gains from — B BRREESTHR
changes in financial BE W
assumptions
- Actuarial losses from changes — ACRJBEB R
in demographic assumptions TBEEE R
Benefits paid by the scheme EIZ G ZEBF
Current service cost IR REAR 75 AL A
Interest cost ) B R
Exchange differences PEREZR
At end of the year RER

13.

2024 EERE

BERF #&)

(b) HREZmBIAREI (&

EE &)

(iii) REZHmEENIREEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
13,272 12,140

53 824
(378) (176)

6 —
12,953 12,788
(642) (1,176)
1,512 1,290
526 576
(1,632) (206)
12,717 13,272

| PEEERERERERAR
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme (b) HRERI

(continued)

Korea (continued)

(iv) Movements in plan assets:

At beginning of the year

Group’s contributions paid to
the plan

Benefits paid by the plan

Return on plan assets less
than discount rate

Administrative expenses paid
from plan assets

Interest income

Exchange differences

At end of the year

2L
z

RE (&

(iv) STRIEENEE

13. EE4EF (@)

Rst8 (8

2024 2023
20244 20234
US$°000 US$'000
FET FET
REF] (13,669) (12,310)
AEE M B ZTHMER
(2,059) (2,302)
A ZEF 642 1,176
BERITIREMN T8 & E LR
194 205
FEEELMNTEREAS
31 31
FMEUWA (625) (671)
PERE%R 1,716 202
RER (13,770) (13,669)

(v) Amounts recognized in the consolidated profit or loss v) GhaBnkAMtEEKET

82102 :
and other comprehensive income are as follows: SREIEEM T
2024 2023
20244 20234
USs$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
Current service cost IBEFARFE A A 1,512 1,290
Net interest on defined benefit RBEZ@EEMN
assets MEFER (99) (95)
Administrative expenses paid AEEELMNITREX
from plan assets 31 31
Total amounts recognized in RIBE R 4248
profit or loss 1,444 1,226
Net actuarial (gains)/losses BE (Wm) E1E358 (319) 648
Return on plan assets less than B ITIR XA 518 E B3R
discount rate 194 205
Total amounts recognized in RHEMEENmEREEE
other comprehensive income, PRI AT
before tax (125) 853
Tax expenses MIEHAZ 29 (199)
Total amounts recognized in REMEEK E R85
other comprehensive income (96) 654

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

(vi)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

IR
RARFFE LT

Discount rate
Future salary increases

The below analysis shows how the net defined benefit
retirement scheme assets as at 31 December 2024
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 1%
change in the significant actuarial assumptions:

IR %
RIH & LT

Discount rate
Future salary increases

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum
of the returns on individual asset categories. The return
is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the
year, for returns net of administrative costs, over the
entire life of the related obligations.

13. BEE®H (@)
(b) RERmBA:E &

#RE

(vi) 20244 202312831 1E

ANTFEFERRAOT :
2024 2023
20245 20234
4.35%-4.42% 4.97-5.04%
4.00% 5.00%

LR BRI 2024412831
BNRESnRBRATEEEZ
EERBEABERRMNI%EL
Mg,/ Gl :

Increase Decrease
in 1% in 1%
1% 1%
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
(829) 945
940 (840)

A 8RR 0 AT PR AR R B R R
B BEERRNEMETEARE
Ii A EEEIBERR
AL L)

STEIEEMEMRRARKRERE
EREEREHEEG MIEER
EEHHHNERZM - EHKTD
REFNTSHEHEEHEERE
HR AT HEBRHER
BITRARSHE

2024 FERE | HEEEHERERERAS
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% BB K=

Electric
Freehold and steam Office and
land in generating electronic Motor Construction
Korea Buildings facilities equipment vehicles in progress Total
AR RE N BHRER WAER
XAERELH BF EERE EFRMHE RE HRIR Mt
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
cosT B
At 1 January 2023 120231818 64,035 989,242 6,022,131 16,316 8,522 179,047 7,279,293
Exchange differences ERER (1,169) (17,731) (101,376) (323) (147) (2,907) (123,653)
Others HAt = 23,215 (25,199) 71 2 = (1,911)
Additions RE - 11,010 14,220 3,366 1,155 501,406 531,157
Disposals RE = (8) (15,488) (586) (524) = (16,606)
Transfer B - 29,098 128,558 579 = (158,235) =
At 31 December 2023 #2023& 128318 K
and 1 January 2024 202451818 62,866 1,034,826 6,022,846 19,423 9,008 519,311 7,668,280
Exchange differences ERER (7,385) (44,667) (212,384) (829) (174) (30,214) (295,653)
Others Hit - 17,252 (32,083) - - - (14,831)
Additions RE - 7,513 19,010 7,143 1,392 862,158 897,216
Disposals RE - (2,612) (99,633) (840) (593) - (103,678)
Transfer B - 61,906 517,415 1 - (579,322) -
At 31 December 2024 120245128318 55,481 1,074,218 6,215,171 24,898 9,633 771,933 8,151,334
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND B3t & R
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2023 1#2023F1 818 = 174,239 1,280,938 7,777 3,945 = 1,466,899
Exchange differences EREE = (3,505) (21,156) (179) (72) = (24,912)
Charge for the year EREY - 46,163 292,692 3,473 1,412 - 343,740
Others Hth - 1,162 (295) 8 1 = 876
Impairment losses recognized in PR R PR R ERE
profit or loss (note) (Hiz#) = 7,659 = = = = 7,659
Disposals RE = (2) (8,425) (521) (444) = (9,392)
At 31 December 2023 1#2023&12831H K
and 1 January 2024 202451818 - 225,716 1,543,754 10,558 4,842 - 1,784,870
Exchange differences ERES - (10,858) (84,674) (608) (108) - (96,248)
Charge for the year ERRZ - 50,362 300,817 3,636 1,390 - 356,205
Others Hith - 2,089 (2,089) - - - -
Impairment losses recognized in RABE P HRH R ERR
profit or loss (note) (Hz2) - 2,189 33,943 - - - 36,132
Disposals RE - (1,268) (51,814) (791) (430) - (54,303)
At 31 December 2024 #2024512831H - 268,230 1,739,937 12,795 5,694 - 2,026,656
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December 2024 12024128318 55,481 805,988 4,475,234 12,103 3,939 771,933 6,124,678
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 62,866 809,110 4,479,092 8,865 4,166 519,311 5,883,410

At 31 December 2024, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates of certain buildings with carrying values of US$8,807,000
(2023: US$8,799,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, borrowing costs of
US$11,005,000 (2023: US$7,373,000) were capitalized into the cost
of construction in progress. The capitalization rates used to determine
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are ranged
from 2.2% to 4.9% (2023: from 2.5% to 4.9%).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, certain amounts of the property,
plant and equipment have been pledged as securities for the
borrowings. Details are set out in note 31.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognized impairment losses of
US$36,132,000 (2023:US$7,659,000) on certain property, plant and equipment in the
PRC and Korea.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the directors of the Company approved
a modification and upgrading plan aimed at enhancing the quality and efficiency of
two wind power plants in the PRC. This plan, known as the “Turbine substitution” plan,
primarily involves replacing low-output single units with high-output single units. The
existing power plants will gradually be replaced by new ones in 2025. Consequently,
the expected useful lives of the current power plants will be significantly reduced. As
a result, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of these power plants and the
carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment were written down to their
recoverable amount of US$3,973,000. Impairment losses of US$11,902,000 were
recognized in “Other gains and losses”. The estimates of the recoverable amounts were
based on value in use calculations. These calculations are based on the present value
of the cash flow projections derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management. The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rate of 7.43%.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, impairment loss of US$24,230,000 was
recognized on the property, plant, and equipment of a fuel cell in Korea. This impairment
was due to difficulty in sourcing a supplier to replace the stack module, which
significantly affected the fuel cell’s efficiency. The directors of the Company concluded
that without the replacement of the stack module, the fuel cell would be unable to
generate profits and decided to shut it down. Consequently, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the power plant and the carrying amount of the power plant was
written down to nil.

14.

2024 FERE |

ME BB R (B

R2024F F2023F12B31H EFTYE -BE
ERESEDHREFEABEERRFR FBEHN
fi5E31 0

Wt

HE2024F 12831 EFEAEBBRITE KGR
BEEFTME -KERRKERERIE36,132,000% 7T
(20234 : 7,659,000 7T) °

BE2024F 12831 BEEE AR EEHE—TEX
BAGRE EERSMURPENRESIHNRE KB
RogstBl2ATUAR/IIHE TESRIUBERE
BRI K EA BRI - R2025F  IRAEHE
R E S AmE BN At BAERBHNTER
FERHFRRAABRE Rt ZEBFIHZELEMR
B BT U [B] & 88 0 X0 A& 4 2 ~ R B e 2R 1 B9 BR T M HORL
Z o] Ui [0l 583,973,000k 7T o jA TE th Uk &5 K 548 ) 7E
OB EEHE11,902,0005% s f Bl S BEE R ERE
BESEH ZEAENERREBEEERENRIT
B RERENREeRERARERE -RERE
FERIThE R IRE7.43%E TR

B F2024F12A31BLEEE iRENRKENY
¥ BERREEDHERE24,230,000% 7T © Z
BHERENYEHRESRERER HMEEN
MY RERBALE AATNERIRA EARABER
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RERERBR FEib AEEBHFE BN T WEEEE
ETHMG TR EEHNREERAES
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Leasehold Land and
Sea areas lands buildings Total
B e T RIEF 4t
us$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2023 #2023F181H
Carrying amount IREE - 68,554 36,694 105,248
Exchange differences PER = XA (11) (1,246) (611) (1,868)
Additions B 2,849 30,929 5,527 39,305
Depreciation charge ERX (46) (3,902) (4,365) (8,313)
Lease modification HEBX - = (2,456) (2,456)
As at 31 December 2023 and 22023F12H31H X%
1 January 2024 2024%181H
Carrying amount IREE 2,792 94,335 34,789 131,916
Exchange differences PE =% (120) (1,924) (1,186) (3,230)
Additions B 8,656 60,769 2,206 71,631
Depreciation charge MERX (719) (6,805) (4,168) (11,692)
Lease modification HEEN = = 1,237 1,237
As at 31 December 2024 122024%F12831H
Carrying amount REE 10,609 146,375 32,878 189,862
The Group leases land, sea area and buildings (including offices and AEBEHELH - EEEEFT (BERAZER
rooftops) for its operations. Other than the lease contracts of land use B) BERERR BRI MEREREIHFER
rights and sea use right which are entered into for 1.5 to 40 years, ENHEERA1.5E40F5  HthBEEMME

lease contracts for other assets are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 4
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings and office
buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties have been
presented in right-of-use assets and the building components have
been presented in property, plant and equipment.
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5
GOODWILL 16. BHE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$°000 US$°'000
FET FET
COST s
At 1 January BW1B1H 164,734 167,513
Exchange differences EEREZE (2,409) (2,779)
At 31 December ’12831H 162,325 164,734
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES REtRERE
At 1 January B1B18 (21,382) (12,917)
Impairment losses recognized in K18 AR R E R
profit or loss (3,344) (8,681)
Exchange differences EEREZE 348 216
(24,378) (21,382)
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December »128318 137,947 143,352
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BEEENREELEEMNZR
containing goodwill =R: )
Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”) BEIPREREUTERESESABEMN (REELE
or group of cash-generating units as follows: fii)) FIREEEEMAR -
2024 2023
20245 20234
US$°000 US$'000
FET FET
Wind Energy Subsidiaries REHBAR
(as defined below) (note) (BER T (Hz2) 108,141 110,337
Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIGEEM B AT
(as defined below) (note) (E&ER T (Ha2) 28,387 31,589
Multiple units without significant goodwill WHEBERKHENZEE 1,419 1,426
137,947 143,352
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management which cover operation periods ranging from 5 to 22 years (2023: 6 to
22 years). The cash flow projections are discounted using discount rates ranged from
9.65% to 10.99% (2023: 10.20% to 11.35%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which is determined
based on the installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and
Solar Energy Subsidiaries and management'’s expectations for the market development.
The first-year projection for electricity generation volume is determined based on the
historical generation volume of respective power plants and projections beyond the first
year are derived from the first-year projection with a growth rate ranging from 0% to 8.2%
(2023: -11.4% to 7.9%), except for the two wind power plants subject to the “Turbine
substitution” plan mentioned in note 14, where the projected electricity generation
volume is determined based on the modification and upgrading plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, due to a general decrease in electricity
generation volume growth rate adopted in the projected cash flows and a decrease in
the operation periods as the time elapsed, impairment losses of US$2,765,000 (2023:
US$8,335,000) and US$579,000 (2023: US$346,000) were recorded in “Other gains
and losses” in relation to certain CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and
Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively. Two cash generating units, CGN Solar Energy
(Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd (FEZAFZAE (K4 B) BIEEARAE) and CGN
Linqu Longgang Wind Power Co. Ltd (FEZEREEE R IZEEARAT) have
been reduced to their recoverable amount of US$27,605,000 (2023: US$30,795,000)
and US$16,126,000 (2023: US$16,947,000) respectively and adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculations of recoverable amounts would result in further
impairment losses.

A reduction in annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume of 5% will
result in additional impairment losses of US$1,894,000 and US$2,799,000 to the CGUs
of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in additional impairment losses of
US$2,909,000 and US$1,408,000 to the CGUs of the Group’s Solar Energy Subsidiaries
and Wind Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
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AEBSEFR2015FWEZPEZAENHE AR
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HAAREEFBUMARETRENR REHE L
SARAXGENBATIATKCEBHERERBESE
BT -REMBARIRAGENBAS BEILETE
EREARATE ZEHABENERBESERREE
SEMEEHENRESRERANREMSE &R
ERERAIRBEEBIENRIHMEEE  RES
224 (20234 | 6E226F) WK EH - REREBA
ThiR#59.65%%F10.99% (2023%F:10.20%%F11.35%) Z
WREMR - AFEEAEBENEMIERREBETR
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B E2024F 12831 B EEE > AR FBRAIREREPAH
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EEBEUDRIR THM K a B ETRSAERE
2,765,0003 7T (20234 : 8,335,0003<7T) K2579,0003%
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KBREE (K5 B) HEBRABMPEZEEMEERR S
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REE QTGS
2024 2023
20244 20234
USs$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates REiEATRIE L HEEZ A 150,569 150,569
Share of post-acquisition loss and exchange FE{LURBEREIERER E4E
differences (71,792) (74,640)
78,777 75,929
The following list contains the particulars of associates of the Group, TR EAEBHEATNER (E ~NEH
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price AIFELTHRAETERE WILTHIBRET B :

is not available:

Place of
establishment
and principal Proportion of ownership
place of Registered and interest and voting right
Name of associates business Legal form paid-up capital held by the Group Principal activity
B 323 3 R FEEMBRBREEDZ R
BERARRE FRERME  SEpH RS R RS REELA e 30
2024 2023
20245 20234
Hubei Huadian Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign equity joint Renminbi (“RMB”") 49% 49% Generation and supply of
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Huadian” ) venture 950,000,000 electricity
MEESHEUEEERA HE FHRERELE AR¥E TARS)) SERMEESEN
(THI6EE)) 950,000,0007%
Hubei Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB945,000,000 49% 49% Generation and supply of
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Xisaishan") joint venture electricity
ALEERBERAT FE b AEATELY AR 945,000,000 LERUEES
(FHIEEE L))
Jiangxi United Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB76,328,972 6.55% 6.55% Generation and supply of
(“Jiangxi United”) joint venture (Note (i) (Note (i) electricity
IEHAEERERAR (TIEKE)) FE HNEBEMELE AR 176,328,9727 (M) Wst) EEREEEN
Inner Mongolia East Electric The PRC State-owned holding RMB242,688,994 9.34% 9.34% Operation of electricity
Power Trading Center Co., Ltd. enterprise (Note (i) (Note (i) trading platform
(“Inner Mongolia East Electric Power”)
RARERBENRZPLERAF HE EREERE%E AR ¥242,688,9947C (&t (i) (Hizti) BEBHRZTR
(ARLRBEN)
Notes: Mzt -
(i) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over (i) EERRATERMNIARSEEAY

Jiangxi United as they have nominated a representative on the board of
directors and participated in policy-making processes.

(ii) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over
Inner Mongolia East Electric Power as they nominated a representative on the
board of directors and participated in policy-making processes.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements.

N EEEHE R EEG— %ﬁ%&%i
REBRE

(ii) EZERRLEEAHNATERBENBEKX
BN REARHERBEFE—HARK
SHERKIBIZ

LHFFEBMERRDRBREENGEH TR
E YN
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarized financial information of
material associates

Summarized financial information of the above associates, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, is disclosed below:

(a) Hubei Huadian

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Group’s effective interest

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Goodwill

REERRZEE
MENE E

FEREBE

nEamR

FFREBEARE

i

WA

FREM R 2B SRR

FRNEBE AR KRINKRE

BRI BE QAR a2 Bk
BENBPEEMER

AEE S EE S
AEEB I BEATFEE

]

g

Carrying amount in the consolidated Rix S ERER ZREE

financial statements
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17. RBEQTN#ED @)

FEBEQTMBENME

LHBEADNHBERZIREDT (B
EREABERNERNERFHBRE TRES

MR RVEEEHR) ©

3 =

(a) #AIEESE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FETT
82,881 65,276
388,188 425,305
(306,093) (123,799)
(18,982) (225,821)
145,994 140,961
330,204 330,779
7,210 5,032
2024 2023
202445 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
145,994 140,961
49% 49%
71,537 69,071
71,537 69,071
1,591 1,591
73,128 70,662
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. A Sdeshe AE L
17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. RREtEQTIMER #B)
(b) Jiangxi United (b) JIFEHES
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
Gross amount of the associate I EiZE AT 2 48%8
Current assets MAEE 33,966 24,510
Non-current assets ERBEE 172,688 139,735
Current liabilities U=k (37,918) (27,167)
Non-current liabilities FErEFEIE (129,663) (105,715)
Equity e 39,073 31,363
Revenue WA 28,259 20,036
Profit and total comprehensive EWNREA R EmW m AR EE
income for the year 10,925 8,535
Dividends received from the FREBEARKEBRE
associate during the year 254 -
2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Reconciled to Group’s interest  EAZREE NS AT % 2 HER
in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of BE A B R EEARRE
the associate 39,073 31,363
Non-controlling interests JEEER R (1,863) (620)
37,210 30,743
Group’s effective interest rEBZERER 6.55% 6.55%
Group’s share of net assets of REBBEZHE AT FEE
the associate 2,438 2,014
Carrying amount in the consolidated R#R & MK Z REE
financial statements 2,438 2,014
2024 FERE | PEIEZFERERERARE
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

REEARNED (1B

(c) Inner Mongolia East Electric Power (c) ARGLERIPE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
Gross amount of the associate  NHiE AT Z4%E
Current assets MENE E 33,307 34,317
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,104 923
Current liabilities V=] (722) (422)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (321) -
Equity e 34,368 34,818
Revenue WA 1,299 515
Profit and total comprehensive FRREMN R EE W B R
income for the year 27 2
Dividends received from the FREBEARKEBRE
associate during the year - -
2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Reconciled to the Group’s BMAEEMRBEATERZHIR
interest in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of BE A B R EEARRE
the associate 34,368 34,818
Group’s effective interest REBECERER 9.34% 9.34%
Group’s share of net assets of SEBBECHEADFEE
the associate 3,211 3,253
Carrying amount in the R EMBRERZREE
consolidated financial statements 3,211 8,268
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FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 18.

FVOCI

FLmEmTRERE

Investments in unlisted equity securities

The unlisted equity securities are shares in 3 (2023: 3) companies
established in the PRC with limited liability and engaged in operating
of electricity trading platforms. The Group designated its investments in
these companies at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held
for strategic purpose. No dividends were received on the investments
during the year (2023: nil).

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position

represents:

Tax payable FE{S IR 1B

- PRC EIT —HhE R ZERER
- KCIT —BE P EFRER
Tax payable EIRIE

Tax recoverable EIqEIE ]

- PRC EIT —HhE R ER

BERUAAREESER

285t AHtEmEImAY

THEE

2024
20244
Us$’000
FET

3,379

2023
20234
USs$’000
FET

3,354

FLETRETARB=R (2023F | =) RHE
MIUKRREBENXZTFEZARABZRMN
FEERENZEFRARDZREBESUAARE
BExtEEE2Hst AHMEEEE (F&E) »
FAAZEREFFEREEN - FRILEIZ

EHREWEAR S (20235F 1 #])

AR e MR R RPBFRSIR

(a) #REMFBARRRPAIENER

BIALS

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
20,438 10,630
12,176 13,431
32,614 24,061
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET

- 19
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19. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19. ZFEHFBRAERPVRER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#E)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) BRENEEREBEBEERE
recognized: f&:
(i) Movement of each component of (i) BERBEEERBESMHE
deferred tax assets and liabilities R EB 3 R EE)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/ UTARFERBEFECHE
assets recognized and movements thereon during the REBEEREB (BB B
current and prior years: EURHEE) :
Fair value
Withholding  (Accelerated)/  Revaluation adjustment
tax on decelerated of of property,
distributable tax right-of-use plant and
profits  depreciation assets equipment Others Total
ATk (&) / VEN:T
AR i B  RBAAEE
e WEifE  {EREEE ELd B 3

Uss 000 Us§ 000 us§ 000 Us§ 000 uss 000 uss 000
T TET T TET T TET

At 1 January 2023 1202351818 (44,000) 5,243 (5,526) 17,349 2904 (24,030)
Exchange differences ERER - (93) 92 (172) 13 (160)
Credited to hedging reserve AR AGE - - - - 1,975 1,075
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (n%B) /3t AER (3625) 345 502 (89) (117) (2984)
At 31 Decernber 2023 and 1 January 2024 120235128318 R2024E 1A 1H (47,625) 5,495 (4,932) 17,088 4775 (25,199)
Exchange differences ERER 3 (1,015) 69 (222) (75) (1,240)
Credited to hedging reserve AR AGE - - = - 23 2
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (B8 BE 10,361 5,806 498 (2.944) 453 14,174
At 31 December 2024 120245128318 (37.261) 10,286 (4,365) 13922 5176 (12,242)
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19. ZEHFBRARPIFAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#2)
(continued)

Eﬁﬁ;uij_uﬁﬁl,é%f&&,%

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)
recognized: (continued)

(i) Movement of each component of (i) BERBEEERBESMHE
deferred tax assets and liabilities AR SRRV S (43)
(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEVNNGERBERREMS >
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax B TiE L%RE%E&EEE?&
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is B - UTAHARUTBEREEDN
an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial FR{EIRIEFRTBAS BRI D47 -

reporting purposes:

2024 2023

20244 20234

Us$’000 US$°000

FET FE7T

Deferred tax assets IRIEIRIEE B 30,194 27,004

Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE (42,436) (52,2083)

(12,242) (25,199)

(ii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not (i) KRERDREREEERS

recognized &

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately US$205,668,000 (2023:
approximately US$182,913,000), available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
will be expired at various times within a period of five
years from the year of origination.

At 31 December 2024, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to US$754,560,000 (2023: US$508,230,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of US$60,149,000 (2023:
US$45,318,000) have not been recognized in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

2024 EERE

R2024F12831H  &~EBEHE
REFEARIER51E49205,668,000
%77 (20234 © £9182,913,000
E7T) > A IR RAEF] o H
RAKRBFANAATER 4
B IE S B R SRR I
MEEE - REEBEZNRER
FERERFHRARFRRRER
HHo

R2024F 128310 > A& H
BH B A Bk Dk A A R
R E%74754,560,0003%
7t (20234 : 508,230,0003%
m) AREERZERE RN D
R FE 1 7R 18 6 4 SR AR IE AR 1B
B1560,149,000E 75 (20234 ©
45,318,000%7T) * FRZR AR
BEHZERBATNREK
Ko BEEERAUBRR R
EREDIRZEGEF o

| PEEERERERERAR
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20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20.

21.

22,

Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Value-added tax recoverable
Prepaid insurance expenditure and
usage right of electricity
transmission facilities
Prepayment for maintenance
Others

INVENTORIES

Coal and oll

Spare parts and supplies
Wood pellet

REC (note)

Goods in transit - wood pellet

Note:

REC represented renewable energy certificates
sale.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables - contracts with
customers
Less: allowance for credit losses

EEME BERRERE

FIUR[O]E AR

TR R K
BhHEBRMERE

RERNNE
Hth

21.

ESo =P
R K HiH 5

NE BRI
FIBEREREE (W)
R E - ANE B

generated by the Group and held for

22,

ESRPIRR—F R &R
W EEEEEE
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HiJERSEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
158,203 147,835
165,386 138,494
7,711 4,816
14,099 14,793
11,392 10,867
356,791 316,805
4=
=
2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
3,725 5,550
22,728 19,295
5,216 6,229
20,925 13,574
1,378 =
53,972 44,648
Jiof=3
D EE ARSI A A AR EHENT B
BEE
o)
B 5 FEURBR =X
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FE7T
914,876 780,784
(28,238) (14,756)
886,638 766,028
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates:

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
91 - 180 days 91EF180H
Over 180 days 180H L

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$137,145,000
(2023: US$174,896,000) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 20 to 90 days from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$749,493,000
(2023: US$591,132,000) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the 2020 Notice (see note 4). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive)
During the year ended 31 December 2024, expected credit losses of
US$13,837,000 (2023: US$2,931,000) in respect of trade receivables
were recognized and expected credit losses of US$5,434,000 (2023:
US$5,662,000) in respect of contract assets were recognized.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 36(a).

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

B 5 RUWERM (8

MUF&EINPREPRREREH RIRA TR
HEEE) 2N ESEBBRFRRESEEHIR
BHERER DT

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
169,513 215,900
18,386 15,562
76,634 57,075
622,105 477,491
886,638 766,028

R2024F 128318 > AEBENE 5 EUER A
HREEXEHEES I REMRENEREES
137,145,000 75 (20234 : 174,896,000 7T)
PR R ERAZZHBERE 20590
KAZ AT

R2024F 128318 ZEEN E 7 FEUERR
EHROEOEREEKEEBEVRANEREES
749,493,000% 7t (20234 : 591,132,000 75)
MIFEWEBR R - IR 152020 B A (B2 RMsE4)
5% 5 FE N BR 7R 43 & IS AB B8 BT 2B P9 AY 2B & 4a B
WA *EEE%E?*EEWJIBU‘*BF?%%%I
*Eﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁaéml%%m“ ET
EE O RAMAWRAEATEL

AEEKEENR 2 BEREEEENSHET=E
ZEESRBERAEREENGBEE B
HEEBEBENZRAEERREREHT RES
FAEMAEENRSREEAEEBHKIIMN
REeERBEZBNEL) WIRAESTE - #E20244F
12B31HIEFE B S RWRMEDREBHE
5#51813,837,000% 7t (20234 : 2,931,000
7O R AR E ERATBIE 185,434,000
%57 (20234 : 5,662,000%E7T) ©

ERMAEBREERRKE S RUSRRFIEEDN
EERBRBE—DFIERINHMIEES6(a)

75 B30 L B 5 R WBR R4 B R R A T 4R 4

=]
an °
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23.

24,

25.

CONTRACT ASSETS

Tariff income from sales of HEBEEREMEEERA
renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses

(note 22)

B EERBREE
(Hta£22)

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the List by the relevant government
authorities. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the right to receive payments becomes unconditional, i.e. after
each of the Group’s operating power plants is included in the List.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
contract assets are set out in note 36(a).

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

The balance includes value-added tax recoverable of US$77,817,000
(2023: US$87,325,000) and other miscellaneous deposits and
prepayments.

All of the balances are expected to be recovered or recognized as
expense within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all amounts are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and recoverable/(repayable) on demand, except for an
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of US$1,269,000 (2023:
US$1,209,000) which is interest bearing at 6.55% (2023: 6.55%) per
annum, repayable in 2032 and is therefore shown as non-current
liabilities.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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25.

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$°'000
FET FET
411,547 383,732
(20,737) (15,586)
390,810 368,146

BREEEMRETEAMSERXEREETH
ERERAYFE W BB A > 3270 IE 1 75 A8 B BT
AR L 7 A AR BB o B WORR A ) Bl 2% SR A £ Bp
EFAEEREEERMNABTER SREE
BREE SRR

EHAEBRGEERRAGREEMEENGEE
R B BV E— e B HC I EE36(a)

Hth R W IR R TR 4R IR

ORI (ER77,817,0005% 7T (2023
£ 1 87,325,00057T) MR HEMBER S KA

IR o

TRHIPR B AERRR N —E R UREI SR BT

FEly, (FEf) R RMIB AR,
FEIERR AR ERTRIR

1R2024F K% 2023F 12831 H  FTE A EIR
At ERBREKXKEWE  (EBE) »HE—
SPETIFERRAREIE1,269,000% 7t (2023
£ 1 1,209,000% 7T) L EF)%6.55% (20234 :
6.55%) 5t B > BN 2032FEEE T ALY RAIE
mEhAEEe
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. {14 €fTH

2024 2023
20245 20234
Assets Assets
BE BE
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Derivatives that are designated and effective 5 & KRB MIEA
as hedging instruments carried at AR EESRD
fair value: HATANTETAR:
Foreign exchange forward contracts SNEREAS R 583 =
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: MEHRENDHA
Current TREN 583 =
583 -
The major terms of the foreign exchange forward contracts are as SNERERBNEEEZRWT -
follows:
Notional amounts Maturity Exchange rate
HEE 2[NS BE =
At 31 December 2024
20245128318
Buy Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 3,259,000,000 Range from 7 January 2025 Range from JPY1: KRW9.12 to
to 4 March 2025 JPY1: KRW9.15
5 A8,259,000,000H & (THEL) N F20255187HZE2025F384H NEIHA : 9.128TE

1HE : 9.1588 7T
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26.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The amounts recognized for the foreign exchange forward contracts
do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of set-off of the
recognized amounts is only enforceable upon an event of default.

It is the policy of the Group to enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the foreign currency risk associated with certain
committed purchase transactions covering 100% of the exposure.
Basis adjustments are made to the initial carrying amounts of assets
when the anticipated purchases take place.

For the hedges of highly probable forecast purchases, as the critical
terms (i.e. the notional amount, life and underlying) of the foreign
exchange forward contracts and their corresponding hedged items
are the same, the Group performs a qualitative assessment of
effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the forward contracts
and the value of the corresponding hedged items will systematically
change in opposite direction in response to movements in the
underlying exchange rates.

The Group has purchased several electric and steam generating
facilities from a supplier in Japan. The Group has entered into foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk on other
payables denoted in JPY arising from these purchases.

As at 31 December 2024, the valuation loss under the foreign
exchange contracts is KRW848,523,000 (equivalent to US$583,000)
and the amount was credited to the hedged item in other payables as
a firm commitment on the forward exchange contracts. The aggregated
loss of KRW53,000 (equivalent to US$Nil) was debited to profit or
loss.
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26.

TTEEMIA (@

MINEEMEREDN AT AN EERLER
GUBRARREHORE DAREBHED
R REMNEMNNEEBOE R A RER

fIe

FEBNBRBTLIEEHGRANERRS
TRGERBRZAEMAINE R > UEE100%
RO - ERMREE LR HEENTRA
SREEETEHAE-

BB RRETHNRMARBZHIMES AR
SNEEMERNEZEN BRE2E HRR
R BERENHPIEAEER BtAEEH
ERMGETEMN G ERAERGEEER
AP RENEEREEMEXZHMAR
3 2 [ 2 8 o

FEREOBEAMERRBEFEHNRESE
ERM - AEBBITUNERRERUHHHE
B 5t B E th 8 (I RIB A Z FHRIE T E R EX
]

R2024FE 128310 INEAGN THHERES
848,523,00082 70 (tHE 583,000 7T) @ %%
HEEABBIIESHNNRERESTAELMES
B EHRIEE - 55t E51853,00088 T (1B E
RZE7T) BEREBET NG



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e Ml R M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.40% per annum as at 31 December
2024 (2023: 0.01% to 1.65%). The pledged bank deposits
carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01 % to 3.46% per
annum as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 0.1% to 3.59%).

Included in the cash and cash equivalents, deposits of
US$16,748,000 (2023: US$31,920,000) are made to CGNPC
Huasheng Investment Limited (“CGNPC Huasheng”). These
deposits are unsecured, interest bearing at market rates
ranging from 0.15% to 0.50% (2023: 0.15% to 0.50%) and
recoverable on demand. As the Group can withdraw these
deposits without giving any notice and without suffering any
penalty, the directors of the Company consider that these
deposits made to CGNPC Huasheng qualified as cash and
cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of
US$135,612,000 (2023: US$235,865,000) are deposited in
CGN Finance Co., Ltd (“CGN Finance”), a fellow subsidiary
established in the PRC with limited liability and a non-banking
financial institution subject to the regulations of the People’s
Bank of China and the China Banking Regulatory Commission,
in the PRC.

Pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31), and it cannot be
withdrawn prior to the approval of the relevant banks.

As at 31 December 2023, short-term bank deposits carried
fixed interest rate ranging from 1.10% to 1.55% per annum with
maturity period for more than three months.

27. WEKRIFEFEY  FEHR

TR BIRRIRITER

(a)

HeRREEBYR2024F12831H
HEENTF0.01%E2.40% (20234 :
0.01%Z%1.65%) B X E - B
FHIRTTERN2024F 12831 HIEESF
A F0.01%E3.46% (20234 : 0.1%=E
3.59%) MM IBFIESE o

MABRETERASTSEEDYNER
16,748,000%& 7t (20234 : 31,920,000
EX)BRAERERREERAT
(THhEZER)) NEMR - ZETRA
IR N F0.15%F0.50% (2023
£ 1 0.15%ZF0.50%) BHIHH R B
REZR A Y0 o AAEEEMIRINZ
EER (BAZBHEABARTAESZE
FERES) >  AARNEFRRA > FHIRF
EZERNEREEREARERRA
=EEBY-

R2024F 12831 B RkBEEE
B 135,612,000% 7T (20234 :
235,865,00057c) B fF AR EIZTH
BREMEAE ((HFEZME) - FEZ
MEE—RRABEUBEREETERAR
YHRARMBAR  REIERITE K
¥ ABTHEARETRDERITE
EREEEEGNRA

BIRIRIRITERIER FRT - LUER
B AEBRTEE (sEs1)  E52
8 R SR1T BYFF BT A A I $R EY

R2023F 128310 BRI ERIZE
EEMZEA110%E1.55%:1 8 FHHHE
“EBMU L.

2024 FERE | HEEEHERERERAS

217



218

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 55 ¥ R MY 5E

nv-F

for the year ended 31 December 2024 EH E2024F 128310 IEEE

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

Reconciliation of liabilities arising

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2023

Financing cash flows (nofe)
New leases entered

Interest expenses recognized
Dividend declared

Foreign exchange translation

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

Financing cash flows (nofe)
New leases entered

Interest expenses recognized
Dividend declared

Foreign exchange translation

At 31 December 2024

1202351518

HERSRE (W)
EHpE:E)
BRIHSER
BERKS
ERE

1202312531 B R202451518

HERERE )
N )
ERIHERAR
EENES
HERE

12024128318

27. RERBEFEY TG
RITEM R ERFRITER

@)

(b)

FREEHEENEEN

HER

TERALFEBDREREZTHINER
g GERERFRcEH -PE
EHEEZARRREMNBHRKERE

Note: The cash flows from bank borrowings, lease liabilities, loans from
fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders make up the net amount of
proceeds and repayments in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

EREFNEAERARERERERP
DEAMETHELEZRERE
Amounts
Loans Amounts due to non-
Bank Other payables Lease from fellow due to fellow controlling
borrowings and accruals liabilities idiari idiari Total
Aft RERE
EfRER HEARN EfiR% iR
RiTE EEER HERE & HWEAFRE RRRE At
Us§000 Us§000 Us$ 000 Us§000 Us$'000 Uss'000 Uss'000
FEn F£r £z 7 £ £z &
(note 31) (note 29) (note 32) (note 30) (note 25) (note 25)
(Hr31) (Hz229) (Hi32) (Hrz30) (H13225) (325
4,364,480 8,733 37242 1,528,543 12,183 1931 5,953,112
157,415 (151,250) (17614) (105,020) (67,598) (4,680) (178,747)
= = 33,586 = = = 33,586
= 150,944 2,006 = 50,740 75 212,765
- - - - - 3,641 3,641
(73,740) (133) (3,613) (13417) (4617) (40) (95,560)
4,448,155 8,294 51,607 1,410,106 9,708 921 5,028,797
593,442 (127,959) (20,162) (20,704) (53,684) (4,028) 366,905
- - 34,402 - - - 34,402
- 130,611 2,442 - 48,099 79 181,231
- - - - - 6,724 6,724
(115,608) (352) (1,430) (12,731) (32) 331 (129,822)
4,925,989 10,594 66,859 1,376,671 4,091 4,033 6,388,237
Ma: RERGTEE -HEAE -RKBERR

MBABNWER ENRRKNEL
BIMIE R A IEER KRR AIENER
EREBEMGARE RERANFT
BREBERERRERENFER -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Amounts in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases
comprise the following:

(c)

Within operating cash flows FFARERERE
Within investing cash flows FAREBERERE
Within financing cash flows FAREBERESRE

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0 - 60 days 0E60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H M

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 41 days (2023: 48
days) for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are settled
within the credit period.

27. RERBREEFEY) FTH

1T BiRRIRITIFRR

(48)
() woEsrERNHASNHBELEN
&I
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
4,977 2,535
38,466 3,262
20,162 17,614
63,605 23,411
xh
28. B (TR
RBMEHR REZHHSENEZETRE
FIERE DT ¢
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
40,571 81,618
1,078 12,725
4,928 14,328
46,577 108,671

HE2024F12831HIEFE BEERNTEY
EBHA418 (20234 : 480) - AEBEBE&IE

MBRRE

B LU R FT A FE I IR ]

RIEEHRRRES-

2024 EERE

| PEEERERERERAR
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

30.

Construction costs payable

Staff costs payable

Accrued interest expense on
borrowings

Value-added tax payable

Others

Analyzed for reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-current

BNREEER
FEfT 8 TR AR
FESHEE R B

PRI ER
HAth

MEHREN DA
nE
IERED

LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due within 1 year:

CGN Finance

CGN Wind Energy

CGNPC Huasheng

China Clean Energy Development
Limited (“China Clean Energy”)

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due after 1 year:

CGN Finance

China Clean Energy

KREBRMEBABNER
—IEREE
hEZ
hEZEE
PEZER
H BB R SE IR B &
BERRAF

(TR R REETR)

RERRKEATHNER
— 1 EREE

EF')#*?EHQ

I:F]./ﬁ/ HI:,/
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29.

30.

Notes

llog=3

i(a)

il

i(b)

Ht e mRIEREtEA

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 US$°'000
FET FET
380,118 380,403
7,366 6,810
4,110 4,888
13,381 17,747
30,747 34,622
435,722 444,470
427,901 437,322
7,821 7,148
435,722 444,470

KEERKMEBLRENER

2024 2023
20244 20234
US$’000 US$'000
FET FET
127,732 228,470
667,742 338,854
- 250,000
450,000 =
1,245,474 817,324
131,197 142,782
- 450,000
131,197 592,782
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30. LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 30. RKEBRRMEBATINER

- — =
(continued) (#2)
Notes: Hisz -
(i)a) Loans from CGN Finance of RMB900,000,000 (equivalent to (i)a) KEPEZMENEZHR AR900,000,000
US$125,202,000) (31 December 2023: RMB1,601,400,000 (equivalent to 5t (18 %fﬁ*ms 202,000% %) (2023212
US$226,100,000)) are unsecured, interest bearing at 2.40% (31 December B31H AE”"%‘L601,400,0007E (HHE R

(i)(b)

(ii)

(iif)

()

2023: 2.35% to 3.30%) per annum and repayable within one year; and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB18,185,000 (equivalent to US$2,530,000)
(31 December 2023: RMB16,785,000 (equivalent to US$2,370,000)) are
unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced by the PRC
National Interbank Funding Center (“RMB Loan Prime Rate”) minus 0.65% to
1% (31 December 2023: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0% to 1%) per annum
and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2023, loan from CGN Finance of RMB8,150,000
(equivalent to US$1,151,000) was unsecured, interest bearing at 3.30% and
repayable in 2038. The amount has been fully repaid during the year; and

Loans from CGN Finance of RMB943,099,000 (equivalent to
US$131,197,000) (31 December 2023: RMB1,003,134,000 (equivalent to
US$141,631,000)) are unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate
minus 0.65% to 1.35% (31 December 2023: RMB Loan Prime Rate minus 0%
to 1.35%) per annum and repayable in 2032 to 2040 (31 December 2023:
2031 to 2040).

Loan from CGN Wind Energy of RMB4,800,000,000 (equivalent to
US$667,742,000) (31 December 2023: RMB2,400,000,000 (equivalent to
US$338,854,000)) is unsecured, interest bearing at 2.40% (31 December
2023: 2.40%) per annum and repayable in 2025 (31 December 2023: 2024).

As at 31 December 2023, loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250,000,000
was unsecured, interest bearing at the 3-month Secured Overnight Financing
Rate plus 1.30% per annum and repayable in 2024. The amount has been fully
repaid during the year.

Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450,000,000 (31 December 2023:
US$450,000,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% (31 December
2023: 4.50%) per annum and repayable in 2025 (31 December 2023: 2025).

(iii)

(iv)

226, 100 0003 7T)) AEIEH - REMNX
2.40 %(2023&12%315 2.35%%E3.30%) 5
ERAR—FEREER; &

REFPEZABNERARK18,185,0007T
(FE#2,530,000%7t) (20235124831
B: )\E“&m7850007‘5(7@”“#2370000
i@)) S EIKIF P E2ERITHERE X
=5

Soh L AN RIS R BERE (TA

MEREBEME]) H0.65%F 1% FEF X
(2023%F12A31H : ARBERBERER
0%E1%) st ERABAR—FEREE-

1R2023F12831H REREZMHFHNER
AR #8,150,0007t (#HE 51,151,000 75)
m?&ﬁ WA 3.30% 5 B R AR 2038
B ARSEENERNTHEE &

BERFEZEBNERARK943,099,000
(FBE R 131,197,0005%7T) (2023512
318 : AR#1,003,134,0007T (HHE R
41,631, 000%£7T)) A FIE I & ARIEE
2018 BB 0. 65% 5 1.35% I EF = (2023
¢12)§31 B ARBEREBENZHOKE
1.35%) 5t B R ARR2032F FE 20404 (2023
F12H31H : 2031FF20405F) EHiE-

FEPEZRENERAR4800,000,000

7T (1BE 1 667,742,000% 75) (2023412
)%31 H: AER"2,400,000,0005T (HHE R
338,854,000% 7)) AEEIF I EFF X
2.40% (2023F12831H : 2.40%) st E&B
20254 (20235128 31H : 20244) EiE

20235 12831H  REFPERERNER
250,000,000 754 IR ~ 2 =@ A B iKH
FRRBE N RM1.30%MEF K B RAR
2024 FEEB -ERMESBENERBHEER -

KEFREERERNER450,000,000% 7T
(2023E1QH 31H : 450,000,000%7T) &
EIRIR S IEF)F4.50% (20235F 128318
4.50%) 5t B R BR 20254 (2023512831
B :2025%) fHi&-

=

Y

= a3
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31. BANK BORROWINGS

Secured
Unsecured

The maturity profile of

bank borrowings is as follows:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years
Over 5 years

BiR
el

RITEEMNEABRMT

—FR

—FLUEBRBBEME
MEUEBRBBLE
BEMNE

The exposure of the fixed-rate borrowings is as follows:

Fixed-rate borrowings
Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

Over 5 years

EBMEE
—FR
—EUEBABBmE
MEUEBRBBRF
BEEME
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31.

ﬁE 7155

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
2,725,292 2,716,937
2,200,697 1,731,218
4,925,989 4,448,155
644,459 494,635
405,627 393,972
2,323,776 1,995,158
1,552,127 1,564,390
4,281,530 3,953,520
4,925,989 4,448,155
EESEERRUWT :
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
301,131 64,271
21,198 35,248
1,005,817 1,093,682
10,801 72,625
1,338,947 1,265,826
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the variable-rate borrowings is as follows:

Variable-rate borrowings FEEE
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEM EERBE MR
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU LEBEFRBREE
Over 5 years EEMUE

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities.
The bank borrowings of the Group carry interest rates which range
from 1.75% to 5.85% (2023: 2.25% to 5.86%) per annum during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the variable-rate bank borrowings
of the Group carry interest at the PRC’s lending rate less a certain
margin, South Korean Government Treasury Bond rate minus 1.25%
(2023: nil), One Year Corporate Bond Rate plus 1.2% to 1.3% (2023:
1.3%), Three Year Corporate Bond Rate plus 1.0% to 1.2% (2023:
1.2%), or 90 days Certificate of Deposit rate plus 2.0% to 2.4% (2023:
nil). The maturities of these borrowings range from within twelve
months from the reporting period end to 2039.

Included in the Group’s secured bank borrowings, US$6,956,000
(2023: US$14,119,000) are guaranteed by the Group’s fellow
subsidiary, CGN Wind Energy.

The Group pledged the following assets to banks for credit facilities
granted to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment Y BB R R
Trade receivables B 5 EUWEE
Contract assets EREE

Bank deposits RITER

31.

IRTTEE (@

FEEERRBNT

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
343,328 430,364
384,429 358,723
1,317,959 901,476
1,541,326 1,491,766
3,587,042 3,182,329

RESHER > FMAERTEEHUSEREREN
NEE T E B E2024FE12831HILEEE >
AEBIRTEERN F1.75%%E5.85% (2023%F:
2.25%%F5.86%) MR EE 8 o

EA2024EE7§Z20235E12)§31 B> AEENEF]
ERTEENRPEERMNEXBAETEE "
ﬁ&HF@1ﬁ%IJ$,m1.25% (2023%F 1 &) - —FHf
P EBEFENM1.2%ZE1.3% (20234 : 1.3%)
ZEHPEBEHENEM.0%E.2% (20234 :
1.2%) > O0H FMRFBHEM2.0%E2.4% (2023
F I\ R - ZEEENIRFHANTRER
REST+ @A AN E20394F

AEEEBIKFRITHEES6,956,000E 7T
(20234 : 14,119,0005% 7t) AAEERE & U B
AT PEZEBIER-

FEETRAERERNESRE R RITHT
UTEE-

2024 2023
20244 20234

Us$’000 US$°000

FET FE7T

790,462 896,338

734,878 629,461

295,727 207,677

162,018 111,735

1,983,085 1,845,211
2024 FERE | PEIEZFERERERARE
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32.

33.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable
as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —F U EERBBmE
After 2 years but within 5 years MEMU FERBBAEFE
Over 5 years AFEMUE

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The government grants consist of (i) subsidies of RMB15,931,000
(equivalent to US$2,216,000) (2023: RMB11,484,000 (equivalent to
US$1,621,000)) given by the PRC government to certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC for operating cost and environmental
protection; and (ii) grants of RMB33,300,000 (equivalent to
US$4,633,000) (2023: RMB37,300,000 (equivalent to US$5,266,000))
given by the PRC government to a subsidiary of the Group in respect
of a project for the construction of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC received value-added tax refund amounted to
US$8,280,000 (2023: US$8,298,000) from the PRC government,
which was recognized as other income upon receipt.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

32.

33.

HEER

2024 K%2023FE 12831 H FHESGERHER
BROT

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
11,295 6,209
6,354 5,338
9,218 6,487
39,992 33,573
55,564 45,398
66,859 51,607

i &

BT Bh & B 3E (i) P B BUT s AR & i AR KR IR 3R
RERTAERETHTREMBATINMEBEAR
#15,931,0007c (FHE#%2,216,000%7t) (2023
£ NR#11,484,0007T (FBE 1,621,000
70)) 5 R PEBFRERDE BEKRRE
ERATAEER—SIWELATNHBSARKE
33,300,0007T (A&7 4,633,000%7t) (2023
£ ANR#37,300,0007T (HHE1°5,266,0003
7T)) °

B E2024F12A31BIEFE > AEB MUK AHE
HNETHBASWIAEBRFNIEERER
8,280,000 7t (20234F : 8,298,000 75) » I UK
§Uﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁjﬁﬂﬂﬂi7\ S
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GOVERNMENT GRANTS (continued) 33.

The movement of the government grants during the year is set out
below:

As at 1 January B1B1H

Exchange differences PR AE%E

Receipt of government grants W E| B AT Bh &
Recognition as other income (note 6) RAEEMUWA (FFaE6)

As at 31 December R12831H

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: FLE2WMENDFA :
Current TREN

Non-current JETRED
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 34.
Advance payments received from BWREE B

customers

All contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

Typical payment terms which impact the amount of contract liabilities
recognized are as follows:

Sales of steam

The Group receives deposits from the customers before the generation
of steam activity commences, this gives rise to contract liabilities at
the start of the contract, until the goods, i.e. steam is supplied to the
customers.

The amount of advance payment received from customers for sales of
steam is expected to be recognized as income within one year.

2024 EERE

B E (&)

FEAMTMBEOESHHIIWT

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
6,888 7,713
(101) (126)
9,659 8,760
(9,597) (9,459)
6,849 6,888
188 191
6,661 6,697
6,849 6,888
A= =
(=] Hﬁiﬁ
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
3,237 3,959
FrAcRaEllRcEBEEL&EBHAE

Eo

FEERRXSBABESEN— R ARIERD

T

HEZER

FEERAZREERREMND TS WEZ

T I E R

ERRBBELEGRAER BEE

g4 (B#9) ﬁi\%%gﬁ' Ak

MEAHERBE R RESEBRARN —FR

FESD AU A ©

| hEEZREE

RERERAR
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

35. B #ERKRS

i . RS 42y
Movements in components of equity (a) tEmAAREER D E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEB LGS B TD S HE D B 4 6
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BEREFRCENERIN G ER
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BEIR o LN YA A B E ) B FEREE
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of 18 B 4B AR 3R 0 B 2 EDEE 1
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Share Share Capital ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve profits equity
s R E BAGHE 4 gkl mEs
uS$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note (i)
(Hz))
At 1 January 2023 R2023F181H 55 250,406 70,683 96,499 417,643
Profit for the year and total ERNENREERREE
comprehensive income - - - 98,520 98,520
Deregistration of a subsidiary s $E—KIBA T = = (4,592) = (4,592)
Dividend declared and paid in ~ BERRIEMAN FEERE
respect of previous year (H7:235(b)(ii)
(note 35(b)(ii) - - - (39,029) (39,029)
At 31 December 2023 ?2023F12831H 55 250,406 66,091 155,990 472,542
Profit for the year and total FRRAREERGEE
comprehensive income - - - 86,331 86,331
Repurchase and cancellation  BE[I RsE 85 R 17
of shares - (236) - - (236)
Dividend declared and paid in ~ BERRIKMGN FEERE
respect of previous year (Hz35(b)(ii))
(note 35(b)(ii)) - - - (66,921) (66,921)
At 31 December 2024 2024128318 55 250,170 66,091 175,400 491,716
Note: HiaE -
(i) Capital reserve represented the difference between investment cost (i) EAEBIEEENBEAERNE

and carrying value of certain subsidiaries arising from internal group
reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends
(i) Dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

45 B 55 ER R MY X

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

35. B HERKS @

(b) ARE

() BERTFENEMERD
B ARRAVAR S

2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Final dividend proposed after the  $REHARBEIKAIKRE
end of the reporting period SRE1.445FAL
of 1.445 US cents per share (20234 : 1.5631)
(2023: 1.56 US cents) 62,005 66,921
The final dividend proposed after the end of the RBREPEFRBEIROFBRER
reporting period has not been recognized as a liability REHART BRI AEE-

at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company

(i) BB L—MEFEELR
FEHERRAT B RS

attributable to the previous financial KATHEERRAIRE
year, approved and paid during the year
2024 2023
202445 20234
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the AEEHERIKTH
previous financial year, approved  _+F—RIEEENREAKE
and paid during the year ERE1.56E1
of 1.56 US cents per share (20234 : 0.913Al)
(2023: 0.91 US cent) 66,921 39,029

2024 FERE | HEEEHERERERAS
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(c) Share capital

Issued share capital

(c) Mgz
B8ITRA

Number of shares

35. B HERKS @

Share capital

1R 8 E fi& s
HK$'000
FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 cent each SREEOIEBILZ ZER
Authorized: ETE
At 1 January 2023, 20231 81H ~2023F &
31 December 2023 and 2024 2024 12831H 250,000,000,000 25,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H K
and 31 December 2023 2023%F12831H 4,290,824,000 429
Repurchase of shares and cancelled FEO Q1D R sk iH (900,000) (=)
At 31 December 2024 20245F12831H 4,289,924,000 429
Shown in the consolidated financial N A BIRKRTIRA
statements as 55

* Less than HK$1,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

During the year, 900,000 ordinary shares were repurchased
and cancelled by the Company. The ordinary shares were
repurchased of HK$2.0407 per share and a total consideration
of HK$1,837,000 (equivalent to US$236,000) was debited to
share capital and share premium.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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RE LERREADAREG LiRER—
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Reserves

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Other non-distributable reserves

Other non-distributable reserves principally represent
statutory reserves and enterprise work safety funds.
Statutory reserves are required to be appropriated
from profit after income tax of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC, under the relevant laws and
regulations. Allocation to the statutory reserves shall
be approved by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries. The appropriation to statutory reserves
may cease if the balance of the statutory reserves
has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves may be
used to make up losses or for conversion into capital.
The relevant subsidiaries may, upon the approval
by a resolution of shareholders’ general meeting/
board of directors’ meeting, convert their statutory
reserves into capital in proportion to their then existing
shareholdings. However, when converting the statutory
reserves into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of
the registered capital. Enterprise work safety funds are
required to be appropriated from revenue for the year
of the subsidiaries established in the PRC engaged in
power generation according to Cai Zi [2022] No. 136,
Notice on Promulgation of the Administrative Measures
for the Accrual and Use of Expenses for Work Safety
by Enterprises. The allocation to enterprise work
safety funds ranged from 0.2% to 3% of revenue for
the year. The appropriation of the funds may cease if
the balance of the funds has reached to three times
or more of the amount that shall be accrued in the
previous year.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 2(i).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(w).

35. B HERKS @

(d)

(M)

(i)

(iif)

2024 FER

p==3
=

(G4

HAAAI 2k fE

Ht AR nkfEEEZIELE
RERCERZRE2EEE -RE
R AREEAR A EREE
HEHA P B AR 3L BV Y B A B) 22 Bk
FIEMEBEREMNRER - DEZE
AEREBERERWBARZ
EEgME-HMEERELS
BEIEEMBATEMEALS
250% B Al {2 IE IR BUA E
ok ERET BIERBER
FERBABER BB AT
AERRAE EEEEHEL
BERRAERMLER REER
ZHREFRELHEEETH
EERAE R R AT
HEESBABAR  HREH
ZIREBEBIEBLREMEAR
225%c RIFEFTE[2022]136
FORMREB(LEZEEE
ERRERAMEREER LN
B CEZREEEEER
FEMINEEENHEE AR
HNERNBRARR DEZEDE
ZREEBENHENFERK
AMO0.2%E3% A REE T4
BEI E—SEREHREN=
ERM L B AT {2 IE IR BN A Y
B o

B

HihREECERSRYEPE
BANHEHPTENAREBERS
SBE}FENENHBY  HEBR
R B 5E2(i) BY 3R & 7 3 0 PR ER A
& 5t BURTEE R FE SRR
REMB -

FER A
B Rk R L IE I BB SN 2 RS
BREMELNFAANESR

o BERRME2(w)PT 8
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FPE EA AR RERARAE
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, loans from fellow subsidiaries
and bank borrowings, as disclosed in notes 25, 30 and 31,
respectively, net of pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
from time to time. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, the issue of new
shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has been largely dependent on a small number of
customers which are state-owned enterprises for a substantial
portion of its business. Most of the power plants of the Group
sell the electricity generated to their respective customers
who are the principal grid companies where the power plant
is located. The failure of these customers to make required
payments could have a substantial negative impact on the
Group’s profits. The Group has concentration of credit risk as
99% (2023: 98%) of the total trade receivables was due from
54 (2023: 37) state-owned enterprises as at 31 December
2024. In order to minimize credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
receivables.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive). During the year ended 31
December 2024, expected credit losses of US$13,837,000
(2023: US$2,931,000) in respect of trade receivables were
recognized and expected credit losses of US$5,434,000
(2023: US$5,662,000) in respect of contract assets were
recognized.

MBEAREEREMI AR
QAREEE

(a)

EERE (&
R RSN AREE

AEE-BFERBILEEELESR
FREHBRIDEH XEBALD
BREMEEZENHETEZEN
BRE HERFAEMZETEESHAT -
ZERPMAESZNRERE BHE
EEEFERNBEAEBEEE -HNE
2024FE12831H > B EUERRALEE
$199% (20234 : 98%) K EH54% (2023
F IR FEBELE RNAEEEEEE
ABERER ZREEERR K&
EEEECZKREFEASEEEER
E-EEBMREMERER  URER
IRENIRETTE) o [O U A HA FE UK FRIE ©

AEERBER2HBHEESEN
TR EZSESRRERRERE
ENEGBEEE ENEFMEBERRES
BO BRBEORMAERNRESR
ERAEEFEHKINREESREZH
BZE%E) MIBETE - H E20245F 128
S1TRIEEE B R EWRRRERE
A= &5 554813,837,000%E 7T (20234 :
2,931,000%7m) K EaREERRTA
HA{E & §5485,434,000E 75 (20234 :
5,662,000%7T) ©
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2023

Impairment losses recognized
Impairment losses reversed

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2023
and 1 January 2024

Impairment losses recognized
Impairment losses reversed

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2024

R2023FE181H
ERRRERE
B & LR ERE
ERER

R20235FE12831H
F22024F181H

RS RE R 1R

BEEIRERE
ERER

R20245E12831H

The following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets

as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

At 31 December 2024
Trade receivables
Contract assets

At 31 December 2023
Trade receivables
Contract assets

#2024%E12831H
B 5 U R
EREE

$t2023F12831H
B 5 U ERTR
EREE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

36. BIEEMEEERESHTAN
NREE #B)

(@ 58

R\ (%)

B AW R SR EE (8)

B RBERARGREENGEER

BRI FERNEFHUNT :
Trade Contract

receivables assets Total
B 5 EUWART EEEE #a st
US$’000 Us$’000 us$’000
FET FETT FET
12,038 10,114 22,152
3,398 5,662 9,060
(467) - (467)
(213) (190) (403)
14,756 15,586 30,342
13,837 6,390 20,227
- (956) (956)
(355) (283) (638)
28,238 20,737 48,975

TRIEM T BRR2024F K%20235F12
B3 HNESRBRKERAREREEZ
SERKBKEBHEERBZER -

Weighted-
average
loss rate

MiEFHEEEE

3.1%
5.0%

1.9%
4.1%

Gross Impairment
carrying loss
amount allowance
IREAEME MERERE
Us$’000 Us$’000
FETT FET
914,876 (28,238)
411,547 (20,737)
1,326,423 (48,975)
780,784 (14,756)
383,732 (15,586)
1,164,516 (30,342)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

For other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
a 12-month ECL unless credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The credit risk on other receivables is limited
as other receivables are mainly value-added tax receivables,
prepayments and deposits, which are expected to be deducted
from value-added tax payables or recognized as expenses
in the future. The credit risk on amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries is limited as the counterparties are operating
smoothly and with sound collection history.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
and pledged bank deposits

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with sound credit ratings, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents as well
as undrawn banking facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilization of bank borrowings, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders and loans from fellow subsidiaries
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group finances its operations by short-term and long-
term bank and other borrowings and shareholders’ equity.
The Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
US$636,666,000 as at 31 December 2024.

MBEREEREMI AR
QREE B

(a)

(b)

EERE (&)
Rt R ER R E R B AT

MEMBRRERERERNE A
MIEMES > AEBREEF 1218 8 R
FEEENSHEFABERER RIFE
BEERBEPEELREBREE M £
EERTAEREDRLARBEES
H-HMERRENEERBREER T
RS ELfth AR WO IR = 2 = R W (E AR
TR IR K 3% & > T8 FA A 72 R 2R 8 I8
BEIR PR ER AR - EKRE RN
BABMENEERBRAR  HHARH
FHEEFREAARFHUMREH

RERFEEEY EHRRTERKRE
ERIRITER

HREFEIBEBRFEEFRNE
ThewEE CEEIRECERR
BB  HAEBARRE KRR EFEY
RHRTERRERFRTERESE
WEERRAR-

uu@ﬁiﬁrw

REBRDHESRAMRE  FEMERT
MEEEERSBRUBNEERBOE
FRBEBREMEBRDHRNFEDN
RekBReFEYURKRERIETRE
BT -BEEEERERTEE BNFE
?kk%#E&X§ﬁ$W§ﬁEW
BBV 1B M B AR ST B R L5k o

AEEFAEERRPRTREME
EUERBRERAHBESRHEES -1
2024F12B31H  AEENREERE
FBi8 E M EhE E636,666,0005 7T ©
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. HFHEIEEERERT AR
— =
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RREE B
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) TEEZRAME (B
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that CGN KANBDEERD ARARBRME AR
Wind Energy, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, has FEZEBECE@DRD BEXETE
confirmed in writing that despite the loan from CGN Wind ZRBENERARE4,800,000,0007T
Energy of RMB4,800,000,000 (equivalent to US$667,742,000) (HE1°667,742,000% 75) B*2024
which is due for repayment within twelve months from 31 F12B31HE+ BB RNEE K
December 2024, it will not cancel the existing loan facilities HiE T ZBE2024F12831 Eltu‘l"f'_
within twelve months from 31 December 2024 and that the BAANZHREEERME  BEMER
loan will be extended upon expiry. Furthermore, taking into ZIHBRIER o th4h > ot R AN B YR
account the financial resources of the Group, the Group has HEIR > P2024F 128318 AEEA
unutilized general facilities of US$995,914,000 as at 31 995,914,000 T ARBHE — R &
December 2024 for the next twelve months from the end of WHBREHARE T ZEBERNIER I
the reporting period. In addition, the directors of the Company R R EEEBRAEESEREM
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared RENAERRERERA - RERE
by the management of the Group. The cash flow projections BAKEERSHEARESALR+Z
cover a period not less than twelve months from the end of the 18 B B HAR o
reporting period.
Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, Btk tilE8% AREESDA
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that, the KEBRKXKR+-ZEEBEREEE
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its cashflow ExmeHREEREFT K
requirements in the next twelve months.
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRINKAEBIETESHRE BN R
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non- SHARNEG TEREER HRER KT
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual RREME (OFEREEMNER WBF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments AR RREBAREFNAEFEDN
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FEMAR) MAEBENEASZTHRESR
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest HEAsH&E -
dates the Group can be required to pay:
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1 year or but less than but less than  More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—ERE  —EME  RENL #12B318
BER BFEBME EFEBARE REME 4 REE
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 Uss’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2024 12024128318
Bank borrowings RIEE 663,370 424,938 2,572,945 1,814,474 5,475,727 4,925,989
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,847 7,737 10,545 53,988 85,117 66,859
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REAZRBATINER 1,260,050 10,588 37,272 87,106 1,395,016 1,376,671
Amounts due to non-controlling I EERREE
shareholders 3,094 - - 2,087 5,181 4,363
Trade payables B A EMERT 46,577 - - - 46,577 46,577
Other payables HinE[FE 428,179 4,356 919 4,056 437,510 435,722
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEfE A BATZIE 16,854 - - - 16,854 16,854
2,430,971 447,619 2,621,681 1,961,711 7,461,982 6,873,035
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023 12023128318
Bank borrowings RITEE
Lease liabilities HEAR

Loans from fellow subsidiaries REBRKBAANER

Amounts due to non-controlling  FEfTIEERBEFE
shareholders

Trade payables BAEMRR

Other payables HiE[FE

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEftEZMBABFE

n‘7|'\

36. BATEEBE
NREE @)

(b) REMEEEE )

More than More than

BEEREMIAN

Within 1 year 2 years Carrying

1 year or butless than but less than More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—ERgE  —EME mENL R12A318
REX BFBEME BFBARE  AFEME wm FEE
Us$000 Us$'000 USs$'000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
509,823 410,497 2,270,570 1,824,187 5,015,077 4,448,155
6,423 6,182 7,443 48,133 68,181 51,607
835,549 471,407 30,308 104,504 1,441,768 1,410,106
3,209 - - 2,118 5,327 4,418
108,671 - - - 108,671 108,671
437,609 287 4,890 3,758 446,544 444,470
107,045 - - - 107,045 107,045
2,008,329 888,373 2,313,211 1,982,700 7,192,613 6,574,472

2024 EERE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate risk profile as monitored
by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk profile

The following table, as reported to the management of
the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

Fixed-rate borrowings: EEMBE:

Lease liabilities HEaE®

Bank borrowings RITEE

Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRKBATDNER
Variable-rate borrowings: EEMEE:

Bank borrowings RITEE

Loans from follow subsidiaries KERRKBATDNER
Net exposure R B 1 75 28

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

MBEREEREMI AR
RREE (&)

(c)

2R fE b

MERBRASRT SN XS ERS R
TENAABEINRRREAEEE
RBNAR AEENANZABEE
KERBEE UFBHAEREEF
RRENBEELAERDHEARRE
MENEXRBRRAABENZRR-
EEEMSEENAERNXEBRMNK R
W TIXE)E

(i) FIREEER
TR (ERAXEBREEE K
F) FHERBERBREAREE
EEENF XA R :
Notional amount
LEEEH
2024 2023
20244 20234
uUs$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
66,859 51,607
1,338,947 1,265,826
1,242,944 1,016,105
2,648,750 2,333,538
3,587,042 3,182,329
133,727 394,001
3,720,769 3,576,330
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately US$13,953,000
(2023: US$13,411,000 ).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualized impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2023.

36.

MBEREEREMI AR

DREE @)

(C) *IJ:KHIZN\ Cnﬁ

(i)

2024 EERE

BRE D

R2024F12831H » B&KFT
EE%“EﬁhZﬁ’EJ
Flxqg EFA / THE50MEE R
%%ﬁK%E%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ
e AR & @ F) 9 Bl R L 18
#J13,953,0003% 7T ( 20234 :
13,411,000% 7T) ©

FABURE o AT B R R A =K
RREARZELELEH > BR
SHRERAZEHNEMTE
FEBRMFEEAERBER
ABEMERBEHNEMIA
AEENRREET (RFRBHE
F) K fr & 1 2 B9 H Ath 48 AL 6 5>
RHEENNSES - AER
RREBRTFENFHANEE
METAEFMSIBNREREF
XReMms HEAEERRE
wmr (RRERF) MzEEn
HEMERB AT ETIER
ZEANESENEELHNEMH
TH W EMMES o ZDI
R E L2023 F M EEEE—
Ko
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily US$, JPY, RMB and HK$. The Group
manages this risk as follows:

(1)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to
manage its currency risk until the settlement date
of foreign currency receivables or payables. The
Group designates those forward exchange contracts
as hedging instruments in fair value hedges and
does not separate the forward and spot element of a
forward exchange contract but instead designates the
forward exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item is
measured based on the forward exchange rate.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines
the existence of an economic relationship between the
forward exchange contracts and the highly probable
forecast transactions based on their currency amounts
and the timing of their respective cash flows. The
main sources of ineffectiveness in these hedging
relationships are:

(i) the effect of the counterparty’s and the Group’s
own credit risk on the fair value of the forward
exchange contracts which is not reflected in
the change in the value of the hedged cash
flows attributable to the forward rate; and

(ii) changes in the timing of the hedged
transactions.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EEEK #)
(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in () HHPFERARZPRIIMNER

B% (&)
TREFN RS RIS EAE

forecast transactions (continued)

The following table details the forward exchange

(i)

contracts that have been designated as fair value EEIBAE T ENTERR % E’J YN
hedges of the Group’s highly probable forecast AEBEEHPNRIAINES
transactions at the end of the reporting period:
2024 2023
20245 20235
Foreign Local Foreign Local
currency currency currency currency
shig P HhitE Kt
JPY’000 KRW’000 JPY'000 KRW’000
FHE Fé#ET FHE F#ET
Notional amount LB
- Buy JPY (sell KRW) -BEAHE (HE&ET) 3,259,000 29,791,215 - -
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount (note) IRTEE (475E)
- Asset —BE 583 —
Note: MraE -

As at 31 December 2024, the forward exchange contracts have
a maturity of within one year from the reporting date and have an
average exchange rate of 9.14 between JPY and KRW.

Recognized assets and liabilities

The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used
by the Group as hedging instruments denominated
in foreign currencies at 31 December 2024 was
US$583,000 (2023: nil), recognized as derivative
financial instruments.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(ii)

2024 EERE

R2024F 128310 Z2HRINEER
BERESHBARES —FERNEH 8
RETHFHEERS9.14¢

EEIEERER

R20245F128310  A&EEHA
EHPT AU EFENE
HIHIEERANFAAEES
583,000 7T (20234 : &) » ]}
HaRATESRMIA.

PIRSNBSHERNEME 5 B U
R EMERMS A& H
BE R 08 50 0 22 B DUBD FA BB =
B A HEINELUERIGH &
183 1 R 0% L B B R
R PR BIKF -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MHEAGEEREMIAN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RAEE #)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EEEK #)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (i) FrEERRYSEEEE R

The following table details the Group’s exposure at TRANEAEBNRSHRMN
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising 0 B LA A8 BE &8 A% Th AE & 1S LU 4b
from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a Bl ENERIEEREE
currency other than the functional currency of the entity MEENEERR -MLEHRE
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the MWMs FMEERERNSEE
amounts of the exposure are shown in United States UREEENENPERBREDN
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end ELYme

date.

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in United States dollars)

PR i B 0 51 B LB (WX E T3 )
2024
20244
us$ RMB HK$ EUR CAD JPY
e AR BT BT mr B
US$'000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Assets BE 762 4,303 640 - - -
Liabilities =15 (31,745) - - (8) - (7,655)
Gross exposure arising from ERIEEREE

recognized assets and liabiliies FTESEMEAERED  (30,983) 4,303 640 (8) - (7,655)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in United States dollars)
FERNMNERR (UETFT)
2023
20234

us$ RMB HK$ EUR CAD JPY
e AR BT B mr =
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 Us$'000 US$°000 US$°000
FET FE7 FET FE7 FE7 FET

Assets BE 7,264 15,858 531 13 14,700 2,354
Liabilities &k (28,116) = (196) (309) = (6,491)

Gross exposure arising from ERIEEREE
recognized assets and liabilities FIEEMERARMO  (20,852) 15,858 335 (296) 14,700 (4,137)
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in foreign
exchange rates

Exts/
(FH&)

uss 7T 10%
(10%)

RMB AR 10%
(10%)

CAD ik 10%
(10%)

JPY = 10%
(10%)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into United State dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2023.

MBEREEREMI AR
RREE (&)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.
2024
20244
Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit

after tax and
retained profits
B R R SRR
iof%
Us$’000

FET

(2,383)
2,383

359
(359)

(589)
589

2024 EERE

‘tm&ﬂlzﬁh (l

BRE D

TRETAEBEFRREZE
(RRBER) URiEE’E
B9 EL 48 B R D 7E 45 & B O 3R
HHRARE AR R EXR
ZBEHLEEY (RRFABEEM
AERARERERTE) BB
NP BE IR AR E)

2023
20234

Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign after tax and
exchange rates retained profits
HiER g
EBXtr,/ HIKRE ?ﬁ?&ﬂ
(B i0j-2 -
Us$°000
FET
10% (1,564)
(10%) 1,564
10% 1,324
(10%) (1,324)
10% 1,130
(10%) (1,130)
10% (318)
(10%) 318

J:%EE@JZﬁ?Fﬁ”n%ﬁ%%ZIK%
BREESEELEERHE
E’Jﬁﬁﬁfﬁmﬁﬂ&ffg i B9 & 5t BN
B & 125 B NmiER
SHARNERRERET-

FREDOMBRRNBIHARE
RALEEXEHEHFES
EEFMEAERAEERE I
BEBNEMIA SFEH
RRABBMUIEIFE S HE ST
FEE M SHEN B RIBERE WK
I 2D iR 2023F HE &
EETo
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

for the year

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 20283,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognize transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Recurring fair value
measurements

Assets

Financial assets designated
at FVOClI

Derivative financial
instruments
- Forward exchange
contracts

BENHAREENE

BE

EERUALABENE
BE#H AHEMEE
WENEREE

fTEEmIA

—EHNESE

45 B 55 ER R MY X

ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

36. MBEEAREERSMIAN
/-\thﬁ{E Cr'ﬁ)
() AREEE ()
() RBAREBESENEME
EREE #
DREEER @)
HZE2024FE%20235F12831H
FTEE F—HREFZHZE
TWEREBE TEBEAXNEBEHSE
ZSRMoANEBNBERR AR
BEERZENERNAEL
HARI V3R 5 HASR T AR ©
Fair value at Fair Value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2024 categorized into
2024 R2024F 123 1AM AR BEHEDER
120245 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
1283101
RAEE F—8 -t E=MH
US$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE7T FE7T FET
3,379 - - 3,379
583 - 583 -

2024 FERE | HEEEHERERERAS
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value at
31 December
2023
#20234
1283181
AREE
Us$'000
FET
Recurring fair value REUANEESE
measurements
Assets BE
Financial assets designated EEANAABEZ
at FVOCI BEEFHst AHMEE
BENEMEE 3,354

MBEREEREMI AR
RAREE @&

(e) AREEEE (B

() BIAEBEAENEHE
ER&RE @

ARBEERESR )
Fair Value measurements as at

31 December 2023 categorized into

22023F12B31HN AR BEFEDES

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—& BT B
US$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET
- - 3,354

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in Level
2 is determined by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current forward
price. The discount rate used is derived from the
relevant government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit
spread.

The fair value of financial assets designated at FVOCI
in Level 3 is determined by using the adjusted net
assets method of the financial assets.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 2024.
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DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

2023

In September 2023, Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya Company Limited (&
PRI EIEAEAF)and Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya Hydropower
Company Limited (BRI E/KEBRAT) (together as “Meiya
Rongjiang”) commenced compulsory liquidation initiated by the court.
In September 2023, a forced dissolution panel designated by the court
has been set up to take over the control of Meiya Rongjiang in order
to execute the liquidation procedures. Upon the formation of the forced
dissolution panel, the Group no longer had controlling power to govern
the financial and operating policies of Meiya Rongjiang so as to benefit
from their activities. Accordingly the Group recognized a gain on
deconsolidation of approximately US$2,485,000 arising from release of
cumulative translation difference of Meiya Rongjiang.

According to the declaration of creditor’s rights submitted to the forced
dissolution panel and the accounting records of Meiya Rongjiang,
the directors of the Company considered that the Group is entitled
to receive approximately RMB79,757,000 (approximately equivalent
to US$11,261,000) from the dissolution panel upon the liquidation
of Meiya Rongjiang and such balance is recognized under other
receivables.

The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY
Other receivables H W I
Inventories =75

Trade payables B SRR
Other payables H (S T8

Tax payable FEIRIE

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

Net assets deconsolidated

37.

FEAT IR IR AR BRI

B GHNEERE

2024 FERE |

BUHS G B 2 B
20234

R2023F 9B BAMIERERAGREFR
BTG KEBRAD (KB IEERI)
FItE B AP AR EN R BB E o 1R 2023898 7 &
Pris ERIsa G R BUNEBE I UIZE =T/
TR WM IT B EIZ R o 58l A2 500\
HRILB AEBFTBHEEENRUEEED
BTN ERESBR MBI NHEERS
B oIt AEBRMBFRETHIINRE
DEBEMBRNBUE & HIEA2,485,000%
=c

RIEEREBEHEZEGIRINEREAENER
EREGRIGHS ARAEERALER
BERETMIEEENBRBZEFWROA
79,757,000t (B E R 4J11,261,000%7T) >
ZAERRI H AW RUIE T HERR o

At September
2023
2023594
USs$’000
FET

RECHGHBENEEZENT :

16,501

EEZAERIERERAE
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37. DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. BUEHSHMEXAS (&)

(continued)
2023 (continued) 20234 (48)
At September
2023
#2023%F9H
Us$’000
FETT
Gain on deconsolidation of Meiya Rongjiang BUH & =T a9
Cash consideration receivables FEWIRE R E 11,261
Cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net assets of ZEDETREEMN R HE RS
Meiya Rongjiang 2,485
Net assets deconsolidated BUHEHNEEFE (16,501)
Non-controlling interests deconsolidated BUB & B IEZE R = 5,267
2,512
Represented by: ZErA
Gain on deconsolidation recognized in profit or loss Ri8m TJE R ECH & H U s 2,485
Gain on deconsolidation recognized in equity R REBMNECE & ft U 27
2,512
Net cash outflow arising from the deconsolidation: BOHEHEENRES RN FEE .
Us$’000
FET
Cash and cash equivalent deconsolidated BUHEHNIRERIBEESEEY (16,872)
38. COMMITMENTS 38. KiIE
Capital commitments BN
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2024 not provided R2024F 12831 HH R EMBHRRAIREEN
for in the financial statements were as follows: BEARREWT
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FETT FETT
Contracted for [EEESD] 1,141,791 848,533
Authorized but not contracted for EREERTHN 93,014 =
1,234,805 848,533
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. ERRAERS
TRANSACTIONS
The Company is ultimately controlled by CGN, which is a state-owned KABRMEBEPEZIZES > MAEZEFEE
enterprise under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC. BhrEEEE s @A
Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in the Prir & MR R ETIN BE 2 B BG 75 A5 BREE 1B A
consolidated statement of financial position and other details disclosed RigEMBRERNAEMTOWEZ EMFS
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group also o REBRERINEBB AT LU TEARAR
entered into the following significant transactions with related parties L

during the year:

Name of related company Notes Nature of transactions 2024 2023
) UNSIE2Y Wiz RBHE 20244 20234
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
CGN Energy International i Management service income 896 481
HREZ AR RBIPR BERBUA
CGN Finance i Interest income 562 2,789
R % BT S B A
Interest expense 9,456 8,591
MEZH
CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd. i Management service income 2,752 2,584
(“CGN Energy”) and its subsidiaries
FEZERBESREETAS BERBUA
(THhEAEIR)) e E W EAF
CGNPC Huasheng i Interest income 44 76
FRE L EE RS FEUWA
Interest expense 10,620 16,352
MELZH
Huamei Holding Company Limited i Management service income 6,284 6,543
(“Huamei Holding”) and its subsidiaries
Huamei Holding Company Limited BERRB WA
(TEEER) REWE AR
China Clean Energy i Interest expense 20,588 20,531
FREDE R AER MEZH
CGN Wind Energy and its subsidiaries i Management service income 21,664 13,809
PEZREBERENEB AR BIERBUIA
Power agency service income 2,649 957
BEAERB A
Management service expense 15,167 12,296
BERBZH
Maintenance service income 408 -
EiRRBUA
Interest expense 7,435 14,266
MEZH
CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. i Management service income - 4,970
(“CGN Solar Energy”) and its subsidiaries
FEZKGERERRAS BERBUA
(TMhE KGR REKE AR
Management service expense - 3,970
EERBZE
CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology i Maintenance service expense 9,943 7,043
Co., Limited
REZ (R MERMEERAE EMHRBZH
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

39.

EXMERS (&)

Name of related company Notes  Nature of transactions

31 NSIRE Wiz RZMEE

CGN Hunan New Energy i Energy storage service expense
Development Co., Ltd. Xintian Branch

FRERZ CHiE) MAERAZEERAR HEBEAR TS 2
MEP AR

Hubei Xisaishan v Management service income

HIEFEE EERBERA

Notes:

0]
(ii)

(i)
(iv)

CGN Energy International is the immediate holding company of the Company.

CGN Finance, CGN Energy and its subsidiaries, CGNPC Huasheng, Huamei
Holding and its subsidiaries, China Clean Energy, CGN Wind Energy and
its subsidiaries, CGN Solar Energy and its subsidiaries, CGN (Beijing) New
Energy Technology Co., Limited and CGN Hunan New Energy Development
Co., Ltd. Xintian Branch are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

In 2023, CGN Solar Energy became a wholly owned subsidiary of CGN Wind
Energy and the transactions contemplated under the continuing connected
transactions with CGN Solar Energy, which were expired on 31 December
2023, have been, and will continue to be, subsumed into the continuing
connected transactions with CGN Wind Energy in 2024.

CGN is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

Hubei Xisaishan is the associate of the Group.

The Group has entered into various transactions including deposits
placements, borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks and financial institutions which are the PRC government-
related entities in its ordinary course of business. A majority of the
cash and cash equivalents and 86.5% (2023: 87.2%) of borrowings
of the Group are with the PRC government-related entities as at 31
December 2024.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

(iii)

(iv)

2024 2023
20245 20234
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
1,804 737

48 48

PEZERERATADNEBZERAR
PEZMH - PEZERRENBAR F
BZER EXERLEWBAR  PEE
BER PEZRBERENBAS  PEZ
KGERENB AR PERZ (ER) HER
HMEARAB KT EZ () M RAER
RABMEIRE ABFRBEREREL
7)o

220235 PEZARAERSPEZEEH
2EMBAT > B EZKRGEZBNRE
BEXZBER2023F128331BE M HEBTF
BEITRIR %EE"ZOZ4E%¢]7\E#§%§%§%7\
BREZE BN RFERER S

PEZATADNREERAF
HMERZELAEEENBHEQT

FEEERHAEEBBRETEE NEBGE
ERBZETRITREMEBITILZERS
BREEFEFI EERAEM—RIBITRE - 102024
F12A31B  AEBZABORERREEFE

Y 5286.5% (20234 : 87.2%)

& & 73 B R

2 X A8 R B R
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Also, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government-related
entities include sales of electricity to local power bureau and a state-
owned entity. About 45% (2023:40%) of its sales of electricity and
capacity charges are to the other PRC government-related entities for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries and the payments of their emoluments were borne by
CGN and its subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other key management during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits f2HAE A
Post-employment benefits BER R R A

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by
having regard to the performance of individuals and the Group and
market trends.

39. EXMERS (1)

B AEFEPEHEMBTERER RS
BiERAMEERREABREHEE N - RE
F2024F12H31HIEEE > 8945% (20234
40%) 2 BHHE KRB EETH EH M PRI
RERAR -

MBI E2024F %2023F 12831 HIEFEET
BEENTERTPEZLERB AR  HHHNG
METEZRENBATEE-

EEIRAS M
ERNEERHEMEESEAENFHFINOT :
2024 2023
20244 20234
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
33 377
- 21
33 398

EERTETHAENFHFND2EBAAKREE
EXRFLUKRTIHEBEBETE
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZAFEEMNIIEIR TR

FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investments in subsidiaries (Note (a))

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables and prepayments
Amount due from the immediate

holding company

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Loans from fellow subsidiries

Loan from a subsidiary

Bank borrowings - due within
one year

Lease liabilities — due within one year #H

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Bank borrowings — due after one year
Lease liabilities — due after one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE

L EN VN Ed
EREEE

KB ABNKRE (#fat(a)

MEBEE
LA B R IE K TR B
FERERIZER AT RIE

FE UL B 2 Y /B A B R IR
RERFEEFEY

mEaE

H A FE (T R K FE 5t & A
NN PN E/SE!
P& A B /B8 A B AR IE
REBRMEABER
REMBRATNER
RITEE - —F R EE

E8E-HN—FRNEH

mEEEFE

MEERRBAR

FRBEM
RE—KBERBRARDHEMR
RITEE - —F R E
HEaE-— N —FREH

BEE
B K f# &
R
1

W

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes Us$’000 Us$’000
izt FET FET
848 97
1,586 1,136
1,319,566 1,294,962
1,322,000 1,296,195
455 436

540 120
9,869 9,483
16,864 31,811
27,728 41,850
4,188 4,439
3,713 5,983
4,439 4,514
450,000 250,000
45,907 49,416

- 100,000

563 1,151
508,810 415,503
(481,082) (373,653)
840,918 922,542
- 450,000
348,132 -
1,070 -
349,202 450,000
491,716 472,542
55 55
491,661 472,487
35(a) 491,716 472,542




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45 B 55 ER R MY X

for the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F12831HIEFE

40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries

The Group has disclosed the information of the following material subsidaries,
as these subsidaries are repesenting its major power generation facilities of the

Group:
Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of perati i i Legal form
R/ 2MEL/ Bi/
WEARAE BERY HRAIAS AERR
Indirect
53
CGN Daesan Power Co,, Ltd. Korea 8 April 2009 Joint stock company
#E 2009F458H RIABRAT
CGN Yulchon Generation Korea 28 July 2009 Joint stock company
Co, Ltd.
&H 2009F7528H BHBERAF
Nantong Meiya Co-generation The PRC 13 March 1997 Foreign investment
Co, Ltd. enterprise with limited
liability
BEXEHRERAT HE 1997438138 ABRENERERLSE
Wuhan Han-Neng Power The PRC 11 October 1995 Sino-foreign equity joint
Development Co,, Ltd. venture
REZEENLRARAT FE 1995108118 PHAERELE
CGN New Energy (Dezhou) The PRC 29 December 2014 Foreign investment
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with limited
liability
RERFER @M 5RAT TE 20145128200 ABRENEREALE
CGN (Zhejiang Xiangshan) Wind ~ The PRC 11 July 2011 Foreign investment
Power Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited
liability
RER IR ENEE  FE 2011E7A 11 ABRENERERLSE
BRAT
CGN (Zhejiang Ninghai) Wind The PRC 19 December 2013  Foreign investment
Power Co., Ltd.* enterprise with limited
liability
REY (IEE) ANEE  TE 013128198  ABRENEREMLE
BRAR
CGN Gansu Mingin Wind Power ~ The PRC 4 March 2011 Foreign investment
Co, Lid* enterprise with limited
liability
TELHBRYENEE HE 20113548 ABRENEREELSE
ERAT

(#&)

et -

a. RHBARNKRE

REH

Registered
capital/issued and
fully paid-up
share capital

A&/ BETRBERE
2024
2024

Issued capital of KRW31,197,500,000
and paid-up capital of
KRW31,197,500,000

31,197,500,000% TE & TRAR
31,197,500,0008 T4 BB A

100%

Issued capital of KRW18,044,400,000
and paid-up capital of KRW18,044,400,000
18,044,400,000% TEETTRER
18,044,400,0008 T 2B A

100%

Registered capital of US$16,800,000 and
paid-up capital of US$16,800,000

100%

16,800,005 T BEER
16,800,000 T4 B B A

Registered capital of RMB291,260,000 and 60%
paid-up capital of RMB291,260,000
AR%291,260,0007# HEXR
AR 291,260,000 H B RA

Registered capital of RMB200,308,891 and
paid-up capital of RMB200,308,891

100%

AE#200,308, 891 EXR

AR200,308,891 T4 BB A
Registered capital of RMB134,610,000 and 100%
paid-up capital RMB134,610,000

AE#134,610,000#MEAR
AR#134,610,000c B2 RA

Registered capital of RMB79,600,000 and
paid-up capital RMB79,600,000

100%
AR#79,600,0007FBEXR
AR179,600,0007 4 RRA

Registered capital of RMB162,200,000 and
paid-up capital RMB162,200,000

100%

AE#162,200,000 T MERK
AR%162,200,000c M KA

2024 EERE

Attributable
equity interest
held by
the Group

FEAMSEERE

2023

20235

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

AAT]BENMEBR TR

EREUTEZNBABDER BR
ZEWBARRKAEREE

ERIE

Principal activities

TEER

Generation of electricity

LEEN

Generation of electricity

£33 3

Generation of electricity

EERN

Generation of electricity

LERN

Generation of electricity

£

Generation of electricity

tERN

Generation of electricity

£

Generation of electricity

tERN

| PEEERERERERAR
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of subsidiari perati i i
Wi/ AMEL/ Mi/
WEARAHE EEBY ARRIAS
CGN Gansu Mingin () Wind The PRC 24 October 2013
Power Co., Ltd*
TERHBROE_RNEE TE 2013105248
ERAT
CGN Gansu Guazhou Wind The PRC 18 November 2011
Power Co., Ltd*
PREEROMANEE HE 2011F11518H
BRAR
CGN Gansu Guazhou (Il) Wind ~ The PRC 15 November 2013
Power Co., Ltd*
TEEHBANECRHEE +E 2013115150
ERAT
CGN Solar (Dachaidan) The PRC 15 January 2010
Development Co., Ltd*
RREARE KRE) BE  TE 201018158
BRAR
Weifang CGN Energy Co. Ltd* ~ The PRC 26 August 2016
ATERERERAR HE 2016585268
Lankao CGN New Energy The PRC 21 March 2017
Co, Ltd*
BEMERAERARAT  TE 2017838210
Chifeng New Golden Energy The PRC 14 October 2016
Co, Ltd*
HEHERERERAR HE 2016F 108148
Yuzhou CGN New Energy The PRC 6 March 2017
Co,, Lid*
BNRERERERAT  TE 2017E3868
Xingtai Ren County CGN New ~ The PRC 16 May 2018
Energy Power Co, Ltd*
BaEHRREHEREE  dE 2018F55 168

BRAF

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENAREMLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENAREMLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liabilities

ABRENARRAELR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

THEERELE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENARERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

AAT]BENMEBR TR

(gg
//'E)
Hrat -
a. HRKBADNRE (&)

Registered Attributable

capital/issued and equity interest

fully paid-up held by

share capital the Group Principal activities

AMEEF/ BRIRBZRE FEAMRRERE TEEH

2024 2023
024F  2023%

Registered capital of RMB549,760,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid-up capital RMB549,760,000

AR 549,760,000t RE AR EERN
AR 549,760,000 I 2R A

Registered capital of RMB191,750,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid-up capital RMB191,750,000

ARH191,750,000 £ REER LERS
AE#191,750,000 8 B BRA

Registered capital of RMB627,190,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid-up capital RMB556,500,000

AR 627,190,000 REXR EERN
B 556,500,000 4 B B A

Registered capital of RMB492,931,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid-up capital RMB492,931,000

AR 492,931,000 EHEER LERS
AE#492,931,000HRRAE

Registered capital of RMB153,760,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid-up capital RMB153,760,000

ARH153,760,0007 REAR EERN
AR 153,760,000t 2R A

Registered capital of RMB576,980,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid up capital of RMB576,980,000

AR 576,980,000 REAR LERS
AEH576,980,00070 4 B R A

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and 74% 74%  Generation of electricity
paid up capital of RMB100,000,000

AE 100,000,000 BERR LEEN
AR%100,000,0007c 8 B KA

Registered capital of RMB216,280,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid up capital of RMB216,280,000

AR%216,280,0007c REAR EERN
AE1216,280,000T 4 B B A

Registered capital of RMB246,260,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity

paid-up capital RMB158,090,000

AR 246,260,000 MELR
AR 158,090,000 4 R R A

LEEN
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of subsidiari perati i i
Wi/ AMEL/ Mi/
WEARAHE EEBY ARRIAS
CGN Fugou County New Energy  The PRC 19 September
Co,, Ltd* 2018
TERRERNERARAT TE 2018595198
CGN (Qianxinan State) New The PRC 25 January 2018
Energy Co,, Ltd*
R GAERMN) R HE 2018F 15258
RAE
CGN (Wenchang) New Energy ~ The PRC 1 August 2017
Co, Ltd*
TER (B FERERAT TE 2017E8B18
CGN (Datong) New Energy The PRC 2 June 2017
Co,, Ltd*
hEY (KF) FERERAT  TE 2017%6H28
Baoying County Rongbaoda The PRC 21 November 2016
Wind Power Co., Ltd.*
HEGRREANEE HE 20165115218
BRAE
Yanling CGN New Energy The PRC 6 March 2017
Co,, Ltd*
BEMERTERARAT  TE 20173868
CGN Yiyang New Energy The PRC 18 May 2017
Co, Ltd*
TERGBNERERAT  TE 2017£58188
Yongcheng City CGN New The PRC 13 June 2018
Energy Co,, Ltd*
KAnRBEAMAERERAT TE 2018F67 130

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENAREMLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENAREMLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENARELLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENARERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

iR e Ml R M EE
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AAT]BENMEBR TR

(gg
//'E)
Hrat -
a. RIBABNIKRE (@

Registered Attributable

capital/issued and equity interest

fully paid-up held by

share capital the Group Principal activities

AMEEF/ BRIRBZRE FEAMRRERE TEEH

2024 2023
024F  2023%

Registered capital of RMB192,690,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid up capital of RMB192,690,000

AR192,690,0007cE REAR EERN
AR 192,690,000 B2 B A

Registered capital of RMB284,198,700 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid up capital of RMB284,198,700

ARH284,198, 700t REAR LERS
AR #5284,198, 700t 8RB A

Registered capital of RMB362,200,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid up capital RMB362,199,963

AR 362,200,000 REAR EERN
AR 1362,199,963 TR B A

Registered capital of RMB269,510,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid up capital RMB269,510,000

AEH269,510,000 R EAR LERS
AE%269,510,0007 8 R RA

Registered capital of RMB291,004,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid up capital RMB291,004,000

AR 291,004,000 BEER EERN
AR 291,004,000 82 B A

Registered capital of RMB382,610,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
paid up capital RMB382,610,000

AR 382,610,000 REER LERS
AEH382,610,0007 8 R R A

Registered capital of RMB182,760,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
paid up capital RMB182,760,000

ARH182,760,0007 REAR EERN
AR%182,760,0007c 8 BB A

Registered capital of RMB346,070,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity

paid up capital RMB346,070,000

AE#346,070,000 EMELR
AR 346,070,000 RIRA

EEEN
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of subsidiari perati i i
Wi/ AMEL/ Mi/
WEARAHE EEBY ARRIAS
CGN New Energy Cenxi The PRC 17 July 2018
Co, Ltd*
TEEMERSEERAT T 2018E78178
CGN New Energy (Taigu) The PRC 22 December 2016
Co, Ld*
REEAER (KD BRAT FE 2016F 125220
CGN (Dangtu) New Energy The PRC 15 April 2019
Co, Ltd*
TER (ER) FERERAT TE 2019545158
CGN New Energy (Lianshui) The PRC 9 December 2016
Co, Ltd*
RREATRER (B0 BRAT E 2016F 12898
CGN (Hengfengxian) New The PRC 2 November 2016
Energy Co,, Ltd*
hE () AR HE 2016511528
ERAT
CGN (Shengshi) New Energy The PRC 5 July 2017
Co, Ltd*
hEY (R MERERAT TE 2017E7858
Zixing CGN New Energy The PRC 6 December 2017
Co,, Ld*
BERREUAERERAT  dE 2017E 12860
CGN New Energy Nantong The PRC 6 November 2018
Co,, Lid*
TEEMERERERAT  TE 2018%1156H
Dezhou Shangtang New Energy ~ The PRC 6 November 2018
Co, Ltd.*
ENEERERERAR HE 2018511568

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENAREMLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENAREMLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENARELLSE

Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PAGERERR

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLE

Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

THEERELRE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

ABRENERERLSE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

— —4
(#)
Hrat -
a.
Registered
capital/issued and
fully paid-up
share capital
AMEEF/ BRIRBZRE

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and
paid up capital RMB100,000,000

AR 100,000,000 ALK
AR %100,000,0007 4 R R A

Registered capital of RMB259,330,000 and
paid up capital RMB259,330,000

AE%259,330,000 & AR
AR 1250,330,0007 8 IR A

Registered capital of RMB323,800,000 and
paid up capital RMB323,800,000

AR #323,800,0007 EHELXR
AR 323,800,007 R A

Registered capital of RMB131,960,000 and
paid up capital of RMB131,960,000

AE 131,960,000t ME AR
AR 131,960,000 B R A

Registered capital of RMB133,086,700 and
paid up capital of RMB131,750,000

AR#133,086,700 EHELR
AR 131,750,000 B B A

Registered capital of RMB2,248,307,300 and
paid up capital of RMB2,245,262,218

AR2,248,307 3007 EMERR
AR2,245,62,218 T BB A

Registered capital of RMB325,590,000 and
paid up capital of RMB325,590,000

AR 325,590,000 EAR
AR 325,590,007 IR A

Registered capital of RMB1,995,330,000 and
paid up capital of RMB1,995,330,000
AR #1,995,330,0007 A& AR
AR #1,995,330,0007 4 R R A

Registered capital of RMB435,164,400 and
paid up capital of RMB298,326,800

AR 435,164,400 EHELR
AR #298,326,8007 4 IR A

Attributable
equity interest
held by
the Group
FEAMBRERE
2024 2023
024F  2023%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
97% 100%
100% 100%
86% 83%
100% 100%

AAT]BENMEBR TR

RHBABDNKE (@)

Principal activities

E2:45 ]

Generation of electricity

£ER

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

£ER

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

EERN

Generation of electricity

EERN

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

EERN
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEMEIR IR

- — —4
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (%)
Notes: e
a. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNIKE (8)
Place of Registered Attributable
establishment/ Date of capital/issued and equity interest
incorporation/ establishment/ fully paid-up held by
Name of subsidiari perati i i Legal form share capital the Group Principal activities
Wi/ AMEL/ Mi/
WEARAHE EEBY ARRIAS RERR AMEEF/ BRIRBZRE FEAMRRERE TEEH
2024 2023
024F  2023%
CGN (Ganzhou) New Energy The PRC 12 October 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB213,290,400 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB213,290,400
liability
hER G RERERAT  TE 2018108128 SBRENERERLE ARH213,2004007MELR EEEN
AR 1213,200,400 T8 2R A
Xingye CGN New Energy The PRC 31 October 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Co, Ltd.* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB200,000,000
liability
BEMERERARAT  TE 2018F10831H  HBRENBEREALE AK%200000000THRERR LERN
AR 200,000,000 4 2B A
CGN New Energy Clear Water ~ The PRC 28 June 2019 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB249,350,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB249,350,000
liability
PREAERAKERAE  PE 2019565280 ABRENEREALE AR%249,350,000 AERR EERN
AR 249,350,000 I 2R A
CGN New Energy Haiyan The PRC 29 March 2019 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB191,302,300 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Co, Ltd.* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB191,302,300
liability
TREMERSRERAT  TE 2019F3829A ABRENBREELE ARK191,302300:REFR LERN
AR%191,302,3007 8 BB A
Longnan District Xinchangsheng ~ The PRC 29 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB136,004,400 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
New Energy Co., Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB136,004,400
liability
ERRESENERARAT TE 2017835298 ABRENERELLE ARS136,004 4002 REER EEEN
AR 136,004,400t RRA
CGN New Energy Qinzhou The PRC 27 December 2021  Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB221,590,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
Co, Ltd.* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB215,000,000
liability
TEEMERINERAR  FE 02151282710 ABRENEREALE ARH221590000nEBEXR LERS
AR 215,000,000 4 2B A
Rudong Nuclear New Energy The PRC 7 April 2022 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB242,598,300 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB227,458,980
liability
NRRGAERERAT E 202254878 ABRENEREALE AR%242598,300AERR EERN
AR 227,458 98074 R &
CGN Yishui Wind Power Co., The PRC 2 April 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB91,125,100, 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
Ltd* enterprise with limited paid up capital of RMB91,125,100
liability
RERTKENEE HE 2011F4828 SERENERECLE ARK125100nEREERR LERN
BRAT AR91,125 100 R E A

2024 FER

=10
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/ Date of
incorporation/ establishment/
Name of subsidiari perati i i
Wi/ AMEL/ Mi/
WEARAHE EEBY ARRIAS
CGN Shengiu County The PRC 25 September
New Energy Co., Ltd.* 2018
RERL IR E 2018595250
BRAT
CGN New Energy Fengning The PRC 15 July 2022
Manchu Autonomous County
Co,, Ltd*
TREMEREEREERR TE 2020478150
BRAR
CGN New Energy Yantai Co., The PRC 23 September
Ltd* 2022
TERNER (E0) ARAT TE 202295238
Rudong Lu Nuclear New Energy ~ The PRC 8 December 2022
Co, Ld*
NRRGAERERAT HE 2022F 12788
CGN New Energy Yancheng Co,  The PRC 24 May 2022
Ltd*
TEEMERINARAT  TE 20225824A

English names are for identification purpose only.

Legal form

itk

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

SBRENARELLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

SERENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

SBRENARELLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

SERENERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with limited
liability

SBRENARELLE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

— —4
(#)
Hrat -
a.
Registered
capital/issued and
fully paid-up
share capital
AMEEF/ BRIRBZRE

Registered capital of RMB136,740,000,
paid up capital of RMB136,740,000

AR 136,740,000 EHELXK
AE136,740,000T B RE S

Registered capital of RMB369,300,000 and
paid up capital of RMB248,000,000

AE#369,300,0007 & AR
AR 248,000,000 BE A

Registered capital of RMB1,133,880,000 and
paid up capital of RMB649,164,000

AR #1,133,880,000 ALK
AR 649,164,000 EEE

Registered capital of RMB204,800,000 and
paid up capital of RMB155,220,000

AE#204,800,000 2 MEAR
AR 155,220,000 i RE £

Registered capital of RMB468,190,800 and
paid up capital of RMB300,000,000

AR #468,190,800 EHELXR
AE 300,000,000 8 EE A

AAT]BENMEBR TR

RHBARDNKE (&

Attributable
equity interest

held by

the Group

FEMFREEGRE

2024
2024

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2023
20235

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

E2:45 ]

Generation of electricity

EERN

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

EERN

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

EERN
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THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40.

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Disposal of the Entire Equity Interest in
Nantong Meiya

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 February 2025,
Meiya Electric Asia, Ltd. (“Meiya Electric”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, intended to dispose of all the equity interests in its
wholly owned subsidiary, namely Nantong Meiya Co-generation Co.,
Ltd. (FAEEDHBEARE/AT) (“Nantong Meiya”), through a public
tender process on the Shanghai United Assets and Equity Exchange
Co., Ltd. On 10 March 2025, Meiya Electric entered into an equity
transfer agreement with a successful bidder for the conditional sale
and purchase of 100% equity interest in Nantong Meiya at a cash
consideration of RMB475,000,000.

Please refer to (i) the Company’s announcement dated 10 March 2025
for the details of the terms of the disposal and (ii) the Company’s
announcement dated 25 March 2025 for the appraised value of 100%
equity interest in Nantong Meiya and the details of the valuation
deriving the appraised value.

Save as disclosed above, no important event or transaction affecting
the Group and which is required to be disclosed by the Company has
taken place after 31 December 2024.

41.

2024 EERE

AAT]BENMEBR TR
(#&)

LRRIFAANTEMBAT SADEE
BB BEHBARTENEAEENEES
#E - EFRE WIIHMHBATNFBE S
BRBRAE-

BENBADRERBTAAEEES.

HEHREIR

&R @R 2 ERAE

A AT HERA2025F2B7H 2 A E T
B AN EEN B EMeiya Electric Asia,
Ltd. (TMeiya Electric)) ' ##BBN LBHS
ERRGAHMARADNARBEER HEH
2EWBLADNBEELAEARLAE (TEE
ET)) WA REE 712025438108 » Meiya
ElectricB A2 BT U RIEEZ R = BIKHFH
ERBEEEETI00%RE  REABEE AR
#475,000,0007T °

BRHERRZFEB BH2ENALTBEA
2025&3@1052@%; (iIVEAABIHEBES
20253825 Z AE U TR EEET100%
Rz HERSHIEEEZGEHEE

PR EXXFriREE SN ) 1R2024FE 128310 % 1
BREREARAADBREZEEEERR
%o

| PEEERERERERAR
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42.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2024

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2024 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be relevant to the

Group.

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates - Lack of exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments and
IFRS 7, Financial instruments: disclosures —
Amendments to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments

Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11

IFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in financial
statements

IFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public accountability:
disclosures

The group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them

42.

#HF2024F12831HLLE

B MEfn{E s RERBVIEST

ENTE

BFR & st EERIE215% (BRI &) » SFEE K E B9
FE-RZ IR

B S ERI O (BRI X)) - 2H T AR

BRMBREER SR =M TA -
WE—HTH T RDER BT

BRMHREENEFEINFERE-F11E

B PR B F5 3R S 2E QI 551855 ) I B IR EZHI 25 R
=

BB REERE195 FEFLARSLEF
HINTE L 5] % B

is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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75~ Hs] 2RI Ko s2 RE AT BE

HEZSHRAMBRERAE ERgHE8E
EEOEMSEMTRCETED ExEE
BIRE E2024FE 12831 LEEEHKREN B
THERZEEEMBERRERAN - ZEHED
FEUT A AE S A £ EARRE S o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTHERZE

B E s AR ER

1 January 2025
2025F181H

1 January 2026
2026%F181H

1 January 2026
2026FE181H

1 January 2027
2027F181H

1 January 2027
2027F181H

FEBEENEZEERBHNERERHRMD
EENTE-ZS5TH
ARASERGEYBREREEEATE

BRI E R



Revenue

Operating expenses:
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Repair and maintenance

Staff costs

Recognition/(reversal) of loss
allowance of trade and other
receivables and contract
assets

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Gain on deconsolidation of
subsidiaries

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Share, basic and
diluted (US cents)

Financial Summary

B 35 B 22

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 20224 202345 20244
Us$'000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FZET FET FE7T FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#EE=75) (&E7))
WA 1,149,892 1,775,305 2,430,056 2,192,977 1,951,339
KEREY
JE SR A KRR
ANE R 492,510 778,486 1,247,302 983,336 761,231
ME - -BERREINE
193,031 266,346 335,969 343,740 356,205
HERRE 30,447 37,684 29,971 31,358 24,497
BTIMAK 85,835 102,854 109,395 120,313 131,050
Rl (BE) e S &
HttEWRIBEREE
BEERBERE
(99) 20,292 2,791 8,593 19,271
HMh&R &S 60,701 90,047 114,976 153,144 130,751
K& 4858 862,425 1,295,709 1,840,404 1,640,484 1,423,005
=Pl 287,467 479,596 589,652 552,493 528,334
EH AU A 26,318 41,307 42,699 19,774 42,639
Hitt = 518 (11,089) 44 (69,000) (9,996) (56,741)
B ER (145,005) (188,216) (227,105) (212,765) (181,231)
BLEES AR EE 29,342 (37,551) (63,252) 3,022 4,251
BUH B HH B AR N KR
18,135 = = = -
PRI AT R A 205,168 295,180 272,994 352,528 337,252
Frig (37,533) (34,066) (58,571) (72,895) (78,971)
FEWRA 167,635 261,114 214,423 279,633 258,281
FEEFRRA -
NATI R IRER
162,087 244,274 195,149 267,685 248,018
JEER R 5,548 16,840 19,274 11,948 10,263
167,635 261,114 214,423 279,633 258,281
EREBA BARKREE
(E 1) 3.78 5.69 4.55 6.24 5.78

2024 FERE |

EEZAERIERERAE
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Financial Summary

M BB E

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities wes
NET ASSETS BEE

Total equity attributable to equity Z</A 5] #E 3 i% 5= FE (5
shareholders of the Company 4B &
Non-controlling interests JEERR R

TOTAL EQUITY RS

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. 0 Annual Report 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 20224 202345 20244
US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FZET FET FE7T FET
(Restated) (Restated)
== 7)] (&E7))
6,976,532 8,733,954 8,343,933 8,350,142 8,717,708
5,679,151 7,238,743 6,844,377 6,661,583 6,958,171
1,297,381 1,495,211 1,499,556 1,688,559 1,759,537
1,213,155 1,373,690 1,362,225 1,544,591 1,617,672
84,226 121,521 137,331 143,968 141,865
1,297,381 1,495,211 1,499,556 1,688,559 1,759,537




% G2 CGN

HRE B hatiRZR AR AR
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Suites 1201-3 and 7-10, 12/F, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFELE2REEPLI12121201-3K%7-10F

Tel BiE : (852) 2593 3222
Fax f8E : (852) 2519 0313

www.cgnne.com
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